SANTA FE COUNTY
NEW MEXICO
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT
JUNE 30, 2014

Prepared by:
Santa Fe County Finance Division
Axiom Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors LLC

§1027927200340¥0023y4 Y4312 248



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Table of Contents
June 30, 2014

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal
GFOA Letter of Achievement
Official Roster
Organizational Chart

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditors’ Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD & A)

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Governmental Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet —
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget to Actual — General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget to Actual — Developer Fees Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget to Actual — Fire Operations Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget to Actual — Corrections Operations Fund

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position —
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Notes to Financial Statements

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42
43
44
45

46



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Table of Contents
June 30,2014

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Other Major Governmental Funds Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance — Budget to Actual:
Capital Outlay GRT 84
Major Proprietary Funds Schedules of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position — Budget to Actual:

Home Sales 86
Regional Planning Authority 87
Utilities 88
Housing Services 89

Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet — All Non-Major Governmental Funds-

by Fund Type 92
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance — All Non-Major Governmental Funds by Fund Type 93
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet 98
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance 104
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget to Actual
Regional Transit Fund 110
Corrections Fund 111
Property Valuation Fund 112
Road Maintenance Fund 113
Emergency Medical Services Fund 114
Farm and Range Fund 115
Fire Protection Fund 116
Law Enforcement Protection Fund 117
Environmental GRT Fund 118
Lodgers Tax Fund 119
Fire Impact Fees Fund 120
Recreation 121
Clerk Recording Fund 122
Correctional GRT Fund 123
Indigent Hospital Fund 124
Indigent Services Fund 125
Economic Development 126
Federal Forfeiture Fund 127
Linkages Fund 128
Housing Choice Voucher Sec 8 Fund 129

§10279220Ad340y4023d MY¥319 O4dS



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Table of Contents
June 30, 2014

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget to Actual (Continued)

EMS Health Care Fund 130
Wildlife/Mountains/Trails 131
EMS Health Hospital Fund 132
Alcohol Programs Fund 133
Detox Programs Fund 134
Emergency Communication Operations Fund 135
Law Enforcement Operations Fund 136
Housing Capital Improvement Fund 137

Non-Major Debt Service Funds:

Combining Balance Sheet 140
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance 142

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -

Budget to Actual
GOB Debt Service Fund 144
Equipment Loan Debt Service 145
Jail Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund 146
GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service Fund 147
WTB Loan/Grant Debt Service 148

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds:

Combining Balance Sheet 152
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance 156

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget to Actual
Community Development Block Grant 160
Capital Projects Federal Fund 161
Road Projects Fund 162
Special Appropriations & Other Projects Fund 163
GOB Series 2005 — Roads/Water Fund 164
GOB Series 2007A — Judicial Fund 165
GOB Series 2007B — Roads/Water Fund 166
Capital Outlay GRT Series 2008 - Judicial 167
GOB Series 2008 - BDD 168



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Table of Contents
June 30,2014

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued)
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget to Actual (Continued)

GOB Series 2009 — R,W,0S,SW.F Fund 169
Capital Outlay GRT Series 2009 — Water Rights Fund 170
Capital Outlay GRT Series 2010B - BDD Fund 171
GOB Series 2011 - R,W,OS,F Imp. & Refunding 172
Equipment Loan Proceeds Fund 173
GOB Series 2013 - R,W & OS 174
GOB Series 2001 — Roads/Fire Fund 175
Facility Bond 1997 - Public Safety 176
Fire Tax Revenue Bond Proceeds Fund 177
GOB Series 2001 - Open Space 178
Agency Funds:
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities-Agency Funds 180
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities-Agency Funds 182

STATISTICAL SECTION

Net Position by Component 188
Changes in Net Position 189
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 191
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 192
Gross Receipts Tax Rates 193
Gross Receipts Tax Collections 194
Federal and State Funds Received (Intergovernmental) 195
Taxable Value of Property 196
Principal Property Tax Payers 197
Property Tax Rates (Mil Rates) - Direct and Overlapping 198
Property Tax Levies and Collections 204
Legal Debt Margin Information 205
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 206
Pledged Revenue Coverage 207
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 208
Demographic Information 209
Principal Employers 210
Average Employment by Industry 211
Full Time Equivalent Employees by County Dept/Div. or Elected Office 212
Real Estate — Home Values 213
Household Income 214
Educational Attainment for Population 25 Years and Older 215
School Enrollment for Population 3 Years and Older 216
Population by Age Group 217
Operating Indicators by Function 218
Operating Expenditures by Function (Cash Basis) 219

§10279¢2,-,200d34Qq40023d XMY43I1D 024S



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Table of Contents
June 30, 2014

STATISTICAL SECTION (Continued)

Capital Assets by Function 220

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Reconciliation of Tax Receipts, Disbursements, and Property

Tax Receivable 222
Property Tax Schedule 223
Schedule of Joint Powers Agreements & Memorandums of Understanding 224
Schedule of Deposit and Investment Accounts 225
Schedule of Pledged Collateral 226
Financial Data Schedule 227

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and

Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 231
Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program

and on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133 233

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 236
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 237
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 238
Status of Prior Audit Findings 245
Exit Conference 246



SFC CLERK RECORDEDO02/26-2015

INTRODOUCTORY SECTION

Page 1



Page 2

District Attorney’s Complex



Daniel “Danny” Mayfield
Commissioner, District 1

Kathy Holian
Commissioner, District 4

Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, District 5

Miguel M. Chavez
Commissioner, District 2

Robert A. Anaya Katherine Miller
Commissioner, District 3 County Manager

November 14, 2014

To the Board of County Commissioners, the County
Manager and the citizens of Santa Fe County

New Mexico state law, Section 12-6-3 NMSA 1978, requires that an annual audit of a
governmental unit’s accounting records and Comprehensive Annual Financial Report be
performed by independent public accountants. We are pleased to submit to you the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Santa Fe County for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2014.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of Santa Fe
County. County management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of
the information presented in this report based on a comprehensive framework of internal controls
that were established for this purpose. Santa Fe County has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that is intended to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss or unauthorized use, and that financial records can be relied upon to produce
financial statements according to generally accepted accounting principles. “Reasonable
assurance” is intended to recognize that the cost of maintaining the system of internal accounting
controls should not exceed the benefits derived. The County’s comprehensive framework of
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. The County’s management team
asserts that, to the best of our knowledge, this financial report is complete and reliable on all
material respects.

This report consists of an Introductory Section, the Financial Section which includes the opinion
of the County’s independent auditor Axiom Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors
LLC (Axiom), a Management’s Discussion and Analysis, a Statistical Section with ten years of
summary data, and the Other Information Section. The introductory section includes this
transmittal letter, the County’s organization chart and a list of County Officials and
administrative staff. Readers should refer to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
beginning on page 16 of this report for a more detailed overview of how to use this report, and
introduction to the County’s basic financial statements and an analytical overview of the
County’s financial activities.
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Axiom has audited the County’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.
The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements of the County for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; thus, resulting in an assessment of the overall financial
statements. Axiom concluded that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified (or
clean) opinion that Santa Fe County’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2014, are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The report may be found on pages 13-15 of this report.

The Reporting Entity and Its Services

Santa Fe County was established by the laws of the Territory of New Mexico of 1852, under
provisions of the act now referred to as Section 4-26-1 of the New Mexico Statutes Annotated,
1978 Compilation. Santa Fe County is located in north-central New Mexico. The City of Santa
Fe is the capital of the State of New Mexico and is in the center of the County approximately 60
miles northeast of Albuquerque. Santa Fe County has a total area of 1,911 square miles, 1,909
square miles of land and 2 square miles of water. The 2010 decennial census revealed a
population of 144,170, which includes 67,947 individuals located in the City of Santa Fe. This
reflects a countywide population percentage increase since the 2000 decennial census of 11.5%,
which is a lower percentage increase than the State as a whole which saw a 13.2% increase
during that same period. Santa Fe County has the 6™ highest population growth rate in the State
(behind Sandoval, Dona Ana, Lea, Valencia, San Juan and Bernalillo) and is the 3" most
populous County (behind Bernalillo and Dona Ana). The County’s 2013 population and average
unemployment rate were 147,423 and 5.9%, respectively.

The County operates under the commission-manager form of government. All legislative power
within the County is vested in a five-member Board of Commissioners (BCC). The executive
function is divided and shared by the Board and five elected county officials - the Assessor,
Clerk, Probate Judge, Sheriff and Treasurer. = The County provides the following services:
public safety (sheriff, fire, emergency communications and corrections), highways and streets,
sanitation, health and social services, low rent housing assistance, affordable housing, culture
and recreation, senior services, public projects’ improvements, planning and zoning, economic
development, jail function, and general administration services. A regional planning authority
created by the City and County of Santa Fe, as well as County housing services, utility and home
sales enterprises are included within the business activity of the County’s financial statements.

The County currently has several component units that are part of the operations. The County
has the Housing Authority and the Regional Emergency Communications Center (RECC). Both
of which are included in the County’s financial statements. The County has accepted all
responsibility for both the Housing Authority and the RECC.

Santa Fe County maintains extensive budgetary controls; the budget serves as the foundation for
Santa Fe County’s financial planning and control. Fiscal year 2014 marks the second transitional
year where the budget was developed using a results-accountable, priority-driven budget
methodology (referred to generically as performance-based budgeting). Staff was instructed to
build their budget requests in such a manner as to fund each function adequately to achieve the
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function’s desired outcome even if it resulted in an increase to their budget. The FY 2014 budget
contemplates modest increases to some revenue sources, changes to benefits and increases to
staff compensation, significant one-time expenditures for large maintenance and repair items and
significant asset renewal and replacement expenditures and provides Departments with the
resources that they need to achieve the desired outcomes of their functions.

Public safety, road maintenance, improvement and construction, and expanding the utility into a
self-sustaining enterprise as well as investing in employees are all priorities in FY 2014. The
most significant priority change was a new focus on maintaining existing county assets. Other
new priorities, smaller budgeted amounts but yet very important, include development of a long-
term emergency operations preparedness plan for which one new FTE was approved, increasing
the size of the operating contingency from $750K to $1.5 million, revising out-of-date
ordinances and resolutions where necessary and improving transparency through additional
public service announcements and radio exposure.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Major industries in the Santa Fe County area center on tourism and recreation. These include all
associated industries such as food, lodging, arts and entertainment. Education and health care
also contribute a large portion of the jobs in the area. Professional scientific and management
industries also add significantly to the employment base of Santa Fe County. Government
employees comprise 43% of the workforce with 32,894 employees and the local hospital
employs a total of 2,000 employees. The County is the 7th largest employer with 846 employees
based on 2013 figures.

Economic development emerged as a key citizen priority of the quality of life for citizens of
Santa Fe County. As a result, this service area received more focus and more resources during
the FY 2015 budget process. Film and media, arts, culture and cultural tourism, and alternative
and renewable energy initiatives received targeted funding.

Santa Fe County is fortunate to have a large property tax base with a current assessed valuation
of $6.7 billion. In FY 2013 the County Assessor completed a County-wide reappraisal. This
reappraisal is intended to ensure that all properties have been captured on the tax rolls as well as
to ensure “true and correct” valuations of all properties in the County and is statutorily required
on a periodic basis. The taxable valuation comparison of tax year 2013 to tax year 2014
witnessed a decrease of $311 million or 4.8%. Given that the values are true and correct, the
result is a more fair distribution of the tax burden across all property owners. Property tax
collections continued to be strong in FY2014 with a slight increase up to 95.25 percent.

In FY 2014 Santa Fe County increased the budget for countywide gross receipts taxes by a very
conservative one percent. This increase represents the first time that gross receipt tax budgets
have been increased since FY 2009. Santa Fe County budgeted for the unincorporated GRTs
down just two percent in FY 2014 estimating that the GRTs had bottomed out.

A principal issue for Santa Fe County is the funding of a large regional water system which will
serve the Northern part of the County, which has historically obtained its drinking water from
wells. The Aamodt Settlement of water rights requires that a regional water system be designed
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and constructed. The cost of building this regional system will be borne by the Federal
government, the State of New Mexico and Santa Fe County. The current understanding is that
Santa Fe County” funding commitment will be approximately $24 million.

The County continues to strive to incorporate financial planning in its long-range vision to
remain solvent in the current economy. The County maintains the State mandated cash reserve
requirements as well as an additional one month’s operational reserve for all other county funds
that support operations.  Additionally, the County continues to maintain a $5.0 million
contingency reserve to assist if necessary in this recessed economy. Thus far the County has not
had to make use of the contingency reserve.

In this recovering economy, the County has both conscientiously and strategically maintained
sufficient reserves and continued to be conservative with revenue projections. This strategy has
enabled the County to not impact employees either by reduced salaries or furloughs. Actually
this strategy has enabled the County to increase contributions to health insurance for employees
continue cost of living increases.

Financial Policies

The County's accounting records for general government operations are maintained on a
modified accrual basis, with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable and
expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities are
incurred. Accounting records for the County's utilities and other enterprise activities are
maintained on an accrual basis.

In developing and maintaining the County's accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of the internal control structure. We believe that the County's internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of
financial transactions.

The State of New Mexico requires a balanced budget for each fund. The budget is reviewed by
the Governing Body and is formally adopted by the passage of a budget resolution. Santa Fe
County imposes this balanced budget standard in conjunction with the standard that recurring
expense in each fund be sourced with recurring revenue. A monthly report of major revenue
sources, costs category and fund expenses and major fund cash positions is produced and
reported to the Board of County Commissioners. Lastly, quarterly budget updates are approved
by the Governing body and submitted to the State Department of Finance and Administration
Local Government Division, pursuant to state law.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Santa Fe County
for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. In order to
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. This is the third
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year that the County has received this GFOA award. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Santa Fe County also received the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished
Budget Presentation award for the fiscal year 2013 Final Program Budget. The County has
received this award multiple times in prior fiscal years as well as for the past three consecutive
fiscal years. We believe our current budget continues to conform to program requirements.

Acknowledgments
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We wish to express our sincere appreciation to all staff members whose dedication and
professionalism made the preparation of the report possible. We would also like to thank the
staff from other County departments who assisted and contributed to its preparation. Finally,
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and Business Advisors LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the County Commission
Santa Fe County

and Mr. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, and the budgetary
comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue funds of Santa Fe County, New Mexico
(“County”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. We also have audited the financial statements of each of the County’s nonmajor
governmental funds, and the budgetary comparison for the major capital projects fund and all nonmajor
funds presented as supplementary information, as defined by the Government Accounting Standards
Board, in the accompanying combining and individual fund financial statements as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2014, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

§102792,-20Q34A¥023y M¥31D 248

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
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An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County, as of June 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the general fund and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in
our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of each nonmajor governmental fund of the County as of June 30, 2014,
and the respective changes in financial position thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for
the major capital projects fund and all nonmajor funds for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion on pages 16 and 26 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the County’s financial statements, the
combining and individual fund financial statements, and the budgetary comparisons. The Schedule of
Expenditures of federal awards as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, introductory and statistical sections, and
the other schedules as required by Section 2.2.2 NMAC are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of federal awards and other schedules required by Section 2.2.2 NMAC
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been

Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors LLC
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subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of
federal awards and other schedules required by Section 2.2.2 NMAC are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, in 2014 the County adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. Qur opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 14,
2014 on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 14, 2014

Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors LLC
Page 15
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MDA)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

As management of Santa Fe County (County), New Mexico, we offer the reader’s of the
County’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
County for the current fiscal year.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial statements, which follow the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, provide the
significant key financial highlights for fiscal year 2014 as follows.

e In the Statement of Net Position the County’s total net position of governmental activities
increased $28.6 million and business-type activities increased by $3.3 million. In total,
the net change of $31.9 million represents an increase of 8 percent from the prior year.
The County continues to have a strong financial position, operating reserves and assets
available to provide services to the citizens.

= In the Statement of Activities, the total governmental activities revenues amounted to
$134.2 million, of which general revenues from governmental activities accounted for
$113 million or 84.2 percent of all revenues from governmental activities. Program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants and contributions
accounted for'$21.2 million or 15.8 percent of total governmental activities.

® In the Statement of Activities, the total business-type activities revenues amounted to
$9.6 million, of which general revenues from business-type activities accounted for
$43,092 or 4 percent of all revenues from business-type activities. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services and operating grants and contributions
accounted for $9.6 million or 99.6 percent of business-type activities.

o In the Statement of Activities the County had $110.3 million in expenses related to
governmental activities, of which $21.2 million were offset by program specific charges
for services or grants and contributions. General revenues of $113 million were adequate
to provide for the remaining costs of these programs. The County had $6.1 million in
expenses related to business-type activities. These expenses were offset by program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services and operating grants and
contributions of $9.6 million.

e The General Fund had $64.2 million in revenues, which primarily consisted of taxes,
charges for services and interest earnings. The total expenditures of the General Fund
were $30.8 million. The General Fund’s fund balance increased $3.5 million, partially
due to an increase in property tax collections and decreased expenditures witnessed for
public safety, culture and recreation, health and welfare, and capital improvements.
Additionally, the transfers to other funds decreased by $1.8 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the County’s basic
financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes
to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.
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Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the County’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the county is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal period (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated
absences).

The government-wide financial statements of the County’s activities are presented in the
following categories:

e Governmental activities — Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such
as general government, public safety, public works, economic development and culture
and recreation. Gross receipt taxes, property taxes, and intergovernmental revenues
finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — The services provided by the County included here are home
sales, regional planning, utilities and housing services. These services are primarily
financed through charges for services.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating the County’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds
with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
County’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

§102/7927204d3AY0234 MI31D I4dS
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the
General Fund, Fire Operations Fund, Capital Outlay GRT Fund, Developer Fees Fund,
Corrections Operations Fund, all of which are considered to be the County’s major
governmental funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds
is provided in the form of combining schedules.

Proprietary funds. The County maintains four proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its home sales program,
regional planning authority, utilities, and housing authority.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the county. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the County’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary
funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes (pages 46-81) provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information. Under New Mexico
Administrative code Section 2.2.2, governments in New Mexico must include the budgetary
comparison statement for the General Fund and major special revenue fund data as a component
of the fund financial statements within the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $399.7 million at the current fiscal year end.

A significant portion of the County’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.
land, construction in progress, infrastructure, buildings and improvements, and vehicles, furniture
and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The
County uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other resources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities. In addition, an amount of $72.8 million of the County’s resources are restricted
for the specified purposes of debt service repayment and capital outlay investment.

The County’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net
results of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital
assets, and the depreciation of capital assets. At fiscal year end, the County reported positive
balances in all categories of net assets. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. The
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

significant current year transaction was the addition of $13.5 million of governmental capital
assets. The following table presents a summary of the County’s net assets for the fiscal years
ending June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2013.

Government-wide Statement of Net Position

pA L) b1 ]
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-fvpe
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cunrert and other assets § 223550383  § 15,357,680 $ 238908063 § 22792795 § 10891211 § 233,684,006
Capital assets, net 249519,178 141,724,433 391.243.631 236,036,224 143,021,433 3719.057 657

Total Assets 473,069,561 157.082.133 630.131.694 438.829.01% 13391264 612,741,663
LIABILITIES
Current and other liabilities 23081392 683,600 23,764,992 14,333,928 772,059 15,125,987
Long-term liabilities 206,643,646 206,643 646 229.715.678 - 219715678

Total Liabilities 229,725.038 683.600 230.408.638 244.069.606 772,059 244,841,663
NET POSITION
Net Imestment in

capital assels 45,169,178 141,724 453 186 893 631 24 886,224 143,021.433 167,907,657
Restricted
Restricted for:

Cortractual & stattory

Requiremenis 51,386,816 - 51386816 68,713 382 - 68,723,382

Debt service 13,372,767 - 13.372,767 12,976,499 - 12,976,499

Capital outlay 39,458,036 - 39,458,056 66 080 878 - 66,080,878
Unestncted 73,957,706 14.674.080 88.631.786 42092 430 10,119.152 52,211,582

Total net position 3 243344523 § 136,398.533 $ 399.743056 $ 214759413 § 1353,140.585  §  367.899.998

Government-wide Statement of Net Position

$400,000,000
$350,000,000
$300,000,000
$250,000,000
$200,000,000
$150,000,000
$100,000,000

$50,000,000

$-
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
m 2014 $243,344,523 $156,398,533 $399,743,056

m2013 $214,759,413 $153,140,585 $367,899,998

Changes in net position. The County’s total revenues for the current fiscal year were
$143.9 million. The total cost of all programs and services was $116.4 million. The following
table presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014
and June 30, 2013.

Page 19
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2014 2013
Changes in Net Position Changes in Net Position
Govenmental  Business-type Governmental ~ Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 11,296,751 § 9,048,155 § 20344906 $ 11,836,097 $ 3,765,599 § 15,601,69
Operating grants and
contributions 8,815,053 524,444 9,339,497 9,732,956 423,198 10,156,154
Capital grants and
contributions 1,094,790 - 1,094,790 2,398,552 - 2,398,552
General revenues
Property taxes, levied for debt svc. 11,325,637 - 11,325,637 11,068,955 - 11,068,955
Property taxes, levied for general 48,407,990 - 48,407,990 39,430,031 - 39,430,031
Gross receipt taxes 47,999,014 - 47,999,014 39,875,559 - 39,875,559
Other taxes 1,262,783 - 1,262,783 6,063,738 - 6,063,758
Miscellaneous Revenue 2,159,729 - 2,159,729 - - -
Investment income 1,883,376 43,092 1,926,468 2973577 31,879 3,005,456
Total revenues 134,245,123 9,615,691 143,860,814 123,379,485 4,220,676 127,600,161
Expenses
General government 23,975,201 - 23,975,201 24,478,996 - 24,478,996
Public safety 46,116,609 - 46,116,609 45,927,496 - 45,927,496
Culture and recreation 2,072,097 - 2,072,097 2322,140 - 2,322,140
Public works 5,200,881 - 5,200,881 5,865,205 - 5,865,205
Highways and strects 12,146,864 - 12,146,864 15,372,975 - 15,372,975
Health and welfare 10,363,114 - 10,363,114 7,997,909 - 7,997,909
Interest on long-term debt 7,426,852 - 7,426,852 8,826,158 - 8,826,158
Home Sales 14,023 14,023 - 256,773 256,773
Regional Planning Authority - 13,543 13,543 - 30,036 30,036
Utilities Department - 4,977,961 4,977,961 - 5,920,643 3,920,643
Housing Services 2,956,709 1,139,191 4,095,900 3,104,389 1,174,668 4,279,057
Total expenses 110,258,327 6,144,718 116,403,045 113,895,268 7,382,120 121,277,388
Increase (decrease) in net
assets before transfers 23,986,796 3,470,973 27,457,769 0484217 (3,161,444) 6,322,773
Transfers - - - (319,043) 319,043 -
Change in net position § 23986,796 § 3470973 § 27457769 § 9165174  § (2,842401) § 6322773

Governmental and Business-type activities. The following table presents the cost of the twelve
(12) major County functional activities. The table also shows each function’s net cost (total cost
less charges for services generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for
specific programs). The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the State and
County’s taxpayers by each of these functions.
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2014 2013
Net (Expense)/ Net (Expense)/
Total Expenses Revenue Total Expenses Revenue
Governmental Activities
General government $ 23,975,201 $ (20,076,917) $ 24,478,996 $ (19,549,181)
Public safety 46,116,609 (33,946,570) 45,927,496 (32,878,895)
Culture and recreation 2,072,097 (1,804,792) 2,332,140 (2,319,708)
Public works 5,200,881 (4,945,845) 5,865,205 (5,080,827)
Highways and streets 12,146,864 (11,498,926) 15,372,972 (14,784,413)
Health and welfare 10,363,114 (8,989,306) 7,997,909 (5,807,386)
Housing 2,956,709 (362,525) 3,104,389 (681,092)
Interest on long-term debt 7,426,852 (7,426.852) 8,826,158 (8,826,158)
Total $ 110,258,327 3 (89,051,733) 3 113,905,265 3 (89,927,660)

Business-type Activities

Home Sales 3 14,023 $ 17,015 $ 256,773 $ (256,773)
Regional planning authority 13,543 (13,543) 30,036 (15,888)
Utilities 4,977,961 3,007,167 5,920,643 (2,585,277)
Housing services 1,139,191 (182,758) 1,174,668 (335,385)

Total $ 6,144,718 $ 2,827,881 $ 7,382,120 3 (3,193,323)

Revenues by Source -
Governmental Activities
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e The cost of all governmental activities this year was $110.3 million; the decrease of $3.6
million from the prior year was primarily due to a decrease in expenses for general
government, culture and recreation, public works, highways and streets, and housing
which were also offset by increases relative to public safety, and health and welfare. The
increase witnessed in public safety can be attributed to an increase in staffing for the
Sheriff’s Office for both field operations and the opening of the new Judicial Center.

e The cost of all business-type activities this year was $6.1 million, a decrease of $1.2
million from the prior year. The decrease was witnessed in home sales and in utilities.

e Charges for services and contributions subsidized certain governmental programs and
business-type programs with revenues of $30.8 million, an increase of $2.6 million from
the prior year. The increase may be attributed to the receipt of $5.4 million specific to
the Aamodt settlement, which the County will use to fund a regional water system in the
northern part of Santa Fe County. The overall increase was offset by decreases to
general government, public safety and health and welfare. The revenues reflected within
operating grants and contributions witnessed a decrease of $816,657 due to decreases in
general government, public works and health and welfare.

e Net cost of governmental activities of $89.1 million was financed by general revenues,
which are made up primarily of property taxes and gross receipts taxes of $96.4 million.
The majority of costs can be attributed to general government, public safety and
highways and streets.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the County’s governmental funds is on near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
County’s financing requirement. In particular, unreserved fund balances may serve as a useful
measure of the County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the County as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. As the
County completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $197.1
million, an increase of $4.5 million.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the County. The General Fund’s fund
balance increased $3.5 million to $72.9 million at year end. The increase can be attributed to
increased collections of taxes and reduced expenditures in public safety, culture and recreation,
and health and welfare. The increase also resulted from reduced transfers to other funds.

The Developer Fees Fund is major fund and reflects a decrease in fund balance of $202,734,
which can be attributed to decreased collections of charges for services and was offset by a slight
increase in interest earnings. Also, the Corrections Operations Fund saw an increase of $903,580
in fund balance. The increase is minimal due to increased interest earnings, federal grants and
intergovernmental revenues that were offset by decreased charges for services and transfers from
other funds.
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The Fire Operations Fund was reflected as a major fund this fiscal year and witnessed an increase
of $594,558 in fund balance. The increase is due to increased gross receipt tax collections and
decreased expenditures.

Proprietary funds. Net position of the Enterprise Funds increased by $3.5 million to $156.4
million at year end. The increase can be attributed to a slight increase in the utilities customer
base due to the annexation agreement with the City of Santa Fe as well as the receipt of $5.4
million for the Aamodt settlement reflected in charges for services.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The fiscal year 2014 budget was developed using a results-accountable, performance-based
budgeting methodology and marked the second transitional year to this form of budgeting. Staff
was instructed to build their budget requests in such a manner as to fund each function adequately
to achieve the function’s desired outcome even if it resulted in an increase to the budget.

The fiscal year 2014 budget totaled $236.0 million of which $54.4 million represented interfund
transfers. Excluding these transfers the total fiscal year 2014 budget was $182.6 million. This
represents a $3.3 million decrease from the fiscal year 2013 budget.

The vast majority of the County’s budget was within its special revenue funds totaling $95.8
million. A distant second majority was the General Fund totaling $76.6 million. The remainder
of the budget was comprised of capital improvement funds ($39.4 million), debt service funds
($18.6 million) and enterprise funds ($5.5 million).

Many of the funding priorities remained from fiscal year 2013 to fiscal year 2014. Public safety,
road maintenance, improvement and construction, and expanding the utility into a self-sustaining
enterprise as well as investing in employees were all priorities that carried over from FY 13 to FY
14. The Public Safety Department (including the Sheriff’s Office) continued to have the largest
operating budget of any department in the County. The General Fund heavily supported these
operations by transferring funds. Road maintenance, improvement and construction of new roads
are a perpetual priority for the citizens and the Commission. In FY 14 the road maintenance
budget was increased and as a result, General Fund support also increased from $4.5 million in
FY 13 to $5.5 million in FY 14. Expanding the Water and Wastewater Utility to become a self-
sustaining enterprise is underway. In FY 14 there will be a large increase to the Ultility’s
customer base due to service phasing agreements made with the City of Santa Fe as part of an
annexation settlement agreement. The level of investment in employees increased in FY 14 and
totaled more than $4.0 million across all funds. Funding was approved for cost of living
increases, retention incentive payments, creation of a merit pool, restructuring of the County
contribution to health insurance for employees making under $50,000/year, additional education
benefits, improvement to the physical work environment and capital funding to provide better
equipment with which employees do their work.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. At year end, the County had invested $14.5 million in capital assets, including
buildings, water systems, facilities, vehicles, computers, equipment, and infrastructure assets.
This amount represents a net increase prior to depreciation of $12.2 million. Total depreciation
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expense for the current fiscal year was $13.5 million. The following schedule presents capital
asset balances for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2013.

Additional information on the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 Capital Assets,
pages 62-67. Lastly, the County completed the following projects at the end of fiscal year 2014 —
SFC Town of Edgewood Fire Station, Caja Del Rio Road and Vista Grande Library Addition.

Debt Administration.

As of As of
Govermmental Activities June 30. 2014 June 30, 2013
IL.and $ 36,435,442 h 35,340,699
Buildings and improvements $ 180,608,832 172,203,661
Infrastructure $ 70,213,172 45,632,861
Vehicles, Furn. Fixtures & Equip. $ 61,076,417 58,368,294
Construction in progress $ 5,495,935 6,263,113
Right of way land $ 10,109,940 10,109,940
Less: Accumulated depreciation $ (114.420,560) (91.882.344)
Total 249,519,178 5 236.036.224
Business-type Activities
Land $ 2,165,532 g 2.164.596
Buildings and improvements $ 7,858,096 7,858,096
Water systems $ 122,210,296 121,174,258
Vehicles, Furn. Fixtures & Equip. 3 1,143,723 1,039,991
Construction in progress $ 428,419 43,814
Water rights $ 21,704,696 21,704,696
Less: Accumulated depreciation $ (13.786.309) (10.964.017)
Total 141,724,453 5 143.021.434

At year end, the County had $214.5 million in long-term debt

outstanding. The following table presents a summary of the County’s outstanding long-term debt
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2013. Additional information on the
County’s debt can be found in Note 9 Bonds Payable, pages 66 through 68.

2014 2013

Bonds payable $127,010,000 $133,455,000

Revenue bonds payable $ 87.460.000 $ 90.600.000
TOTAL $214.470,000 $224,055,000

State statutes currently limit the amount of general obligation debt a County may issue for general
purposes to 4 percent of its total assessed property valuation. The current debt limitation for
general purposes for the County is $270 million. State statute currently does not limit the amount
of general obligation debt a County may issue for Water and Wastewater systems. Debt service
per capita in fiscal year 2014 totals $127.60; $76.15 for general obligation debt service and
$51.45 for revenue bond and other debt service.



Page 25

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MDA)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

Credit Ratings. The financial condition of the County is strong as reflected by the County’s
bond rating of AA+ from Standard & Poor for the General Obligation Series 2013. Such a rating
was assigned given that the County’s restricted revenues provide satisfactory debt service
coverage, the County has a large and diverse tax base and the County maintains solid financial
operations with strong reserves.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

In fiscal year 2015 Santa Fe County continued with its transition to a performance-based budget.
With the up-to-date priorities revealed by the citizen survey conducted during FY2014, input
from various advisory boards, and direct input from citizens to their Commissioners, the County’s
budget was developed. Priorities included public safety, roads, expansion of the utility into a
self-sustaining enterprise as well as investing in employees. The most significant priority change
was in the area of economic development and the funding of contractual services for three of the
County’s open space properties to complete management plans that will address safety issues and
ensure a balance between the preservation and public use of properties.

The fiscal year 2015 established budget totaled $235.2 million, or $182 million excluding inter-
fund transfers. This budget was actually $815,825 less than the prior year budget of $235.9
million. In fiscal year 2015 revenue projections supported a slight increase in property tax based
on trend analysis of collections from the past three years and a small increase 3 percent increase
for countywide gross receipts taxes.

| SANTA FE COUNTY FY 2015
SOURCES & USES BUDGET BY FUND TYPE
$235,158,556

. Debt Service Funds
Capital Improvement 18,969,088 Enterprise Funds
Funds 5,697,227

31,061,424 —
el

General Fund
81,232,687

Special Revenue
Funds
98,198,130
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Changes from the fiscal year 2014 budget resulted in a decrease across all funds from fiscal year
2014 to fiscal year 2015.

Major changes in the General Fund (101) are:

e Increased the Asset Renewal and Replacement package (formerly known as the

capital package) and set asides ($2.0M).
e Decreased General Fund support of the Road Fund ($0.6 M).
e Increased General Fund support of the Law Enforcement Operations Fund ($0.4
M).

e Increased General Fund support of the Corrections Operations Fund ($0.1 M).

e Addition of Renewable Energy program funding ($0.5M).
In FY 15 all capital improvement funds totaled $31.1 million versus FY 14 with total
capital improvement funding of $39.4 million.
The Capital Outlay GRT Fund was reclassified from a special revenue fund (213) to a
capital improvement fund (313). In FY 2014 the Capital Outlay GRT Fund budget was
$14.2 M but was increased slightly by $0.2 M in FY 2015.
The Fire Operations Fund (244) budget increased by $0.5 M.
The Regional Emergency Communications Center (RECC) Operations Fund (245)
remained flat at approximately $3.5 M. Since this fund has no significant funding of its
own, it is reliant upon transfers from other funds. In FY 2015 the Fire Operations fund
will transfer $3.4 M to the RECC.
Bond proceeds from the 2011 Series GOB were budgeted at $7.3 M across all project
categories. This is a decrease of $1.5 M from the FY 2014 budget.
Bond proceeds from the 2013 Series GOB were budgeted at $6.3 M, which is a decrease
of $2.1 M from FY 2014.
The County’s debt service schedule saw an increase of $346K from FY 14 ($18.6 M) to
FY 15 ($19.0 M).

We believe this written analysis and the accompanying financial reports will indicate to the reader
that Santa Fe County is in good financial health. Factors such as bond ratings, fund balances,
cash on hand and budget management, will reflect a positive financial direction and management.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customer, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s
accountability for the resources is receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional information, contact the Finance Division, Santa Fe County, 102 Grant Avenue, Santa
Fe, New Mexico 87501 or visit our website at www.santafecountynm.gov.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 175,792,424 14,837,044 190,629,468
Cash and investments - restricted 15,996,895 96,492 16,093,387
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectibles 31,025,552 264,783 31,290,335
Prepaid and other assets 735,512 16,332 751,844
Held for sale - Land - 35,000 35,000
Held for sale - Buildings/Improvements - 108,029 108,029
Capital assets, not depreciated 52,041,317 24.298,647 76,339,964
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 197,477,861 117,425,806 314,903,667
Total Assets 473,069,561 157,082,133 630,151,694
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,874,629 226,037 4,100,666
Accrued wages and benefits 2,427,031 73,789 2,500,820
Deposits held for others 251,155 271,069 522,224
Due to other governments - 112,622 112,622
Other current liabilities 484,176 83 484,259
Accrued interest payable 2,843,902 - 2,843,902
Long-term liabilities, due in one year 13,200,499 - 13,200,499
Long-term liabilities, due in more than one year 206,643,646 - 206,643,646
Total Liabilities 229,725,038 683,600 230,408,638
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 45,169,178 141,724,453 186,893,631
Restricted for:
Contractual & Statutory requirements 51,386,816 - 51,386,816
Debt service 13,372,767 - 13,372,767
Capital outlay 59,458,056 - 59,458,056
Unrestricted 73,957,706 14,674,080 88,631,786
Total Net Position $ 243,344,523 156,398,533 399,743,056
The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenoe and Changes in Net Assets

Capital Grants
Charges for  Operating Grants and Gover 1
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Contributi Contri Activities Totals
Primary Government
Govemnmental activities:

General government L 23,975,201 2,751,837 1,146,447 (20,076,917) (20,076,917)
Public safety 46,116,609 8,317,627 3,852,412 = (33,946,570) - (33,946,570)
Culture & recreation 2,072,097 - 2,499 264,806 (1,804,792) - (1,804,792)
Public works 5,200,881 - - 255,036 (4,945,845) - (4,945,845)
Highways & streets 12,146,864 9,392 63,598 574,948 (11,498,926) (11,498,926)
Health & welfare 10,363,114 50,824 1,322,984 (8,989,306) - (8,989,306)
Housing 2,956,709 167,071 2,427,113 (362,525) (362,525)
Interest on long-term debt 7.426.852 - - {7.426.852) - (7.426.852)

Total governmental activities 110,258 327 11,296,751 8,815,053 1,054,730 (89.051.733) - (89,051,733)

Business-type activities:

Home sales 14,023 31,038 17,015 17,015
Regional planning authority 13,543 - (13,543) (13,543)
Utilities 4,977,961 8,585,128 . 3,607,167 3,607,167
Housing services 1,139,191 431,989 524,444 (182,758) (182,758)
Total business-type activities 6,144,718 9,048,155 524,444 - - 3,427,881 3,427,881

Total primary government 5 116,403,045 20,344,906 9,339,497 1,094,790 (89,051,733) 3,427,881 (85,623,852)

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Gross receipts taxes

Other taxes

Investment income

Miscellaneous revenues

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year
Restatement (Note 20)

Net position, beginning of year, as restated
Net position, end of year

5 48,407,990 48,407,990
11,325,637 . 11,325,637
47,572,724 47,572,724

1,689,073 . 1,689,073
1,883,376 43,092 1,926,468
2,159,729 - 2,159,729
113,038,529 43,092 113,081,621
23,986,796 3,470,973 27,457,769
214,759,413 153,140,585 367,899,098
4598314 (213,025) 4385289
219,357,727 152,927,560 372,285,287
S 243,344,523 156,398,533 399,743,056

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2014

Total fund balance governmental funds $ 197,124,826
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Governmental capital assets 363,939,738
Less accumulated depreciation (114,420,560) 249,519,178

Some revenues will not be available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are recorded as deferred inflows in the
governmental funds.

Property taxes 5,844,726
Mortgages and down payment assistance 11,530,607
Receivables not available to pay for current period expenditures 2,013,233 19,388,566

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

§102/792,2003Q40238 M3y319 24S

a Accrued interest payable (2,843,902)
Compensated absences payable (3,093,389)
Loans payable (380,908)
Bonds payable (214,470,000)
Landfill closure and post closure costs payable (1,899,848) (222,688,047)
Net position of governmental activities $ 243,344,523

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,

the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Expenditures for capital assets
Less current year depreciation

Revenues in the governmental funds that provide current financial resources are not included
in the Statement of Activities because they were recognized in a prior period.

Property taxes
Mortgages and down payment assistance
Other receivables

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, loans, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net position.

The following table represents the changes in long-term debt for the fiscal year:

Change in revenue bonds payable

Change in general obligation bonds payable

Change in loans payable

Change in compensated absences payable

Accrued interest on long-term debt

GASB 65 write off of previously capitalized bond issuance items
Landfill closure and post-closure

Change in net position in governmental activities

19,692,692
(10,808,052)

(1,088,018)
1,166,649

(868,521)

3,140,000
6,445,000
53,554
216,963
427,866
1,135,318
16,016

$

4,457,329

8,884,640

(789,890)

11,434,717

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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23,986,796
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Revenues

Property Taxes $
Gross Receipts Taxes

Other Taxes & Assessments
Licenses, Permits, & Fees
Charges for Services

Fines & Forfeitures

Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total $

Expenditures
General Government $
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing
Capital Improvements
Total Expenditures $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE COUNTY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes

Page 38

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to
42,600,000 42,720,593 47,788,735 5,068,142
7,087,145 7,087,145 8,523,068 1,435,923
1,181,000 1,181,000 1,262,783 81,783
490,075 490,075 696,964 206,889
1,899,064 1,939,802 1,929,886 (9,916)
- - 660 660
1,260,000 1,260,000 1,576,111 316,111
40,176 48,176 356,264 308,088
90,000 90,000 844,336 754,336
611,000 611,000 668,483 57,483
55,258,460 55,427,791 63,647,290 8,219,499
20,593,137 23,879,631
75,851,597 79,307,422
34,190,541 35,006,216 21,554,003 13,452,213
35,268 226,668 212,282 14,386
1,180,778 1,533,140 910,186 622,954
6,307,425 7,189,576 5,693,738 1,495,838
25,000 8,126 - 8,126
1,839,527 2,198,130 1,810,025 388,105
178,447 180,923 173,059 7,864
331,429 1,092,341 916,729 175,612
44,088,415 47,435,120 31,270,022 16,165,098
750,520 640,520 640,520 -
(32,513,702) (32,512,822) (30,512,822) 2,000,000
(31,763,182) (31,872,302) (29,872,302) 2,000,000
2,504,966
505,399
(742,334)
(879,640)
2,078,261
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ 3,466,652

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Developer Fees
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Non - GAAP
Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to

Revenues

Property Taxes $ -
Gross Receipts Taxes -
Other Taxes & Assessments -
Licenses, Permits, & Fees -
Charges for Services -
Fines & Forfeitures -
Interest Earnings -
Grants -
Other -
Intergovernmental -

Total Revenues -

Cash balance carryforward 568,800 590,854

Total $ 568,800 590,854

Expenditures

General Government $ -
Public Safety -
Culture & Recreation -
Public Works -
Highways & Streets -
Housing -
Capital Improvements -
Health &-Welfare -

Housing 568,880 590,854

203,947

386,907

Total Expenditures $ 568,880 590,854

203,947

386,907

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $ -
Transfers to other funds -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis

3 (202,734)

$ (202,734)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Revenues

Property Taxes

Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Fire Operations

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes

Page 40

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Final to
Original Final Actual Actual
$ - - N -
7,616,410 7,616,410 8,521,700 905,290
31,000 31,000 36,736 5,736
750,000 750,000 740,470 (9,530)
885,483 1,217,626 430,858 (786,768)
- 139,720 144,608 4,888
270,000 270,000 306,627 36,627
9,552,893 10,024,756 10,180,999 156,243
581,650 1,468,930
$ 10,134,543 11,493,686
$ - . . -
10,762,271 12,121,414 10,570,784 1,550,630
$ 10,762,271 12,121,414 10,570,784 1,550,630
$ 4,037,249 4,037,249 4,037,249 -
(3,409,521) (3,409,521) (3,409,521) -
$ 627,728 627,728 627,728 -
$ 237,943
$ 263,679
(157,927)
(80,232)
331,095
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ 594,558

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Corrections Operations
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to
Revenues
Property Taxes $ - - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - -
Other Taxes & Assessments - - - -
Licenses, Permits, & Fees - - - -
Charges for Services 5,962,799 5,962,799 6,702,952 740,153
Fines & Forfeitures - - - -
Interest Earnings - - 142,512 142,512
Grants 40,000 40,000 36,910 (3,090)
Other 45,000 45,000 64,795 19,795
Intergovernmental 70,000 70,000 106,227 36,227
Total Revenues 6,117,799 6,117,799 7,053,396 935,597
Cash balance carryforward 2,000,000 4,251,111
Total $ 8,117,799 10,368,910
Expenditures
General Government $ - - - -
Public Safety 22,812,863 25,097,340 19,263,054 5,834,286
Culture & Recreation - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Highways & Streets - - - -
Capital Improvements - - - -
Health & Welfare - - - -
Housing - - - -
Total Expenditures $ 22,812,863 25,097,340 19,263,054 5,834,286
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $ 16,943,179 16,976,545 14,976,545 (2,000,000)
Transfers to other funds (2,248,115) (2,248,115) (2,248,115) -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 14,695,064 14,728,430 12,728,430 (2,000,000)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 518,772
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ 80,067
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes (1,704,613)
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes 2,009,354
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ 903,580

Page 41

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments

Cash and investments - restricted

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid and other assets

Held For Sale - Land

Held For Sale - Buildings/Improvements
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, not depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Deposits held for others
Other Current Liabilities
Due to other Governments
Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Regional

Planning Housing Total Enterprise

Home Sales Authority Utilities Services Funds
$ 4,354,322 208,041 9,584,447 690,234 14,837,044
- - 83 96,409 96,492
- - 247,406 17,377 264,783
- - 4,980 11,352 16,332
35,000 - - - 35,000
108,029 - - - 108,029
4,497,351 208,041 9,836,916 815,372 15,357,680
- - 23,573,442 725,205 24,298,647
- - 112,751,110 4,674,696 117,425,806
- - 136,324,552 5,399,901 141,724,453
4,497,351 208,041 146,161,468 6,215,273 157,082,133
3,670 - 206,484 15,883 226,037
- - 47,425 26,364 73,789
- - 141,818 129,251 271,069
- - 83 - 83
- - 112,622 - 112,622
3,670 - 508,432 171,498 683,600
- - 136,324,552 5,399,901 141,724,453
4,493,681 208,041 9,328,484 643,874 14,674,080
$ 4,493,681 208,041 145,653,036 6,043,775 156,398,533

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Operating Revenues

Rentals and charges for services & sales
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Housing

Administrative expenses
Bad debt expense
Depreciation expense
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest earnings on cash & investments

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

HUD operating subsidy & other intergovernmental - -

Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Income Before Contributions & Transfers

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Change in Net Position

Net position, beginning of year
Restatement (Note 20)

Net position, beginning of year, as restated

Net position, end of year

Regional
Planning Housing Total Enterprise
Home Sales Authority Utilities Services Funds
$ - - 3,183,286 431,989 3,615,275
31,038 - 5,401,842 - 5,432,880
31,038 - 8,585,128 431,989 9,048,155
14,023 2,843 - 911,283 928,149
- 10,700 2,253,461 - 2,264,161
- - 233,043 - 233,043
- - 2,491,457 227,908 2,719,365
14,023 13,543 4,977,961 1,139,191 6,144,718
17,015 (13,543) 3,607,167 (707,202) 2,903,437
- - 25,223 17,869 43,092
- 524,444 524,444
- - 25,223 542,313 567,536
17,015 (13,543) 3,632,390 (164,889) 3,470,973
17,015 (13,543) 3,632,390 (164,889) 3,470,973
4,476,666 221,584 142,025,410 6,416,925 153,140,585
- - (4,764) (208,261) (213,025)
4,476,666 221,584 142,020,646 6,208,664 152,927,560
$ 4,493,681 208,041 145,653,036 6,043,775 156,398,533

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers

Cash received from water rights

Cash payments to supplies for goods and services

Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital and related financing
Operating grants received
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment Eamings
Purchases of assets
Sales of held for sale assets
Net cash provided by (used for) investing
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (L oss) to

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Bad debt expense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Prepaid and other assets
Receivables
Accounts Payable
Accrued payroll and employee benefits
Due to other governments
Deposits held for others
Other liabilities
Total Adjustments
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities

Non-cash capital and financing activities
None

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

R

type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Regional
Planning Total Enterprise
Home Sales Authority Utilities Housing Services Funds

$ 195,880 14,489 3,397,457 422,295 4,030,121
- - 5,400,000 - 5,400,000
- (13,543) (1,243,943) (291,612) (1,549,097)
(85,364) - (1,044,781) (601,527) (1,731,672)

110,516 946 6,508,733 (470,843) 6,149,352
- - - 524,444 524,444
- - - 524,444 524,444

- - 25,223 17,869 43,092

- - (1,589,110) (46,301) (1,635,411)

215,823 - - - 215,823

215,823 - (1,563,887) (28,432) (1,376,496)

326,339 946 4,944,846 25,169 5,297,300
4,027,983 207,095 4,639,684 761,474 9,636,236

$ 4,354,322 208,041 9,584,530 786,643 14,933,536
$ 17,015 (13,543) 3,607,167 (707,202) 2,903,437
- - 2,491,457 227,908 2,719,365

- - 233,043 - 233,043

- - (3,323) (9,694) (13,017)

164,842 14,489 215,652 - 394,983

(71,341) - (92,283) 9,863 (153,761)

- - 9,681 2,754 12,435

- - 27,966 - 27,966

- - 19,290 6,286 25,576

- - 83 (758) (675)

93,501 14,489 2,901,566 236,359 3,245,915

$ 110,516 946 6,508,733 (470,843) 6,149,352

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities-Agency Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments - held in trust

Property taxes receivable
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits held for others

Taxes paid in advance

Due to other Governments

Undistributed taxes to other Governments
Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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SANTA FE COUNTY
June 30, 2014

Agency
Totals

$ 4,227,538

9,306,969

$ 13,534,507

$ 710,560

537,914

9,306,969

2,979,064

$ 13,534,507
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Santa Fe County (County) was established by the laws of the Territory of New Mexico of 1852,
under provisions of the act now referred to as Section 4-26-1 of the New Mexico Statutes
Annotated, 1978 Compilation. The County operates under the commission-manager form of
government and provides the following services as authorized in the grant of powers: public
safety (police, fire), highways and streets, sanitation, health and social services, low rent housing
assistance, culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general
administration services.

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The County’s significant accounting policies are described below.
Reporting Entity

The County’s major operations include public safety - sheriff and fire protection, emergency
communication operations, adult and juvenile detention operations; public works — roads, solid
waste, projects and facilities management, utilities (water and wastewater operations); certain
health, social and community services, general administration services, planning and zoning, low
income housing assistance, and the collection of and distribution of property taxes.

The financial reporting entity consists of a primary government and its component units. The
County is a primary government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate,
and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. Furthermore, component units
combined with the County for financial statement presentation purposes, and the County, are not
included in any other governmental reporting entity. Consequently, the County’s financial
statements include only the financial activity of those organizational entities for which its elected
governing body is financially accountable.

During July 1996, the Housing Authority's Board resigned and day to day operations became a
County responsibility. The Authority's operations are included in the financial statements as
County enterprise and special revenue funds. The Santa Fe County Housing Authority Enterprise
Fund is now known as Housing Services Enterprise Fund (Housing Services).

A. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) present financial information about the County as a whole. The reported

information includes all of the non-fiduciary activities of the County. For the most part, the
effect of internal activity has been removed from these statements. These statements distinguish
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

between governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes,
investment income and other items not included among program revenues are reported as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and the
fiduciary funds, even though the latter is excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as
are the proprietary fund financial statements. In addition, the fiduciary fund financial statements
are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
grantor or provider have been met. As a general rule the effect of internal activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements, however the effect of interfund
services provided and used between functions are reported as expenses and program revenues at
amounts approximating their exchange value. The County does not allocate indirect expenses to
functions in the statement of activities.

Fund Financial Statements — Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. In
addition, derived tax revenues, such as gross receipts and gasoline taxes, are recognized as
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

revenues when the underlying exchange transaction has occurred. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, gross receipts taxes, state shared taxes, charges for services, and investment
income associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual
and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Miscellaneous revenue is
not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received.

Grants and similar awards are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the grantor or provider have been met. Deferred inflows of resources also arise
when resources are received by the County before it has legal claim to them, as when grant
monies are received prior to meeting all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider.

The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting
funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column.

Property taxes recognized are net of estimated refunds and uncollectible amounts. Delinquent
property taxes have been recorded as deferred revenue. Receivables that will not be collected
within the available period have also been reported as deferred revenue on the governmental
fund financial statements.

Customer contributions owed to the Utilities Division for the extension of the water system to
their property are recorded as revenue when the customer begins to receive water service.
Customer contributions owed to the Ultilities Division are recorded as notes receivable and
deferred revenue if water service has not yet been extended to the customer. Mortgage
receivables owed to the Housing Services Fund when the homeowner purchased the property
under the Home Sales program is not owed unless the homeowner sells or refinances the
property. These mortgages represent the deferred profit from the sale of the property. Ten
percent of the mortgage balance is reduced each year the homeowner owns the property.
Deferred revenue is recorded until the homeowner sells the property or the mortgage receivable
is paid off.

The County reports the following major governmental funds.
General Fund — This fund accounts for all financial activities except those required to be

accounted for in other funds. It is funded primarily through property, gross receipts and other
miscellaneous taxes.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Developer Fees Fund — This fund accounts for funds contributed by Las Campanas Limited
Partnership and others for affordable housing programs and other projects. The fund was created
by the Board of County Commissioners. In prior years this fund had received approximately
$2.0 million in payments from the private Las Campanas housing development project and the
Affordable Housing program, which assists low income persons in the purchase of homes.
Current revenue is from interest on the cash balance of this fund and developer funds to assist the
affordable housing program. Mortgages funded by developers as part of an affordable housing
program are recorded to this fund.

Fire Operations Fund — This fund accounts for the funding and expenses of the County’s career
fire and emergency medical services. It is funded primarily through gross receipts taxes, charges
for ambulance services, and revenue from various grants.

Corrections Operations Fund — This fund accounts for the funding and expense of the County
Adult and Juvenile Detention Facilities, through charges for care of prisoners from outside
jurisdictions, property taxes, along with gross receipts taxes. This fund also accounts for
expenditures associated with the care of Santa Fe County adult and juvenile inmates. This fund
was identified as the Jail Facility Fund in prior years.

Capital Outlay GRT Fund — This fund accounts for a 1/4 cent gross receipt tax to be used for
various capital projects.

The County has elected to report all of its enterprise funds as major funds. The following are
major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

Home Sales Fund — This enterprise fund is used to account for the construction and sales of
housing to eligible buyers of affordable housing.

Regional Planning Authority Fund — This enterprise fund is used to account for the funding and
expense of the Regional Planning Authority, created by agreement between the City of Santa Fe
and Santa Fe County.

Utilities Fund — This enterprise fund is used to account for the funding and expense of the Water
and Wastewater utilities of Santa Fe County.

Housing Services Fund — This enterprise fund is used to account for the funding and expense of
the County's Public Housing Authority. Revenue for this fund is derived from housing rentals
and Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants and subsidies.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal operating revenues of the County’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for
sales and services. Operating expenses for this fund include sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund type:

Fiduciary Funds — The Fiduciary Funds are agency funds which account for resources held by
the County on behalf of others including inmates, bail money posted, seized and/or forfeited
amounts, court ordered writs of execution, and funds utilized by the multi-jurisdictional narcotic
task force. In addition, the County Treasurer Fund accounts for collections and payments to the
County and other recipient entities of property taxes, interest and penalties, billed and collected
by the County on their behalf.

C. Deferred OQutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows
of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County
does not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category.

Also, in addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has
three types of items, which arise only under modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualify for
reporting in this category. Accordingly, the items under the deferred inflows category (property
taxes, mortgages and down payment assistance, and unavailable revenue) are reported only in
the governmental funds balance sheet. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow
of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

D. Cash and Investments

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents at year end were cash in bank and investments held by the County.

New Mexico Statutes Annotated (NMSA) authorizes the County to invest public monies in the
State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool, interest-bearing savings accounts,
certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements in eligible depositories; bonds or other
obligations of the U.S. government that are guaranteed as to principal and interest by the U.S.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

government; and bonds of the State of New Mexico, counties, cities, school districts, and special
districts as specified by statute.

The State of New Mexico Local Government Investment Pool is a pool that is not registered with
the United States Securities Exchange Commission. Section 6-10-101, NMSA 1978, empowers
the State Treasurer, with the advice and consent of the State Board of Finance, to invest money
for short-term investment in securities that are issued by the United States government or by its
departments or agencies and are either direct obligations of the United States or are backed by
the full faith and credit of the United States government or are agencies sponsored by the United
States government. The Local Government Investment Pool investments are monitored by the
same investment committee and the same policies and procedures that apply to all other state
investments. The pool does not have unit shares. Per section 6-10-10.1F, NMSA 1978, at the
end of each month all interest earned is distributed by the State Treasurer to the contributing
entities in amounts directly proportionate to the respective amounts deposited in the fund and the
length of time the fund amounts were invested. Participation in the Local Government
Investment Pool is voluntary. The investment in the State of New Mexico Local Government
Investment Pool approximates the value of the participant’s pool share.

A significant portion of the cash and investment of funds of the County is pooled for investment
purposes. Equity in pooled cash and investments includes amounts in demand deposit accounts,
money market accounts, certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury securities, and repurchase
agreements secured by collateral with a market value greater than 102% of the value of the
agreement. The securities are held by a third party in the County's name. Repurchase
agreements are recorded at fair market value. Interest earned is allocated to the applicable
County funds based on the County's policy of allocating interest to those funds which is required
by law or by debt covenants. The remaining interest income is recorded in the General Fund.

Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost. Money market
investments and participating interest investment contracts with a remaining maturity of one year
or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair
value.

Certain resources set aside for the repayment of debt, State of NM and County required
contingency are classified as cash and investments — restricted on the statement of net
position/balance sheet, because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants or statutory and
other contractual requirements. Trust accounts, recorded in the Debt Service Funds, are used to
segregate resources accumulated for future debt service payments.

E. Investment Income

Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of
applicable investments.

Page 51

§102/7922003440034 M¥31D 248



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
F. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of
interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from
other funds.” All receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectible.

The County is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes for its own
operational and debt service purposes and for certain outside entities. Unpaid property taxes
attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied on November 1 and
are payable in two installments no later than December 10 and May 10. Collections and
remittance of property taxes are accounted for in the County Treasurer's Agency Fund. Amounts
are recognized as revenue in the applicable governmental fund types under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The property taxes receivable for the General Fund and
for the Debt Service Fund in the governmental fund financial statements are net of an allowance
for uncollectible. Refunds related to the settlement of property tax protests are only recorded
when the case is completed.

G. Inventory

Inventories on hand at year end were immaterial and therefore not included on the fund or
government-wide financial statements.

H. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

L Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land and improvements; buildings and improvements; plant;
vehicles, furniture, and equipment; construction in progress; computer software; and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of $3,000
or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Effective July 1, 2006, State law
requires capitalization of assets greater than $5,000. The County has elected to use the more
conservative threshold of $3,000 for internal tracking purposes. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized
as projects are constructed. Such assets, including infrastructure, have higher limits that must be
met before they are capitalized. Governmental capital assets of the County are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and structures 40
Improvements other than buildings 25-40
Infrastructure 25-30
Machinery and equipment 3-10
Furniture, vehicles and other assets 3-5

All additions to the infrastructure have been capitalized. The Utilities Fund consists of
engineering costs and other expenses to plan and build a water system. Depreciation expense is
recorded by the Utilities Fund over the estimated 50 year life of the water system. Proprietary
capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Assets Utilities Housing Services
Water system 50 years
Buildings 40 years 40 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years 10 years
Furniture, vehicles, other assets 3-5 years 3-5 years

J. Compensated Absences

The County’s employee vacation and sick leave policies generally provide for granting vacation
and sick leave with pay. Accumulated sick leave benefits in excess of 240 hours are eligible to
be “sold back” to the County upon an employee’s retirement at a rate of 50% of the excess leave.
Sick leave that is eligible to be sold back and vested or accumulated vacation leave is expected to
be liquidated with available financial resources and is recorded as an expenditure and fund
liability of those funds that will pay it. No liability is recorded for sick leave benefits that are
estimated or will be taken prior to retirement. In the entity-wide statements vested or
accumulated vacation and sick leave eligible to be sold back to the County are recorded as an
expense and liability as the benefits accrue to employees. The General Fund has been used in
prior years to liquidate the liability for compensated absences.

K. Long-term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types, long-term debt and

other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities on the statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts and the difference between the reacquisition price and net carrying
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

amount of the old debt are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight
line method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the term of the related debt.
Bond issuance costs are recognized as an expenditure in both the governmental fund types and
entity-wide financial statements when bonds are issued.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, and similar items when bonds are issued. The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.

L. Interfund Activity

Flows of cash from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as
interfund transfers. Interfund transfers between governmental funds are eliminated in the
Statement of Activities. Interfund transfers in the fund statements are reported as other financing

sources/uses in governmental funds and after non-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary
funds.

M. Budgets

Budgets are adopted on a basis inconsistent with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). Appropriations of funds unused or underspent during the fiscal year may be carried
over into the next fiscal year by budgeting those amounts in the subsequent year's budget. For
the current fiscal year actual to budget comparisons, the actual amounts are reported on the
budgetary basis, which differs from the modified accrual basis for governmental fund types and
accrual basis for the enterprise funds.

Differences between the budgetary basis and GAAP include the following:
1. The budget includes encumbrances (unperformed contracts for goods or services).

GAAP does not include encumbrances.

2. The budget does not include certain liabilities, receivables, and depreciation expense
for Enterprise funds. The GAAP basis financial statements do include these transactions.

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects, and the enterprise funds.

Department heads and elected officials are required to complete budget request forms for each
organizational unit. The County Manger’s Office prepares a management budget
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

recommendation based upon budget requests as well as Board of County Commissioner and
community priorities. The Commissions reviews the management budget recommendations and
makes changes as needed. The amended budget is then adopted and approved by
resolution. The Finance Division prepares the adopted budget for submission to the Local
Government Division (LGD) of the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) by June 1,
for interim approval.

Before July 1, DFA grants interim approval of the budget. The County's final annual budget
document, which incorporates any changes recommended by DFA/LGD is prepared and
submitted to DFA/LGD by July 31. During August, the County's final annual budget is reviewed
and certified by DFA/LGD.

After the annual budget is adopted, the following types of adjustments must be approved by the
governing body through a resolution and submitted to DFA for review and approval: 1) budget
increases, 2) transfers of budget or cash between funds, and 3) budget decreases.

Additionally, it is County policy to prepare an internal budget adjustment request form for the
following:

. Transfers within organizational units (between expenditure categories)
. Transfers between organizational units (same department and same fund)

Organizational unit budgets are monitored by the Finance Division to ensure that DFA and
County policy are being followed. Additionally, a mid-year budget review is conducted which
may include a hearing with the County Manager, Finance Division staff, and department heads
and elected officials. During the hearing, department goals and objectives and budget status are
reviewed. This review may result in budget adjustments.

The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. Expenditures may not legally exceed
budgeted appropriations at the fund level except for the following funds, whose legal level of
budgetary authority is at the program or district level:

Emergency Medical Services
Fire Districts

The following funds were not budgeted in fiscal year 2014:

Recreation Special Revenue Fund
Equipment Loan Debt Service Fund
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
N. Encumbrances

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting is used for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditures of monies to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, as an extension of
formal budgetary integration. In governmental fund types, encumbrances outstanding at year-
end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during

the subsequent year. Significant encumbrances, those greater than $200,000, are disclosed in the
Commitments and Contingencies Note 13.

0. Net Position

In the government-wide financial statements, net position represents the difference between
assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding back unspent proceeds.
Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net position
represents assets of the County not restricted for any other project or purpose.

P. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 — CLASSIFICATION OF NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES

Fund Balance Classifications:

Nonspendable — Represents amounts that are not in a spendable form, cannot be spent, or
required by legal or other contractual reasons to be maintained intact. This classification
includes permanent fund principal, inventory, assets held for sale, prepaids, and long-term
receivables net of deferred revenue. At June 30, 2014, the County had $735,512 in
nonspendable fund balance made up of prepaid insurance on boiler and machinery equipment
and prepaid insurance on law enforcement.

Restricted — Represents amounts that have been constrained by specific purposes stipulated by
external providers, creditors, grantors and other governments, constitutionally, or through
enabling legislation. At June 30, 2014, the County had $146,090,170 in restricted fund balance.
Restrictions included bond covenants restricted for capital projects, debt service restrictions,
grantor agency restrictions, and other contractual amounts statutorily restricted by State or
Federal law.
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NOTE 2 — CLASSIFICATION OF NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued)

Committed — Includes amounts that have been committed by formal action by the highest level
of authority for specific purposes (via Board of County Commissioners [BCC] action, resolution
or adopted ordinance-both equally binding) and can only be changed or lifted by the same formal
action. At June 30, 2014, the County had $1,212,627 in committed fund balance in the
Emergency Communications Operations Fund, which represents $250,000 in capital contingency
and the remaining fund balance in excess of statutory restrictions formally committed by the
Board of County Commissioners during the budget adoption for the operation of the Reglonal
Emergency Communication Center (RECC). Other committed amounts include a 1/ 12" (one
month) fund expense reserve in those funds that directly support County operations and
personnel totaling $2.2M in non major governmental funds, and $2.8M in major funds. This was
adopted by BCC Resolution No. 2008-47, establishing a budget policy, and continues to be
formally committed via resolution formally adopting the FY14 budget. In the General Fund,
there is an economic contingency reserve of $7.5M set aside via prior years’ BCC actions, to
help offset future budget shortfalls relative to unfavorable economic conditions. There is also
$6.3M in committed fund balance set aside for a loan guarantee with Santa Fe Film and Media
Studios for the construction of a film and multi-media production studio. Additionally, there is
$12M in fixed asset replacement set aside to replace obsolete, old, and disposed fixed assets.

Assigned — Amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes by the County, but do not
meet the definition of other fund balance classifications. Aside from the General Fund, this
category represents the residual fund balance classification for all governmental funds that
contain a positive fund balance in excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed amounts.
The County does not have Assigned Fund Balance balances as of June 30, 2014.

The authority to assign fund balance can be that of the Board of County Commissioners, or by an
official (usually the County Manager or County Finance Director) that has been delegated that
authority. The County had no assigned fund balance in the governmental funds at June 30, 2014, as
all fund balance amounts had been classified in their respective category.

Unassigned — This is the fund balance that is the residual classification for the General Fund not

contained in other classifications. Only the General Fund can report a positive unassigned fund
balance. Other governmental funds may have a negative unassigned fund balance after all
restrictions or commitments have been accounted for via other classifications. In the General Fund,
the unassigned fund balance at June 30, 2014, was $6.3M and represents residual fund balance
undesignated by other classifications.

The County applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which
either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available.
Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by
assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which
amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
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NOTE 2 — CLASSIFICATION OF NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued)

The following schedule presents fund balance classifications at June 30, 2014:

Capital
General Corrections Outlay Non-Major
Fund Developer Fees  Fire Operations Operations GRT Funds
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Insurance $ 122,035 - 64,673 286,294 - 262,510
Subtotal: 122,035 - 64,673 286,294 - 262,510
Restricted:
Debt Service 2,140,006 - - - - 11,232,761
Capital Projects - - - - 30,832,592 28,625,464
Statutory budget reserve 26,519,171 - - - - -
Other contractual &
statutory requirements - 1,302,112 6,175,470 6,205,061 - 33,057,533
Subtotal: 28,659,177 1,302,112 6,175,470 6,205,061 30,832,592 72,915,758
Committed:
Contingency reserve
above requirement 7,500,000 - 896,856 1,901,072 - 2,162,614
Loan guarantee-Santa Fe
Studios 6,300,000 - - - - -
Fixed asset replacement 12,000,000 - - - - -
Disaster recovery 5,000,000 - - - - -
Facility/infrastructure 7,000,000 - - - - -
Emergency
Communication
Operations - - - - - 1,212,627
Subtotal: 37,800,000 - 896,856 1,901,072 - 3,375,241
Unassigned: 6,325,975 - - - - -
Total Fund Balance $ 72,907,187 1,302,112 7,136,999 8,392,427 30,832,592 76,553,509

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

At year end, the carrying amount of the County’s deposits was $62,409,170 and the bank balance
was $66,155,241. The difference represents outstanding checks, deposits, and other reconciling

items.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the County’s deposits may not be returned. The County has a deposit policy for custodial
credit risk; which follows New Mexico law. All deposits with financial institutions must be
collateralized in an amount not less than 50% of the uninsured balance.
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

No security is required for the deposit of public money that is insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At year end, $1,284,103 of the County’s bank balance was
exposed to custodial credit risk as uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the

pledging financial institution’s trust department.

The pledged collateral by bank at year end consists of the following:

Deposits

Less FDIC coverage

Total unsecured public funds
Collateral requirement

Pledged securities, fair value
Pledged in excess of requirement

50%
Requirement

$ 66,155,241
1,748,000
64,407,241
32,203,621
88,840,364
$ 56,636,743

At year end the County’s investments consisted of the following:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10

Money market-investments $ 57479153 $ 57,479,153 $ - $ - $ -
State Treasurer’s Investment

Pool 53,509 53,509 - - -
Marketable CD’s 250,000 - 250,000 - -
U.S Treasuries 1,020,000 - 1,020,000 - -
U.S. Agencies:

Federal Farm Credit Banks 7,929,545 - 2,929,545 2,000,000 3,000,000
Federal National Mortgage

Association 24,936,693 - 17,456,440 6,480,253 1,000,000
Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation 18,154,575 3,009,087 10,997,330 2,652,042 1,496,116
Federal Home Loan Bank 36,122,803 1,000,299 11,476,980 14,035,387 9,610,137
Fing Corp FICO 4,893,000 - 4,893,000 - -
Total $ 150,839,278 $ 61,542,048 $ 49,023,295 $ 25,167,682 § 15,532,158

Interest Rate Risk - The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates. The weighted average maturity of the State Treasurer’s local government

investment pool was 50 days at year end.
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Credit Quality Risk - The County has an investment policy that would further limit its
investment choices. Risk classifications are limited to primary capital asset ratio of 6.1 percent
for “Class A”, 5 percent for “Class B”, less than 5 percent for “Class C”, and less than 2.5
percent for “Class D”. All of the County’s investments in U.S. Agencies in the preceding table
were rated Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service and AAA by Standard & Poor’s. The New
MexiGROW Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), a government investment pool is rated
AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and is authorized by the New Mexico State statute.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments - To control custody risk, State law and the County adopted
Investment Policy requires all securities and all collateral for time and demand deposits, as well
as repurchase agreement collateral, be transferred delivery versus payment and held by an
independent party required to provide original safekeeping receipts. Repurchase agreements
must be collateralized to 102%.

The County’s investment in the New Mexico State Treasurer’s Investment Pool represents a
proportionate interest in the Pool’s portfolio. The County’s portion is not identified with specific
investments and is not subject to custodial risk; however, separately issued financial statements
of the Office of the State Treasurer disclose the collateral pledged to secure the State Treasurer’s
cash and investments. The most recent report may be obtained by contacting the Office of the
State Treasurer, PO Box 608, Santa Fe, NM 87504-0608.

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments in securities of any issues, other than U.S. Treasury
Securities, mutual funds, local government investment pool, that represent 5% or more of the
total investments at year end are as follows:

% of
Amount Investments
Treasury Money Market $ 57,905,058 38%
U.S. Agencies
Federal Farm Credit Banks 7,929,545 5%
Federal National Mortgage Association 24,936,693 17%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 18,154,574 12%
Federal Home Loan Bank 36,122,803 24%
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NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

Governmental receivable balances, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts, as of year-end
for the County’s individual major governmental funds and non-major governmental funds in the
aggregate, were as follows:

Non-Major
General Developer Fire Corrections Capital Governmental
Fund Fees* Operations Operations Outlay GRT Funds

Accounts $ 252901 § - $ 8437033 $§ 3,757,536 § - 3 1,733,635
Taxes 6,950,608 143,858 1,386,418 - 1,548,222 4,644,669
Interest 242,585 - - 64,871 - 12,282
Grantor & other 121,029 - 229,450 - - 1,548,245
Mortgage Notes - 13,743,919 - - - -
Down Payment

Assistance - 529,600 - - - -
Less: Allowance

for uncollectible (29,086) (2,884,432)  (8,188,154) (3,189,468) - (30,169)

Net receivables $ 7,538,037 § 11,532,945 § 1,864,747 § 632,939 § 1,548,222 § 7,908,662

*Developer fees receivable fund accounts receivable are not expected to be collected within 1 year; therefore, are considered long
term assets.

Governmental funds report deferred inflows in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds
also report deferred inflows in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred inflows
reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned

Delinquent property taxes receivable (General Fund) $ 4,819,419 -
Mortgages receivable (Developer Fees Fund) 11,530,607 -
Charges for services receivables (Fire Operations Fund) 101,611 -
Delinquent property taxes receivable (Non-Major
Governmental Funds) 1,025,307 -
Charges for services receivable (Non-Major
Governmental Funds) 1,911,622 -

Total deferred revenue for governmental funds $ 19,388,566 $ -
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NOTE S — CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital asset activity for the current fiscal year follows:

Governmental Activities:

Land
Right of Way Land
Construction in progress

Total

Assets being depreciated:

Buildings &
Improvements

Infrastructure

Vehicles, Furniture,

Fixtures & Equipment
Total

Less: Accumulated
Depreciation
Buildings &
Improvements

Infrastructure
Vehicle, Furniture,
Fixtures, & Equipment

Total

Net Fixed Assets
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Balance

June 30, 2013 Balance
as restated Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2014
$ 35,340,699 344,899 - 749,844 36,435,442
10,109,940 - - - 10,109,940
5,439,516 6,023,913 - (5,967,494) 5,495,935
50,890,155 6,368,812 - (5,217,650) 52,041,317
172,203,661 3,187,521 - 5,217,650 180,608,832
65,454,745 4,758,427 - - 70,213,172
58,368,294 5,377,933 (2,669,810) - 61,076,417
296,026,700 13,323,881 (2,669,810) 5,217,650 311,898,421
(38,970,966) (4,736,582) - - (43,707,548)
(22,204,607) (2,179,411) - - (24,384,018)
(45,106,745) (3,892,059) 2,669,810 - (46,328,994)
(106,282,318) (10,808,052) 2,669,810 - (114,420,560)
$ 240,634,537 8,884,641 - - 249,519,178
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business Type Activities:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

JUNE 30, 2014

REGIONAL PLANNING AUTHORITY

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2013 Additions Deletions Transfers 2014
Vehicles, Furniture,
Fixtures, & Equipment $ 6,736 - (3,107) - 3,629
Total 6,736 - (3,107) - 3,629
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation
Vehicle, Furniture,
Fixtures, &
Equipment (6,736) - 3,107 - (3,629)
Total (6,736) - 3,107 - (3,629)
Net Fixed Assets $ - - - - -
UTILITIES DEPARTMENT
Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2013 as restated Additions Deletions Transfers 2014
Land $ 1,439,391 936 - - 1,440,327
Water Rights 21,704,696 - - - 21,704,696
Construction in progress 43,814 384,605 - - 428,419
Total 23,187,901 385,541 - - 23,573,442
Assets being depreciated:
Buildings &
Improvements 21,751 - - - 21,751
Water Systems 121,174,258 1,036,038 - - 122,210,296
Vehicles, Furniture,
Fixtures & Equipment 628,358 167,532 (93,032) - 702,858
Total 121,824,367 1,203,570 (93,032) - 122,934,905
Less: Accumulated
Depreciation
Buildings &
Improvements (9,030) (2,886) - - (11,916)
Water Systems (7,301,212) (2,426,913) - - (9,728,125)
Vehicle, Furniture,
Fixtures, & Equipment (475,128) (61,658) 93,032 - (443,754)
Total (7,785,370) (2,491,457) 93,032 - (10,183,795)
Net Fixed Assets $ 137,226,898 (902,346) - - 136,324,552
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business Type Activities (Continued):

HOUSING SERVICES
Balance
June 30, Balance
2013 as June 30,
restated Additions Deletions Transfers 2014

Land $ 725,205 - - - 725,205

Assets being

depreciated:

Buildings &

Improvements 7,836,345 - - - 7,836,345

Vehicles, Furniture,

Fixtures & Equipment 404,897 46,302 (13,963) - 437,236
Total 8,241,242 46,302 (13,963) - 8,273,581

Less: Accumulated

Depreciation

Buildings &

Improvements (2,999,062) (210,730) - - (3,209,792)

Vehicle, Furniture,

Fixtures, & Equipment (385,878) (17,178) 13,963 - (389,093)
Total (3,384,940) (227,908) 13,963 - (3,598,885
Net Fixed Assets 5,581,507 (181,606) - - 5,399,901

Business-type activities

capital assets, net $142,808,405 (1,083,952) - - 141,724,453

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities:
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General government $ 1,491,209
Public safety 5,254,103
Health and welfare 906,021
Culture and recreation 764,495
Highways and streets 2,392,224

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities

Business-Type Activities:

Regional Planning Authority

Utilities

Housing Services

Total depreciation expense — business-type activities

§ 10,808,052

$ -
2,491,457
227,908

$ 2,719,365
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Construction Commitments — At year end, the County had contractual commitments related to
capital projects for the construction of County road 98 and Caja Del Rio and other various
projects. At year end the County had spent $14M on the projects and had estimated remaining
contractual commitments of $6.6M. These projects are being funded primarily with bond
proceeds and capital outlay gross receipts taxes.

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASES

The County leases equipment and office space under the provisions of long-term lease
agreements classified as operating leases for accounting purposes. Expenditures under the terms
of the operating leases totaled $362,719 for the current fiscal year. The operating leases are
subject to future appropriation and, as such, cancelable by the County at the end of a fiscal year.
The future minimum rental payments required under the operating leases at year end, were as
follows:

Year Ending June 30:

2015 $ 103,910
2016 48,928
2017 50,020
2018 51,486
2019 52,121
2020-24 271,461
2025-29 150,385
2030-31 3,822
Total minimum payments required $ 732,133

NOTE 7 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on the County-
operated landfill when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and post-closure
care costs will be incurred after the date the landfill stops accepting waste, the County reports
these closure and post-closure care costs as a liability as of each balance sheet date. The County
closed the landfill during fiscal year 1997. The $1,899,848 reported as landfill closure and post-
closure care liability at year end represents management's estimate based on an expert hired to
estimate the costs for standard monitoring and compliance to 2027.
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NOTE 7 — LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE COSTS (Continued)

Annual ground water monitoring has demonstrated the County is in compliance with ground
water contamination. The County is required to perform monitoring of the ground water every
five years. The County estimates it will not expend any significant monies for post-closure costs
in the next fiscal year. Current year expenditures of $16,016 were paid by the General Fund.
These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-closure care in
fiscal 2014. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in
regulations; therefore, an amount due within one year is not recorded.

NOTE 8 - CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The County has issued Project Revenue Bonds to provide assistance for the El Castillo
Retirement Residences Project. The bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. At year end, there were two
series of Project Revenue Bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of
$10,920,000.

The County issued $3,000,000 multi-family Housing Revenue Bonds in August 1998 to provide
assistance for the construction of the Villa Grande Apartments. The bonds are secured by the

revenues and mortgage of the property. At year end, the amounts of bonds outstanding were
$2,820,000.

The County issued $7,400,000 of tax-exempt variable rate and $2,650,000 of taxable fixed rate
Education Facility Revenue Bonds in April 2008 to provide assistance for building an
elementary school for the Archdiocese of Santa Fe. The bonds are secured by Education Facility
Revenues. At year end, the amounts of bonds outstanding were $8,535,000.

Total conduit debt outstanding at June 30, 2014, was $22,275,000. The County is not obligated
in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities
in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 9 - BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable at year end consisted of the following outstanding general obligation and revenue
bonds. The bonds are both callable and non-callable with interest payable semiannually.
Property taxes or gross receipts taxes as applicable from the respective debt service funds are
used to pay bonded debt.
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NOTE 9 - BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

Sinking fund requirements for the Correctional System and GRT Revenue Bonds Requirement
revenue bonds are 1) 10% of the original principal amount of the bonds or 2) the maximum
annual debt service of the bonds or 3) 125% of the average annual debt service of the bonds. The

County has chosen option

2.

Revenue and general obligation bonds outstanding as reported in governmental-type activities at

year end were as follows:

Outstanding
Original Interest Principal Due Within
Purpose Amount Issued Rates Maturity June 30, 2014 One Year
Governmental activities:
General Obligation Bonds:
GOB Series 2005A - Roads, Public
Works, Water $ 20,000,000 4.0%to4.375% 7/1/25 $ 10,450,000 $ 500,000
GOB Series 2005 - Refunding 97 GOB 8,490,000 3.75%to 4.192% 7/1/16 2,980,000 950,000
GOB Series 2007A - Judicial Center 25,000,000 4% to 4.5% 7/1/26 20,050,000 250,000
GOB Series 2007B — Roads & Water 20,000,000 4%105.5% 7/1/27 15,800,000 500,000
GOB Series 2008 - Buckman Direct
Diversion Water 32,500,000 3% to 4.25% 7/1/24 25,900,000 1,000,000
GOB Series 2009 - Road, Fire, Water,
OS, Transfer Stations 17,000,000 3%to 4.3% 7/1/24 12,250,000 1,000,000
GOB Series 2010 - Refund 2001A &
1999 Series 13,505,000 2.125% to 3% 7/1/18 7,140,000 920,000
GOB Series 2011 — Refund 2001A &
Road, Fire, Water, OS, Transfer
Stations 17,500,000 2.5% to 4% 7/1/26 13,440,000 1,165,000
GOB Series 2013-Roads, Public
Works, Water 19,000,000 2.0% to 4.0% 7/1/28 19,000,000 350,000
Total 127,010,000 6,635,000
Revenue Bonds:
Correctional System 1997 30,000,000 5.0% to 6.0% 2/1/27 20,000,000 1,095,000
Sheriff's Facility - 1997A 6,000,000 5.0% to 6.0% 2/1/27 3,760,000 205,000
Subordinate Judicial Center — 2008 30,000,000 3.5% to 5% 6/1/33 26,520,000 445,000
2009 Series Capital Outlay GRT -
Water Rights 12,090,000 2% to 5% 6/1/29 10,000,000 490,000
2010A Series Capital Outlay GRT -
Buckman Direct Diversion 21,215,000 2% to 5% 6/1/30 18,295,000 825,000
2010B Series Capital Outlay GRT -
Buckman Direct Diversion 10,195,000 2% t0 4.25% 6/1/30 8,885,000 370,000
Total 87,460,000 3,430,000
Grand Total $ 214,470,000 § 10,065,000
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NOTE 9 - BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity on revenue and refunding bonds for governmental
activities at year end are summarized as follows:

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest

2015 $ 10,065,000 $ 8,872,993
2016 10,760,000 8,506,055
2017 11,650,000 8,098,846
2018 13,005,000 7,648,287
2019 13,445,000 7,149,638
2020-24 73,095,000 26,998,642
2025-29 69,435,000 9,914,677
2030-33 13,015,000 1,420,675
Total $ 214,470,000 § 78,609,813

In prior years, the County defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on
the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds
are not included in the County’s financial statements. At year end, $10,365,000 of defeased
bonds was still outstanding.

Pledged revenues — governmental activities. The County has pledged future gross receipts tax
revenues to repay outstanding revenue bonds of $87.5M as of June 30, 2014. Proceeds from the
original bond issuances provided financing for the acquisition and construction of major capital
facilities and water systems. The bonds are paid solely from the County’s gross receipts tax and
are payable through 2033. Total annual principal and interest payments for all gross receipts tax
revenue bonds are expected to require less than 18% of gross receipts tax revenues. Total
principal and interest to be paid on the bonds is $129.7M. The current total gross receipts tax
revenues were $47.9M and the total principal and interest paid on the bonds was $7.5M, or
15.6% of gross receipts tax revenues.
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NOTE 10 - LOANS PAYABLE

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the County entered into two non-interest agreements with
the New Mexico Water Trust Board and the New Mexico Finance Authority in connection with
water utility projects within Santa Fe County. The annual payments of principal are the
responsibility of the Capital Outlay GRT Fund.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the County entered into an agreement with the City of
Santa Fe to repay a portion of non-interest loan/grant agreements with the Water Trust Board in
connection with the Buckman Direct Diversion Project. The annual payments of principal are
the responsibility of the Capital Outlay GRT Fund. Annual debt service requirements to
maturity are summarized as follows:

Year ending June 30: Principal
2015 $ 26,094
2016 26,095
2017 26,094
2018 26,095
2019 26,095
2020-24 130,477
2025-29 119,958
Total $ 380,908

NOTE 11 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the current fiscal year was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 One Year

Governmental Activities:

General obligation bonds $ 133,455,000 - (6,445,000) 127,010,000 6,635,000
Revenue bonds 90,600,000 - (3,140,000) 87,460,000- 3,430,000
Loan Payable 434,462 - (53,554) 380,908 26,094
Landfill closure and post-closure

costs 1,915,864 - (16,016) 1,899,848 16,016
Compensated absences 3,310,352 2,709,878 (2,926,841) 3,093,389 3,093,389
Total $ 229,715,678 2,709,878 12,581,411 219,844,145 13,200,499
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NOTE 12 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

At year end, nineteen governmental funds were involved in borrowing arrangements with the
General Fund due to the existence of a negative cash balance. All inter fund balances are
expected to be paid within one year.

The Interfund Assets and Liabilities reported in the governmental fund balance sheet consist of the
following:

Receivables Payables

General Fund $ 1,345,930 $ 6,062
Developer Fees - 295,805
Fire Operations - 1,002
Total Major Funds 1,345,930 302,869

Nonmajor Funds:
Road Maintenance - 94
Indigent Services - 175
EMS Health Care - 598
Alcohol Programs - 590
Emergency Communication Operations - 275
Housing Capital Improvement - 44,645
GOB Debt Service 219,792 -
Jail Revenue Bond - 859
Community Development Block Grant - 111,234
Capital Projects-Federal - 2,282
State Special Appropriations - 59,560
GOB Series 2005 - 39
GOB Series 2007A - 144
GOB Series 2007B - 28
2008 GRT Revenue Bond-Judicial - 185
GOB Series 2009 - 319,169
GOB Series 2011 - 544,954
Equipment Loan Proceeds - 17,893
GOB Series 2013 - 160,010
GOB Series 2001 - 38
Facility Bond 1997 - 16
Fire Tax Revenue Bond - 42
GOB Series 2001 A - 23
Total Nonmajor Funds 219,792 1,262,853
Total County $ 1,565,722 $ 1,565,722
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NOTE 12 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014, are listed as follows:

Transfers from General Fund to

Property Valuation $ 97,874
Law Enforcement Operations 12,009,677
Correction Operations 10,405,429
Road Maintenance 5,458,341
Economic Development 500,000
Alcohol Programs 60,000
Farm & Range 5,000
GRT Revenue Bond 1,976,501
30,512,822
Transfer from Corrections Fund to
Correction Operations 220,000
Transfers from Environment GRT to
General Fund 610,520
Transfers from Capital Outlay GRT to
GRT Revenue Bond Debt Sve 3,163,377
WTB Loan/Grant Debt Svc 61,894
3,225,271
Transfer from Correction GRT to
Corrections Operations 4,317,750
Transfer from Indigent Hospital to
Indigent Services 1,738,011
Transfer from EMS Healthcare to
Corrections Operations 33,366
Transfer from EMS Hospital to
EMS Health Care 780,501
Fire Operations 4,037,249
4,817,750
Transfers from Alcohol Programs to
General Fund 30,000
Law Enforcement Operations 75,000
105,000
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NOTE 12 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Transfer from Fire Operations to
Emergency Communications 3,409,521

Transfer from Corrections Operations to
Jail Revenue Bond Debt Service 2,248,115

Transfer from GOB Series 2005 to
GOB Debt Service 33,738

Transfer from GOB Series 2007 to
GOB Debt Service 966

Transfer from GOB Series 2008 to
GOB Debt Service 1,775

Transfer from Capital Outlay GRT Bonds 2009 to
GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service 58,966

Transfer from Capital Outlay GRT Bonds 2010B to
GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service 21,326

Transfer from Facility Bonds 1997 to
GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service 2,880

Transfer from GOB Series 2001 A to
GOB Debt Service 8,667

Total Transfers Government and Enterprise Funds $ 51,366,444

The County records transfers to fund the operations and projects of other funds, to provide debt
service, and as otherwise needed and required. All transfers made during the year were
considered routine and were consistent with County transfer policy and adopted budget
statements.
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NOTE 13 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Encumbrances - In accordance with GASB 54, encumbrances are no longer presented on the
face of the fund financials. Santa Fe County’s significant encumbrances, those greater than
$200,000, for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, are listed as follows:

Nonmajor
Purpose Major Funds Funds Total

GIS Aerial Photography $ 210,676 $ -3 210,676
Santa Fe County's share of the Buckman

Direct Diversion Project 645,781 - 645,781
Sole Community Provider Payments - 1,317,565 1,317,565
Open Space-various projects 346,917 303,056 649,973
Northern NM Recreational Fields 355,000 - 355,000
Senior Center Improvements 1,275,605 - 1,275,605
Water Transmission Line —various projects - 467,722 467,722
Upgrade Youth Development Facility - 901,300 901,300
Total Significant Encumbrances $ 2,833,979 $ 2,989,643 $§ 5,823,622

Compliance — Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount, if any, of expenditures/expenses that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time, although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Lawsuits — The County is a defendant in a number of lawsuits as of June 30, 2014. It is the

opinion of management and County counsel that the amount of losses resulting from these
litigations at June 30, 2014, would not be material to the financial position of the County.
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NOTE 14 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS AND MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING

Significant JPAs and MOUs are as follows:

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency - Under authorization of the New Mexico State
Statute 11-1-1, Santa Fe County joined the City of Santa Fe to undertake their powers to dispose
of solid waste as mandated by state and federal regulations and provide a more efficient and cost-
effective method of solid waste disposal to the County and City citizens.

The County and the City established the Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency (Agency)
through a Joint Powers Agreement in February 1995, as a public entity separate from the County
or the City. The agreement delegated to the Agency the power to plan for, operate, construct,
maintain, repair, replace, or expand the facility. The County Commission and the City Council
approve the annual budget. The Agency has the authority to adopt revenue bond ordinances so
long as such an ordinance is duly ratified by the governing bodies of the County and the City. A
five member staff advisory committee was established by the agreement and is comprised of the
finance directors from the County and the City, the County public works department director, the
City utilities department director and the Agency director. A five member citizens' advisory
committee was also established. The Agency is charged to comply with all laws, rules and
regulations for operations under the permit issued from the New Mexico Environment
Department. The Board of Directors for the Agency consists of four members who are appointed
by the Board of County Commissioners and four members who are appointed by the City Mayor
with the approval of the City Council. The Board meets at least quarterly.

The start-up costs, design, land acquisition and construction were funded by equal contributions
from the County and City. The contributions and commitments from each entity to date is
approximately $6.0 million. The County did not contribute any funds to the Agency in the 2014
fiscal year. A final reconciliation has been done to ensure costs have been split equally between
the County and City. The facility opened in May of 1997.

The facility is to be self supporting for operations, equipment, future construction, debt service,
accumulation of a reserve fund and all other costs through fees charged to the County, the City,
and other private users. The land for the facility was purchased by the County and transferred to
the Agency. The facility itself belongs to the Agency. The Agency has adopted its rate ordinance
for use of the facility. If, for any reason, revenues are insufficient to pay costs of operations, the
Agency Board must notify the County and City in order to negotiate steps that are reasonable and
prudent in light of existing circumstances to ensure that any deficits accumulated or incurred by
the Agency are not allowed to impair the operation, integrity or credit worthiness of the Agency.
A bond issue was authorized in December 1996, by the Agency in the amount of $6,260,000 to
provide funds for the equipment required for the facility and the construction of the second
landfill cell.

Page 74



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 14 - JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS AND MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING (Continued)

The Agency has its own financial statements as a separate entity, audited on an annual basis.
Complete financial statements for the Agency may be obtained at the Santa Fe Solid Waste
Management Agency, 165 Caja Del Rio Road, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502-6189.

Closure of the facility must be approved by the governing bodies of the County and City. Upon
closure and sale of the facility, any proceeds remaining after settling all obligations will be split
equally between the County and City.

Buckman Direct Diversion (BDD) Water Project — The City of Santa Fe and the County
established a joint powers agreement for the Buckman Direct Diversion (BDD) water project.
The BDD project was the largest, single capital project for which the two local governments
address meeting the current and future needs of an adequate water supply within the area. Total
construction costs for the project were $224.2M. The Buckman Direct Diversion allows for full
access to the San Juan/Chama water rights and/or other native Rio Grande water rights held by
the City and County. The system routes Rio Grande surface water directly from the river through
a conveyance system to a new water treatment facility where water is conveyed to the various
users. Costs incurred have been recorded to the Utilities Department enterprise fund as additions
to water rights and the water system.

La Luz Holdings, LL.C, and Santa Fe Film and Media Studios Inc. (Studios) — The County
and La Luz Holdings, LLC, a New Mexico limited liability company, and Santa Fe Film and
Media Studios Inc., a New Mexico corporation, entered into a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) on January 14, 2009, to participate in an economic development project pursuant to the
Local Economic Development Act, NMSA 1978 Sections 5-10-1 through 5-10-13 (1993) (as
amended). Prior to the MOU, the County enacted Santa Fe County Ordinance No. 1996-07,
which provides for economic development projects within the County, and Ordinance No. 2008-
07 approving an economic development project with the Studios. Under the terms of Ordinance
No. 2008-07 and a Project Participation and Land Transfer Agreement dated October 26, 2010,
the County contributed to the economic development project of the film and multi-media
production studio by providing water, sewer, broadband and road infrastructure improvements,
and an annual water allotment sufficient to develop and operate the project without cost to the
Studios. The County entered into a grant agreement with the NM Department of Finance and
Administration and the NM Economic Development Department to plan, design, construct, equip
and furnish the Studios in the amount of $10M. There were no current fiscal year costs
capitalized.
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NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction
of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God. The County belongs to the
New Mexico County Insurance Authority (NMCIA) a division of New Mexico Association of
Counties (NMAC), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management
and insurance program for its member counties. The County pays an annual premium to NMCIA
for its general and law enforcement liability, automobile, property and workers' compensation
insurance coverage. The agreement for formation of the NMCIA provides that NMCIA will be
self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for
claims in excess of amounts that range from $150,000 for property to $300,000 for other liability
claims. The County carries commercial insurance for employee health and accident insurance.

NOTE 16 - PENSION PLAN - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION

Plan Description. Substantially all of the County’s full-time employees participate in a public
employee retirement system authorized under the Public Employees’ Retirement Act (Chapter
10, Article II, NMSA 1978). The Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) is the
administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public
employee retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement benefits, disability benefits, survivor
benefits and cost of living adjustments to plan members and beneficiaries. PERA issues a
separate, publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to PERA, PO Box 2123,
Santa Fe, NM 87504-2123. The report is also available on PERA’s website at
Www.pera.state.nm.us.

Funding Policy. Plan members (other than police and fire) are required to contribute 14.65% of
their gross salary; police are required to contribute 17.80% and fire is required to contribute
17.70% of their gross salary. The County is required to contribute 18.50% for police, 21.25%
for all fire and 9.15% for all other plan members. The County elects to contribute 10.99%
regular, 10.15% police, and 13.27% fire, of the employee required share of contributions. The
contribution requirements of the plan members and the County are established in State statute
under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of the
legislature. The County’s contributions to PERA for the years ended 2014, 2013, and 2012 were
$8.3M, $7.5M and $7.2M, respectively, which were equal to the amount of the required
contributions for each year.
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NOTE 17 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - STATE RETIREE HEALTHCARE
PLAN

Plan Description. The County contributes to the New Mexico Retiree Health Care Fund, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the
New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA). The RHCA provides health care insurance
and prescription drug benefits to retired employees of participating New Mexico government
agencies, their spouses, dependents, and surviving spouses and dependents. The RHCA Board
was established by the Retiree Health Care Act (Chapter 10, Article 7C, NMSA 1978). The
Board is responsible for establishing and amending benefit provisions of the healthcare plan and
is also authorized to designate optional and/or voluntary benefits like dental, vision,
supplemental life insurance, and long-term care policies.

Eligible retirees are: 1) retirees who make contributions to the fund for at least five years prior to
retirement and whose eligible employer during that period of time made contributions as a
participant in the RHCA plan on the person’s behalf unless that person retires before the
employer’s RHCA effective date, in which the event the time period required for employee and
employer contributions shall become the period of time between the employer’s effective date
and the date of retirement; 2) retirees defined by the Act who retired prior to July 1, 1990; 3)
former legislators who served at least two years; and 4) former governing authority members
who served at least four years.

The RHCA issues a publicly available stand-alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the postemployment healthcare plan.
That report and further information can be obtained by writing to the Retiree Health Care
Authority at 4308 Carlisle NE, Suite 104, Albuquerque, NM 87107.

Funding Policy. The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-13 NMSA 1978) authorizes the
RHCA Board to establish the monthly premium contributions that retirees are required to pay for
healthcare benefits. Each participating retiree pays a monthly premium according to a service
fee of five dollars if the eligible participant retired prior to the employer’s RHCA effective date
or is a former legislator or former governing authority member. Former legislators and
governing authority members are required to pay 100% of the insurance premium to cover their
claims and the administrative expenses of the plan. The monthly premium rate schedule can be
obtained from the RHCA or viewed on their website at www.nmrhca.state.nm.us.

The employer, employee and retiree contributions are required to be remitted to the RHCA on a
monthly basis. The statutory requirements for the employer and employee contributions can be
changed by the New Mexico State Legislature. Employers that choose to become participating
employers after January 1, 1998, are required to make contributions to the RHCA fund in the
amount determined to be appropriate by the board.
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NOTE 17 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS — STATE RETIREE HEALTHCARE
PLAN (Continued)

The Retiree Health Care Act (Section 10-7C-15 NMSA 1978) is the statutory authority that
establishes the required contributions of participating employers and their employees. For
employees that were members of an enhanced retirement plan (police and fire) during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 204, the statutes required each participating employer to contribute 2.5% of
each participating employee’s annual salary; and each participating employee was required to
contribute 1.25% of their salary. For employees that were not members of an enhanced
retirement plan during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the statute required each participating
employer to contribute 2.0% of each participating employee’s annual salary; each participating
employee was required to contribute 1.0% of their salary. In addition, pursuant to Section 10-7C-
15(G) NMSA 1978, at the first session of the Legislature following July 1, 2013, the legislature
shall review and adjust the distributions pursuant to Section 7-1-6.1 NMSA 1978 and the
employer and employee contributions to the authority in order to ensure the actuarial soundness
of the benefits provided under the Retiree Health Care Act.

The County's contributions to the RHCA for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were
$780,883, $733,493 and $707,098, respectively, which equal the required contributions for each
year.

NOTE 18 - RECENT AND NEW ACCOUNTING PRONCOUNCEMENTS

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In March 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This statement, which is effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012, establishes accounting and
financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows
of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes,
as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities. The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by
clarifying the appropriate use of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. The County
adopted GASB Statement No. 65 during fiscal year 2014. The County currently has no deferred
outflows. Deferred inflows are reported regarding property taxes, mortgages and down payment
assistance and unavailable revenue. During fiscal year 2014, the County included $1,135,318 of
previously unamortized bond issuance items in interest expense. The amount is not significant to
users of the financial statements and is included in current year expenses.

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 - an

amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62. This statement, which is effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012, amends Statement No. 10,
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NOTE 18 - RECENT AND NEW ACCOUNTING PRONCOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by
removing the provision that limits fund-based reporting of an entity’s risk financing activities to
the general fund and the internal service fund type. This Statement also amends Statement 62 by
modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a
straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the
principal amount of a purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to
mortgage loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current
(normal) servicing fee rate. The requirements of this Statement resolve conflicting accounting
and financial reporting guidance that could diminish the consistency of financial reporting and
thereby enhance the usefulness of the financial reports. The adoption of GASB Statement No.
66 had no effect on the County’s financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 25. This statement, which is effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2013, replaces the requirements of Statements
No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined
Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are
administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts)
that meet certain criteria. The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting
primarily through enhanced note disclosures and schedules of required supplementary
information that will be presented by the pension plans that are within its scope. The County is a
participant in the State of New Mexico’s Public Employee Retirement Association (PERA).
PERA as the plan’s administrator, implemented this new pronouncement during fiscal year 2014.

In April 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. This statement, which is effective for financial statements
for periods beginning after June 15, 2013, requires a government that extends a nonexchange
financial guarantee to recognize a liability when qualitative factors and historical data, if any,
indicate that it is more likely than not that the government will be required to make a payment on
the guarantee. This Statement requires a government that has issued an obligation guaranteed in
a nonexchange transaction to recognize revenue to the extent of the reduction in its guaranteed
liabilities. The requirements of this Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements
among governments by requiring consistent reporting by those governments that extend
nonexchange financial guarantees and by those governments that receive nonexchange financial
guarantees. The adoption of this pronouncement required the County to evaluate its guarantee
with the Santa Fe Film and Media Studios for the construction of a film and multi-production
studio in the amount of $6.3M. The County concluded that there were no qualitative factors or
historical data that required the County to record the guarantee as a liability on its Statement of
Net Position.
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NOTE 18 - RECENT AND NEW ACCOUNTING PRONCOUNCEMENTS (Continued)
New Accounting Pronouncements:

The following GASB pronouncements have been issued, but are not yet effective at June 30,
2014.

e GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. Upon adoption of this statement for the year
ended June 30, 20195, the Statement of Net Position will include a material liability for
pension participation in fiscal year 2015.

o GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations

e GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68

The County will implement the new GASB pronouncements in the fiscal year no later than the
required effective date. The County believes that the GASB 69 and 71 pronouncements will not
have a significant financial impact to the County or in issuing its financial statements.

NOTE 19 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of deficit fund balance of individual
funds. The Housing Capital Improvement fund had a deficit fund balance in the amount of
$8,460 as of June 30, 2014.

NOTE 20 - RESTATEMENT

Governmental activities net position at June 30, 2013 was restated in the net amount of $4.6
million as a result of the following:

e $18.9 million in infrastructure pertaining to roads had been internally tracked by the County;
however, the balance was not capitalized into infrastructure for the fiscal years 2004 through
2013.

e Approximately $8 million of accumulated depreciation on $31 million in infrastructure that was
capitalized as a result of the GASBS 34 implementation was not reflected within the Statement of
Net Position.

¢ An individual capital assets re-calculation of accumulated depreciation identified a variance in the
aggregately reported balances requiring restatement by approximately $6.3 million.

Page 80



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 20 - RESTATEMENT (Continued)

Enterprise activities net position at June 30, 2014 was restated in the net amount of $213,000 as a
result of an individual asset re-calculation of accumulated depreciation which identified variance
in the aggregately reported balances.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Capital Outlay GRT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Budgeted
Amounts Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Final to
Original Final Actual Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes $ - -
Gross Receipts Taxes 8,635,500 8,635,500 9,528,695 893,195
Other Taxes & Assessments - - - -
Licenses, Permits, & Fees - - - -
Charges for Services - - - -
Fines & Forfeitures - - - -
Interest Earnings - - - -
Grants - - - -
Other - - 15,000 15,000
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues 8,635,500 8,635,500 9,543,695 908,195

Cash balance carryforward 8,897,236 14,529,447
Total $ 17,532,736 23,164,947

Expenditures
General Government $ - - - -
Public Safety - - - -
Culture & Recreation - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Highways & Streets 749,607 1,475,940 505,879 970,061
Capital Improvements 13,477,566 18,463,736 5,144,457 13,319,279
Health & Welfare - - - -
Housing - -

Total Expenditures $ 14,227,173 19,939,676 5,650,336 14,289,340

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $ -
Transfers to other funds (3,305,563) (3,225,271) (3,225,271) -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (3,305,563) (3,225,271) (3,225,271) -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 668,088
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ (61,335)
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes (3,702,998)

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes 3,746,962

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 650,717
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Enterprise Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position-Budget to Actual
Home Sales
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
Operating Revenues
Rentals and charges for services & sales $ - - 383,804 383,804
Miscellaneous - - 12,757 12,757
Total Revenues - - 396,561 396,561
Cash balance carryforward 411,500 425,246
Total ) 411,500 425,246
Operating Expenses
Housing $ 411,500 425,246 13,059 412,187
Administrative expenses - - - -
Depreciation - - - -
Total Expenses $ 411,500 425,246 13,059 412,187
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest earnings on cash & investments $ - - - -
HUD operating subsidy & other intergovernmental - - - -
Total Non-operating revenues (expenses) $ - - - -
Net income(loss) before transfers: $ 383,502
Transfers from (to) other funds $ - - - .
Change in fund net assets $ 383,502
Reconciliation to GAAP basis income (loss):
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ (365,523)
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes 47,785
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted (59,510)
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes 10,761

Change in net position - GAAP basis  $ 17,015
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Enterprise Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position-Budget to Actual

Regional Planning Authority

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
Operating Revenues
Rentals and charges for services & sales $ - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues - - - -
Cash balance carryforward - 2,130
Total $ - 2,130
Operating Expenses
Housing $ - - - -
Administrative expenses - 2,130 - 2,130
Depreciation - - - -
Total Expenses $ - 2,130 - 2,130
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest earnings on cash & investments $ - - - -
HUD operating subsidy & other intergovernmental - - - -
Total Non-operating revenues (expenses) $ - - - -
Net income(loss) before transfers: $ -
Transfers from (to) other funds $ - - - -
Change in fund net assets $ -
Reconciliation to GAAP basis income (loss):
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ -
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes (10,700)
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted (2,843)

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -
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Change in net position - GAAP basis  $ (13,543)
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Operating Revenues
Rentals and charges for services & sales
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward

Total

Operating Expenses
Housing
Administrative expenses
Bad debt expense
Depreciation

Total Expenses

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest earnings on cash & investments

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Enterprise Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position-Budget to Actual

Utilities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

HUD operating subsidy & other intergovernmental

Total Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Net income(loss) before transfers:
Transfers from (t0) other funds

Change in fund net assets

Reconciliation to GAAP basis income (loss):

o

Depreciation expenses not recorded as budgetary expenditures

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
4,097,240 3,564,286 3,422,821 (141,465)
50,559 - 5,427,065 5,427,065
4,147,799 3,564,286 8,849,886 5,285,600
286,546 2,651,015
4434345 6,215,301
4,324,345 6,215,301 - 6,215,301
4,324,345 6,215,301 - 6,215,301
8,849,886
110,000 - - -
$ 8,849,886
$ (2,491,457)
(239,535)
(3,359,745)
(130,990)
1,004,231
Change in net position - GAAP basis $ 3,632,390



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Enterprise Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position-Budget to Actual

Operating Revenues
Rentals and charges for services & sales
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward

Total

Operating Expenses
Housing
Administrative expenses
Bad debt expense
Depreciation

Total Expenses

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest earnings on cash & investments

HUD operating subsidy & other intergovernmental
Total Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Net income(loss) before transfers:
Transfers from (to) other funds

Change in fund net assets

Reconciliation to GAAP basis income (loss):

Housing Services
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Depreciation expenses not recorded as budgetary expenditures

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Non - GAAP
Original , Final Actual Final to Actual
400,000 400,000 431,989 31,989
- 11,251 17,869 6,618
400,000 411,251 449,858 38,607
90,516 113,840
490,516 525,091
1,071,491 1,106,066 958,695 147,371
1,071,491 1,106,066 958,695 147,371
671,491 671,491 - (671,491)
671,491 671,491 - (671,491)
(508,837)
$ (508,837)
$ (227,908)
524,444
31,933
(10,222)
25,701
Change in net position - GAAP basis  $ (164,889)
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SFC CLERK RECORDEDO02/26./2015

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Grantor agencies receivable
Mortgages receivable, net
Down payment assistance receivable
Prepaids & other
Due from other funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Deposits held for others
Other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Property taxes
Unavailable revenue
Total Deferred Inflows
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
and Fund Balance
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet
All Non-Major Governmental Funds-By Fund Type

June 30,2014
Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Governmental Funds
$ 33,007,887 10,293,776 29,340,774 72,642,437
135,017 2,675,505 - 2,810,522
1,648,685 - 54,781 1,703,466
3,447,091 1,197,578 - 4,644,669
- 12,282 - 12,282
702,958 - 845,287 1,548,245
262,510 - - 262,510
- 219,792 - 219,792
$ 39,204,148 14,398,933 30,240,842 83,843,923
$ 1,703,173 - 343,313 2,046,486
686,430 - 6,212 692,642
131,484 - - 131,484
436,349 - - 436,349
46,377 859 1,215,617 1,262,853
3,003,813 859 1,565,142 4,569,814
- 1,025,307 - 1,025,307
1,645,057 - 50,236 1,695,293
1,645,057 1,025,307 50,236 2,720,600
262,510 - - 262,510
30,917,527 13,372,767 28,625,464 72,915,758
3,375,241 - - 3,375,241
34,555,278 13,372,767 28,625,464 76,553,509
$ 39,204,148 14,398,933 30,240,842 83,843,923




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues
Property taxes
Gross receipts taxes
Other taxes & assessments
Licenses, permits, & fees
Charges for services
Fines & forfeitures
Interest earnings
Federal grants
State grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing
Capital Improvements
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest
Commitments & other fees
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance, beginning of period

Fund Balance, end of period
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All Non-Major Governmental Funds-By Fund Type
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Total Nonmajor

Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects  Governmental Funds
$ 1,299,751 11,325,637 - 12,625,388
21,079,211 - - 21,079,211
426,290 - - 426,290
9,392 - - 9,392
618,703 - - 618,703
407,928 - - 407,928
6,460 26,960 65,526 98,946
722,072 - 391,530 1,113,602
3,461,703 - 703,260 4,164,963
740,354 40,504 75,192 856,050
2,420,137 - - 2,420,137
31,192,001 11,393,101 1,235,508 43,820,610
1,613,056 - 998 1,614,054
15,240,800 - - 15,240,800
397,415 - - 397,415

- - 507,144 507,144

10,077,796 - 5,993,088 16,070,884
7,652,268 - - 7,652,268
2,579,703 - - 2,579,703
665 - 1,879,500 1,880,165

- 9,585,000 - 9,585,000

- 8,983,450 - 8,983,450

- 6,586 - 6,586

37,561,703 18,575,036 8,380,730 64,517,469
(6,369,702) (7,181,935) (7,145,222) (20,696,859)
24,133,925 7,578,205 - 31,712,130
(11,842,398) - (128,317) (11,970,715)
12,291,527 7,578,205 (128,317) 19,741,415
5,921,825 396,270 (7,273,539) (955,444)
28,633,453 12,976,497 35,899,003 77,508,953

$ 34,555,278 13,372,767 28,625,464 76,553,509
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
The following non-major special revenue funds are maintained by the County.

Regional Transit — To account for a 1/8% gross receipts tax imposed on 7/1/09 in support of the North
Central Regional Transit District. Funds are remitted in their entirety to the District and 50% is dedicated
to the Rail Runner, 14% of the remaining 50% is used for administrative costs of the District and the
balance is used for Santa Fe County mass transit projects.

Corrections — To account for corrections fees levied by the Magistrate courts (e.g. a $10 fee associated
with a speeding or seat belt violation) are distributed to the County. This revenue is utilized in the local
corrections system. These funds are to be used for the operation of the County jail and other costs related
to housing County prisoners. See Section 33-3¢25, NMSA 1978 Compilation.

Property Valuation — To establish and account for a one-percent administrative charge assessed against
the property tax collections of all taxing entities in the County. This revenue is utilized by the Assessor in
property valuations. See NMSA Compilation Section 7, Article 38-38-1.

Road Maintenance — To establish and account for revenues consisting of half of the vehicle registration
fees in the County (the other half goes to municipalities), and a 21 cent per gallon gasoline tax, both
collected and distributed to the County by the State of New Mexico. Also, the federal government
collects a logging fee of which 25% is distributed to school districts and the County Road Fund.
However, Road Fund expenses are also funded by transfers from the General Fund. State law mandates
that the Road Fund expenses are funded by transfers from the General Fund. State law mandates that the
Road Fund be utilized for "the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of County
roads ...” See Section 67-4-1, NMSA, 1978 Compilation

Emergency Medical Services — To establish and account for the Emergency Medical Services Fund Act
(NMSA 1978 Chapter 24, Articles 10A&B) which makes funds available from the State general fund "to
incorporated municipalities, counties, or fire districts for use in establishment of emergency medical
services, in order to reduce injury and loss of life." See Section 24-10A-1, NMSA 1978 Compilation.

Farm and Range — To establish and account for the Farm and Range Improvement Act which directs the
County commissioners to expend funds that are derived from the state's share of the 1934 Taylor Grazing
Act public lands grazing district fees paid to the Bureau of Land Management. The funds may be used
for the purposes of soil and water conservation, control of rodents and predatory animals, extermination
of poisonous noxious weeds, and construction and maintenance of secondary roads within the County.
See Section 6-11 -6, NMSA, 1978 Compilation.

Fire Protection — To establish and account for revenues of the Fire Protection Fund revenues are derived
from County-levied Fire Protection fees, and fees on property and motor vehicle insurance businesses,
which are collected by the State. Fire Protection Fund distributions to the County must be used for
maintenance of fire departments, the purchase, construction, maintenance, repair and operation of fire
stations and substations, fire apparatus, and equipment, and the payment of insurance premiums on fire
stations, substations, and fire fighters. See Section 59A-53-5, NMSA, 1978 Compilation.

Law Enforcement Protection — To account for revenues derived from 10% of fees, licenses, penalties,
and taxes from life, general casualty, and title insurance business pursuant to the New Mexico Insurance
Code (Chapter 59A, NMSA, 1978). A distribution of this revenue is made to the County on the basis of
population and the number of full-time certified County police officers. Proceeds from this fund may be
spent on law enforcement equipment, advanced law enforcement training, and as a match to federal law
enforcement grants.
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Environmental GRT — To establish and account for the pledged 1/8™ cent gross receipts tax enacted in
1999 that was used to pay off principal and interest related to the County's Environmental Revenue
Bonds, and is also used for the purpose of acquiring, construction, operation and maintenance of solid
waste, water & wastewater facilities.

Lodgers Tax — To establish and account for a four percent (4%) Hotel/Motel occupancy tax as the source
of revenue to the two Lodgers Tax funds. Fifty percent (50%) of the proceeds from the first three percent
(3%) and 100% of the next one percent (1%) of the occupancy tax is used for advertising tourist
attractions in Santa Fe County. Fifty percent (50%) of the proceeds from the first three percent (3%) of
the occupancy tax is designated to equip, furnish, and improve tourist facilities and to administer the tax.
Established pursuant to Santa Fe County Lodgers' Occupancy Tax Ordinance No. 1999-10.

Fire Impact Fees — To establish and account for fees charged for new development, review, inspection,
and permit required applications pursuant to Santa Fe County Fire Code, ordinance 1998-11. The
proceeds are primarily used for capital improvements and facility expansion.

Recreation — To account for one cent of a 21 cent per pack state cigarette tax designated for "County and
municipal recreation funds." The fund is designated for "operating recreational facilities, including
salaries of instructors and other employees." See Section 7-12-15, NMSA, 1978 Compilation.

Clerk Recording — To account for the fee for recording deeds, mortgages, contracts, liens, bills of sale,
power of attorney, mining location, transcript of judgment, etc. is $9 for the first page and $2 for each
subsequent page. Of this fee, $4 of the $9 for the first page is designated as an equipment recording fee
and is received into this fund. New Mexico law stipulates that this fund is designated "for the purchase of
equipment associated with recording, filing, maintaining or reproducing documents.” See Section 14-8-
12.2, NMSA, 1978 Compilation.

Correctional GRT — To account for a 1/8™ cent County-wide gross receipts tax approved by the voters in
2004. This fund handles the receipt of the corrections gross receipts tax. Proceeds from this fund are
transferred to the Corrections Operations fund for the operation of the Adult Detention Facility.

Indigent Hospital — To establish and account for a 1/8 cent Gross Receipts Tax levied in the entire
County and received into this fund is dedicated to providing payment for the Sole Community Provider
Program.

Indigent Services — To account for hospital care, ambulance services or other health care services to
indigent people living in the County. In addition, the fund provides revenues to match federal funds to
the State Medicaid program. See Section 7-20-2, NMSA, 1978 Compilation.

Economic Development - To establish and account for services in support of economic diversification,
transition, and development programs within Santa Fe County. As per the Department of Energy’s
Economic Development Community Assistance Program pursuant to Section 3161 of the 1993 Defense
Appropriations Act.

Federal Forfeiture — To establish and account for money from federal seizures associated with anti-drug
law enforcement activities received in this fund and spent by the Sheriff's Office on these activities.
Revenue in this fund is not anticipated in the initial budget, but receipts occur during the fiscal year.
Established by the County to account for federal forfeiture monies required by federal statute.
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Linkages — To account for a rental assistance program specific to families with identified disabilities
funded by the New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority.

Housing Choice Voucher Sect. 8 — To account for rent subsidies received from HUD for "vouchers” to
low-income persons renting housing in the private sector. This fund was created in accordance with the
HUD contract.

EMS Health Care — To account for the containment of health service payments received through a 3™
Party and other receipts to benefit the County's health programs and could fund the Regional Emergency
Communications Center and Fire Operations.

Wildlife/Mountains/Trails — To account for County Resolution No. 2000-57 that requires, "in all future
property acquisition negotiations for Wildlife, Mountains, Trails and Historic Places Program, that
participating landowners donate at least 5% of the fair market value of properties, as determined by an
appraisal, in lieu of a real estate commission ...” to fund capital improvements and maintenance of
properties acquired for the Program.” This is paid through the title company to the County as part of the
closing of the purchase of the property.

EMS Health Hospital — To account for a fund created to contain the 1/8 cent Gross Receipts tax
dedicated to emergency services.

Alcohol Programs — To account for state grants for DWI and alcohol education grants and programs.

Detox Programs — To account for federal and state grants for the construction and operation of Detox
Facilities in the County.

Emergency Communication Operations — To account for the operation and management of the
Regional Emergency Communication Center, which is the dispatch center for all emergency calls taken in
the City and County of Santa Fe.

Law Enforcement Operations — This fund accounts for the operations of the County Sheriff, including
grants pertaining thereto. Non-grant funding comes through a transfer of property taxes from the General
Fund. This fund was established in fiscal year 2010 to isolate the operations of the Sheriff’s Office in its
own fund, especially due to the volume of grants that needed to be segregated from the General Fund.
Prior to fiscal year 2010 the revenues and expenditures were recorded in the General Fund.

Housing Capital Improvement — To account for the Capital Fund Program (CFP) funded by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). These monies are used to make comprehensive
repairs to the existing public housing of Santa Fe County, and are applied for and granted on an annual
basis. This fund was created in accordance with the grant agreement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2014
Regional Transit Corrections Property Valuation = Road Maintenance

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ - 97,237 766,580 2,098,344
Cash and investments - restricted - - - 493
Accounts receivable, net - - 1,934 2,617
Taxes receivable 688,805 - - 49,760
Interest receivable - - - -
Grantor agencies receivable - - - -
Mortgages receivable, net - - - -
Down payment assistance receivable - - - -
Prepaids & other - - - 66,483
Due from other funds - - - -

Total Assets $ 688,805 97,237 768,514 2,217,697
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 688,805 - 19,412 240,996
Accrued wages and benefits - - 29,759 95,852
Deposits held for others - - - -
Other current liabilities - - - 400
Due to other funds - - - 94

Total Liabilities 688,805 - 49,171 337,342
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Property taxes - - - -
Unavailable revenue - - - 1,832
Total Deferred Inflows - - - 1,832
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable - - - 66,483
Restricted - 97,237 611,968 1,302,507
Committed - - 107,375 509,533
Assigned - - - -
Unassigned - - - -

Total Fund Balance - 97,237 719,343 1,878,523
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,

and Fund Balance $ 688,805 97,237 768,514 2,217,697
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Emergency Medical Law Enforcement
Services Farm and Range Fire Protection Protection Environmental GRT Lodgers Tax

138,290 11,953 6,695,384 35,095 263,243 1,772,452

- - 879 - - -

- - 225,322 - 114,172 44,234

- - 599 - - -

- - 13,035 - - -

138,290 11,953 6,935,219 35,095 377,415 1,816,686

24,712 - 181,908 18,693 - 111,848

24,712 - 181,908 18,693 - 111,848

- - 13,035 - - -

113,578 11,953 6,740,276 16,402 377,415 1,704,838

113,578 11,953 6,753,311 16,402 377,415 1,704,838

138,290 11,953 6,935,219 35,095 377,415 1,816,686
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Grantor agencies receivable
Mortgages receivable, net
Down payment assistance receivable
Prepaids & other
Due from other funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Deposits held for others
Other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Property taxes
Unavailable revenue
Total Deferred Inflows
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
and Fund Balance
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2014
(Continued)
Fire Impact Fees Recreation Clerk Recording Correctional GRT
$ 750,686 10,793 648,962 1,072,034
- - - 773,400
$ 750,686 10,793 648,962 1,845,434
$ 8,447 - 9,588 -
8,447 - 9,588 -
742,239 10,793 639,374 1,845,434
742,239 10,793 639,374 1,845,434
$ 750,686 10,793 648,962 1,845,434




Economic
Indigent Hospital Indigent Services Development Federal Forfeiture Linkages
3,195,006 1,232,289 4,779,905 72,954 31,376
493 4,140 1,562,000 - -
775,699 - - - -
- 439 - - -
3,971,198 1,236,868 6,341,905 72,954 31,376
- - - 141 -
23 10,195 4,079 - -
- 175 - - -
23 10,370 4,079 141 -
- 4,090 1,562,000 - -
- 4,090 1,562,000 - -
- 439 - - -
3,971,175 1,048,801 4,728,534 72,813 31,376
- 173,168 47,292 - -
3,971,175 1,222,408 4,775,826 72,813 31,376
3,971,198 1,236,868 6,341,905 72,954 31,376
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Grantor agencies receivable
Mortgages receivable, net
Down payment assistance receivable
Prepaids & other
Due from other funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Deposits held for others
Other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Property taxes
Unavailable revenue
Total Deferred Inflows
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
and Fund Balance
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2014
(Concluded)
Housing Choice EMS Health Wildfire/ EMS Health Alcohol
Voucher Sec 8 Care Mountains/Trails Hospital Programs
$ 621,444 1,280,966 59,956 2,214,465 252,751
131,484 1,581 - - 1,054
24,843 15,759 - - -
- - - 775,699 -
- - - - 422,280
- 872 - - 1,585
$ 777,771 1,299,178 59,956 2,990,164 677,670
$ 4,165 15,901 - - 145,870
11,812 16,015 - - 28,301
131,484 - - - -
- 13,723 - - 421,115
- 598 - - 590
147,461 46,237 - - 595,876
31,260 10,055 - - -
31,260 10,055 - - -
- 872 - - 1,585
384,209 1,176,972 59,956 2,990,164 80,209
214,841 65,042 - - -
599,050 1,242 886 59,956 2,990,164 81,794
$ 777,771 1,299,178 59,956 2,990,164 677,670




Emergency Total Nonmajor
Communication Law Enforcement Housing Capital Special Revenue
Detox Programs Operations Operations Improvement Funds
258,273 1,530,844 3,116,605 - 33,007,887
- 405 - - 135,017
- - 36,020 - 1,648,685
- - - - 3,447,091
129,602 16,779 81,952 51,746 702,958
- 6,622 173,474 - 262,510
387,875 1,554,650 3,408,051 51,746 39,204,148
- 87,521 131,546 13,620 1,703,173
- 121,642 366,811 1,941 686,430
- - - - 131,484
- 133 978 - 436,349
- 275 - 44,645 46,377
- 209,571 499,335 60,206 3,003,813
- - 35,820 - 1,645,057
- - 35,820 - 1,645,057
- 6,622 173,474 - 262,510
387,875 125,830 1,654,059 (8,460) 30,917,527
- 1,212,627 1,045,363 - 3,375,241
387,875 1,345,079 2,872,896 (8,460) 34,555,278
387,875 1,554,650 3,408,051 51,746 39,204,148
Page 103

§102/92/204Qd34Qq40234H X¥31D O24S



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Regional Transit Corrections Property Valuation = Road Maintenance

REVENUES
Property taxes $ - - 1,299,751 -
Gross receipts taxes 4,233,049 - - 591,209
Other taxes & assessments - - - -
Licenses, permits. & fees - - - 9,392
Charges for services - - - -
Fines & forfeitures - 297,367 - -
Interest earnings - - - -
Federal grants - - - 63,598
State grants - - - -
Other - - - 35,216
Intergovernmental - - - -
Total Revenues 4,233,049 297,367 1,299,751 699,415
EXPENDITURES
General government - - 1,327,271 -
Public safety - 1,329 - -
Culture & recreation - - - -
Highways & streets 4,233,049 - - 5,844,747
Health & welfare - - - -
Housing - - - -
Capital Improvements - - - -
Total Expenditures 4,233,049 1,329 1,327,271 5,844,747
Excess (deficiency) of
Revenues over expenditures - 296,038 (27,520) (5,145,332)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds - - 97,874 5,458,341
Transfers to other funds - (220,000) - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (220,000) 97,874 5,458,341
Net change in fund balance - 76,038 70,354 313,009
Fund Balance, beginning of period - 21,199 648,989 1,565,514
Fund Balance, end of period $ - 97,237 719,343 1,878,523
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Emergency Medical Law Enforcement
Services Farm and Range Fire Protection Protection Environmental GRT Lodgers Tax

- - 1,345,451 - 705,691 -

- - - - - 426,290

- - - - - 5216

- 675 - - - -

134,396 - 1,942,994 75,000 - -

- - 17,914 - - -

134,396 675 3,306,359 75,000 705,691 431,506

- 164 - - - -

135,429 - 2,300,429 90,484 - -

- - - - 490 346,315

- - 665 - - -

135,429 164 2,301,094 90,484 490 346,315

(1,033) 51 1,005,265 (15,484) 705,201 85,191

- 5,000 - - - -

- - - - (610,521) -

- 5,000 - - (610,521) -

(1,033) 5,511 1,005,265 (15,484) 94,680 85,191

114,611 6,442 5,748,046 31,886 282,735 1,619,647
113,578 11,953 6,753,311 16,402 377,415 1,704,838
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

REVENUES

Property taxes

Gross receipts taxes
Other taxes & assessments
Licenses, permits. & fees
Charges for services
Fines & forfeitures
Interest earnings

Federal grants

State grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General government

Public safety

Culture & recreation

Highways & streets

Health & welfare

Housing

Capital Improvements

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance, beginning of period

Fund Balance, end of period
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Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Continued)

Fire Impact Fees Recreation Clerk Recording Correctional GRT

$ - - - -
- - - 4,729,888

207,984 - 197,985 -

207,984 - 197,985 4,729,888

- - 175,213 3,090

237,439 - - -

- 147 - -

237,439 147 175,213 3,090

(29,455) (147) 22,772 4,726,798

- - - (4,317,750)

- - - (4,317,750)

(29,455) (147) 22,772 409,048

771,694 10,940 616,602 1,436,386

$ 742,239 10,793 639,374 1,845,434




Economic
Indigent Hospital Indigent Services Development Federal Forfeiture Linkages
4,736,961 - - - -
- 390 - 35,997 -
- - 2,499 - 22,365
77,654 9,746 523,890 - -
4,814,615 10,136 526,389 35,997 22,365
- - 107,318 - -
- - - 152,933 -
- - 49,643 - -
1,280,775 1,577,746 - - -
- - - - 68,625
1,280,775 1,577,746 156,961 152,933 68,625
3,533,840 (1,567,610) 369,428 (116,936) (46,260)
- 1,738,011 500,000 - -
(1,738,011) - . R )
(1,738,011) 1,738,011 500,000 - -
1,795,829 170,401 869,428 (116,936) (46,260)
2,175,346 1,052,007 3,906,398 189,749 77,636
3,971,175 1,222,408 4,775,826 72,813 31,376
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES

Property taxes

Gross receipts taxes
Other taxes & assessments
Licenses, permits. & fees
Charges for services
Fines & forfeitures
Interest eamnings

Federal grants

State grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General government

Public safety

Culture & recreation

Highways & streets

Health & welfare

Housing

Capital Improvements

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance, beginning of period

Fund Balance, end of period
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

(Concluded)

Housing Choice Wildfire/ EMS Health Alcohol
Vouchers Sec 8 EMS Health Care Mouatains/Trails Hospital Programs
$ - - - - -
- R - 4,736,962 -
166,871 - - - -
- - - - 50,434
1,244 - - - -
- 2,990 - - 890,392
- 18,099 - 10,991 -
2,199,828 - - - 100,000
2,367,943 21,089 - 4,747,953 1,040,826
- - 820 - -
- 542,116 - - 1,051,253
2,294,174 - - - -
2,294,174 542,116 820 - 1,051,253
73,769 (521,027) (820) 4,747,953 (10,427)
- 780,501 - - 60,000
- (33,366) - (4,817,750) (105,000)
- 747,135 - (4,817,750) (45,000)
73,769 226,108 (820) (69,797) (55,427)
525,281 1,016,778 60,776 3,059,961 137,221
$ 599,050 1,242,886 59,956 2,990,164 81,794




Emergency Total Nonmajor
Communication Law Enforcement Housing Capital Special Revenue
Detox Programs Operations Operations Improvement Funds

- - - - 1,299,751
- - - - 21,079,211
- - - - 426,290
- - - - 9,392
- 3,300 42,563 - 618,703
- - 23,740 - 407,928
- - - - 6,460
29,602 - 423277 204,920 722,072
300,000 17,530 73,537 - 3,461,703
1,169 - 45,675 - 740,354
- 105,000 15,309 - 2,420,137
330,771 125,830 624,101 204,920 31,192,001
- - - - 1,613,056
- 93,272 12,229,485 - 15,240,800
- - - - 397,415
- - - - 10,077,796
- 3,200,378 - - 7,652,268
- - - 216,904 2,579,703
- - - - 665
- 3,293,650 12,229,485 216,904 37,561,703
330,771 (3,167,820) (11,605,384) (11,984) (6,369,702)
- 3,409,521 12,084,677 - 24,133,925
- - - - (11,842,398)
- 3,409,521 12,084,677 - 12,291,527
330,771 241,701 479,293 (11,984) 5,921,825
57,104 1,103,378 2,393,603 3,524 28,633,453
387,875 1,345,079 2,872,896 (8,460) 34,555,278
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Regional Transit

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
4,500,000 4,500,000 4,233,049 (266,951)
4,500,000 4,500,000 4,233,049 (266,951)
$ 4,500,000 4,500,000
$ - . - -
4,500,000 4,500,000 4,233,049 266,951
$ 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,233,049 266,951
$ - - - -
$ - - R .

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Corrections

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$
220,000 220,000 297,367 77,367
220,000 220,000 297,367 77,367
$ 220,000 220,000
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
(220,000) (220,000) (220,000) -
$ (220,000) (220,000) (220,000) -
77,367
(1,329)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 76,038
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Property Valuation

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ 1,190,629 1,190,629 1,299,751 109,122
1,190,629 1,190,629 1,299,751 109,122
- 403,167
$ 1,190,629 1,593,796
$ 1,288,503 1,691,670 1,457,541 234,129
$ 1,288,503 1,691,670 1,457,541 234,129
$ 97,874 97.874 97,874 -
$ 97,874 97,874 97.874 -
$ (59,916)
$ -
108,976
(10477)
31,771
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 70,354



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes

Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Road Maintenance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actnal Final to Actual
$ - - - -
585,750 585,750 597,719 11,969
6,800 6,800 8,607 1,807
63,500 63,500 63,598 98
656,050 656,050 669,924 13,874
- 364,485
$ 656,050 1,020,535
$ - - - -
6,114,391 6,478,876 5,778,746 700,130
$ 6,114,391 6,478,876 5,778,746 700,130
$ 5,458,341 5,458,341 5,458,341 -
$ 5,458,341 5,458,341 5,458,341 -
349,519
29,491
(330,465)
(28,684)
293,148
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 313,009
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Emergency Medical Services

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
109,966 134,396 134,396 -
109,966 134,396 134,396 -
- 19,931
$ 109,966 154,327
$ - - - -
109,966 154,327 119,330 34,997
$ 109,966 154,327 119,330 34,997
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ 15,066
$ -
(45,297)
(1,890)
31,088
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (1,033)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Farm and Range

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ . - - -
1,175 1,175 675 (500)
1,175 1,175 675 (500)
$ 1,175 1,175
$ 6,175 6,175 5,164 1,011
$ 6,175 6,175 5,164 1,011
$ 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
$ 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
$ S11
$ -
5,000
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 5,511
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Fire Protection
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes $ - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes 1,000,000 1,000,000 - (1,000,000)
Other Taxes and Assessments - - - -

Licenses, Permits & Fees - - - -

Charges for Services - - - -

Fines and Forfeitures - - - -

Interest Earnings - - - -

Grants 1,923,643 1,942,994 1,942,994 -

Other - - 17,914 17,914

Intergovernmental -

Total Revenues 2,923,643 2,942,994 1,960,908 (982,086)

Cash balance carryforward 880,515 3,341,314
Total $ 3,804,158 6,284,308

Expenditures
General Government $ - - - -
Public Safety 3,804,158 6,071,511 2,078,712 3,992,799
Culture & Recreation - - - -
Highways & Streets - - - -
Health & Welfare - - - -
Housing - - - -
Capital Improvements - 212,797 - 212,797
Total Expenditures $ 3,804,158 6,284,308 2,078,712 4,205,596

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds $ - - - -

Transfers to other funds - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ (117,804)

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ 1,345,451
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes (560,239)
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted (61,635)
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes 399,492

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ 1,005,265

e 2
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Law Enforcement Protection

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
75,000 75,000 75,000 -
75,000 75,000 75,000 -
- 32,366
$ 75,000 107,366
$ - - - -
75,000 107,366 74,129 33,237
$ 75,000 107,366 74,129 33,237
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
871
(45,984)
(480)
30,109

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (15,484)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes

Gross Receipts Taxes

Other Taxes and Assessments

Licenses, Permits & Fees

Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures

Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Environmental GRT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
610,520 610,520 704,415 93,895
610,520 610,520 704,415 93,895
$ 610,520 610,520
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
(610,520) (610,520) (661,520) (51,000)
$ (610,520) (610,520) (661,520) (51,000)
42,895
$ 1,276
54,107
(3,598)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 94,680



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Lodgers Tax

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
357,000 357,000 424,717 67,717
- - 5216 5,216
357,000 357,000 429,933 72,933
29,850 91,885
$ 386,850 448 885
$ - - - -
386,850 448,885 310,329 138,556
$ 386,850 448,885 310,329 138,556
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
119,604
1,573
(129,193)
(24,224)
117,431
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 85,191
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Fire Impact Fees

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original

Final

Non - GAAP
Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes $
Gross Receipts Taxes

Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures

Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental

207,985

207,985

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward

155,348

503,915

207,985

207,985

Total $

155,348

503,915

Expenditures

General Government $
Public Safety

Culture & Recreation

Highways & Streets

Health & Welfare

Housing

155,348

503,915

280,484

223,431

Total Expenditures $

155,348

503,915

280,484

223,431

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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(72,499)

ey

(25,074)

(10,259)
78,378

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (29,455)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Recreation

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgetec

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - -
$ -
$ - - -
$ - - R
$ - - -
$ - - -
(147)

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purpose:
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (147)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Clerk Recording

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original

Final

Non - GAAP
Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes $
Gross Receipts Taxes

Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures

Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental

231,000

231,000

197,985

(33,015)

Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward

231,000
48,260

231,000
129,340

197,985

(33,015)

Total $

279,260

360,340

Expenditures

General Government $
Public Safety

Culture & Recreation

Highways & Streets

Health & Welfare

Housing

279,260

360,340

181,942

178,398

Total Expenditures $

279,260

360,340

181,942

178,398

Other Firancing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $

16,043

(12,148)
(8,869)
27,746

22,772



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Correctional GRT

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
4,317,750 4,317,750 4,760,951 443,201
4,317,750 4,317,750 4,760,951 443,201
$ 4,317,750 4,317,750
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
(4,317,750) (4,317,750) (4,317,750) -
$ (4,317,750) (4,317,750) (4,317,750) -
$ 443,201
$ (31,063)
11,561
(14,651)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis § 409,048
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Indigent Hospital

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
4,317,750 4,317,750 4,766,040 448,290
- - 77,654 77,654
4,317,750 4,317,750 4,843,694 525,944
- 649,073
$ 4,317,750 4,966,823
$ - - - -
2,579,739 3,228,812 1,262,174 1,966,638
$ 2,579,739 3,228,812 1,262,174 1,966,638
$ - - - -
(1,738,011) (1,738,011) - 1,738,011
$ (1,738,011) (1,738,011) - 1,738,011
$ 3,581,520
$ (29,079)
(3,000,643)
(73,534)
1,317,565
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 1,795,829



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Indigent Services

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 390 390
- - 9,696 9,696
- - 10,086 10,086
340,000 345,990
$ 340,000 345,990

$ - - - -
2,078,011 2,084,001 1,580,494 503,507
$ 2,078,011 2,084,001 1,580,494 503,507
$ 1,738,011 1,738,011 1,738,011 -
$ 1,738,011 1,738,011 1,738,011 -

167,603

50

18,607

(16,841)
982
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 170,401
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Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits, & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Economic Development
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Non - GAAP
Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to Actual

27,366
524,000

(40,134)
524,000

67,500 67,500

- 1,053,377
$ 67,500 1,120,877

$ 103,742 116,242
463,758 504,450

- 185

- 1,000,000

551,366

483,866

107,316

55,360

8,926
449,090
185
1,000,000

$ 567,500 1,620,877

162,676

1,458,201

$ 500,000 500,000

500,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 500,000 500,000

500,000

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $

888,690

(24,977)
70,173
(65.326)

368

869,428



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes

Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Federal Forfeiture

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- 81,127 35,997 (45,130)
- 81,127 35,997 (45,130)
127,147 137,594
$ 127,147 218,721
$ - - - -
127,147 218,721 155,410 63,311
$ 127,147 218,721 155,410 63,311
$ - - - -
$ - - - R
$ (119,413)
$ -
3,474
997)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (116,936)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Linkages
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
130,000 7,147 22,365 15,218
130,000 7,147 22,365 15,218
56,469 61,049
$ 186,469 68,196

$ - - - -
186,469 68,196 68,196 -
$ 186,469 68,196 68,196 -
$ - - - -
$ - - - -

$ (45,831)

$ -
(429)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (46.260)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes

Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings

Grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis

Housing Choice Voucher Sec 8

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
325,000 325,000 165,483 (159,517)
- - 1,244 1,244
2,184,000 2,184,000 2,199,828 15,828
2,509,000 2,509,000 2,366,555 (142,445)
69,088 71,831
$ 2,578,088 2,580,831
$ - - - -
2,578,088 2,580,831 2,291,457 289,374
$ 2,578,088 2,580,831 2,291,457 289,374
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
75,098
1,388
1,823
(8,493)
3,953
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 73,769
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Revenues

Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
EMS Health Care
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual

Other Taxes and Assessments - - - -

Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

- 8,000 - (8,000)
. . 18,394 18,394

- 8,000 18,394 10,394

Cash balance carryforward - 272,344

Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

$ - 280,344

$ - - - -

780,501 1,027,479 529,285 498,194

$ 780,501 1,027,479 529,285 498,194

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

$ 780,501 780,501 780,501 -
(33.366) (33,366) -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 780,501 747,135 747,135 -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 3 236,244

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ 2,695
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes (157,963)
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted (17,528)
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes 162,660
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 226,108



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Wildlife/Mountains/Trails

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
60,000 60,000
$ 60,000 60,000
$ - - - -
60,000 60,000 - 60,000
$ 60,000 60,000 - 60,000
$ - - - -
$ - - R -
$ .
$ -
(820)

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (820)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
EMS Health Hospital
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes $ - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes 4,317,750 4,317,750 4,766,040
Other Taxes and Assessments - - -
Licenses, Permits & Fees - - -
Charges for Services - - -
Fines and Forfeitures - - .
Interest Earnings - - -
Grants - - -
Other - - -
Intergovernmental

448,290

Total Revenues 4,317,750 4,317,750 4,766,040

448,290

Cash balance carryforward 500,000 1,278,195
Total $ 4,817,750 5,595,945

Expenditures
General Government $ - - _
Public Safety - - -
Culture & Recreation - - -
Highways & Streets - - -
Health & Welfare - 778,195 -
Housing -

778,195

Total Expenditures $ - 778,195 -

778,195

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $ -
Transfers to other funds (4,817,750) (4,817,750) (4,817,750)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (4,817,750) (4,817,750) (4,817,750)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ (51,710)

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ (18,087)
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes -
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (69.797)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Alcohol Programs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
45,000 45,000 50,434 5,434
1,238,175 1,385,400 1,233,274 (152,126)
- - 500 500
100,000 100,000 100,000 -
1,383,175 1,530,400 1,384,208 (146,192)
20,455 49,224
$ 1,403,630 1,579,624
$ - - - -
1,358,630 1,534,624 1,275,617 259,007
$ 1,358,630 1,534,624 1,275,617 259,007
$ 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
(105,000) (105,000) (105,000) -
$ (45,000) (45,000) (45,000) -
$ 63,591
$ (343,382)
142,782
(3.469)
85,051
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (55427
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Detox Programs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes $ - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - -
Other Taxes and Assessments - - -
Licenses, Permits & Fees - - -
Charges for Services - - -
Fines and Forfeitures - - -
Interest Earnings - - -
Grants 300,000 300,000 300,000
Other - - -
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues 300,000 300,000 300,000

Cash balance carryforward - -
Total $ 300,000 300,000

Expenditures
General Government $ - - -
Public Safety - - -
Culture & Recreation - - -
Highways & Streets - - -
Health & Welfare 300,000 300,000 300,000
Housing

Total Expenditures $ 300,000 300,000 300,000

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers from other funds $ - - .
Transfers to other funds - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - - -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ -

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ 30,771
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes 303,530
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted (3,530)

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 330,771

Page 134



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Emergency Communication Operations
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
1,800 1,800 3,300 1,500
36,000 36,000 24,703 (11,297)
75,000 75,000 105,000 30,000
112,800 112,800 133,003 20,203
- 58,610
$ 112,800 171,410
$ - - - -
3,522,321 3,580,931 3,226,192 354,739
$ 3,522,321 3,580,931 3,226,192 354,739
$ 3,409,521 3,409,521 3,409,521 -
$ 3,409,521 3,409,521 3,409,521 -
316,332
(7,173)
(96,344)
(20,927)
49,813
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 241,701
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Law Enforcement Operations

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
21,100 21,100 42,562 21,462
- 19,240 23,740 4,500
428,584 603,654 525,062 (78,592)
12,000 49,589 90,160 40,571
- 36,000 15,309 (20,691)
461,684 729,583 696,833 (32,750)
- 242,226
$ 461,684 971,809
$ - - - -
12,544,361 13,056,486 12,351,069 705,417
$ 12,544,361 13,056,486 12,351,069 705,417
$ 12,082,677 12,084,677 12,084,677 -
$ 12,082,677 12,084,677 12,084,677 -
$ 430,441
$ (72,732)
(30,397)
(42,594)
194,575
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $

479,293



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Property Taxes
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other Taxes and Assessments
Licenses, Permits & Fees
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest Earnings
Grants
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Culture & Recreation
Highways & Streets
Health & Welfare
Housing

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis

Housing Capital Improvement

Budgeted Amounts

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Non - GAAP

Original

Final Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to Actual

219,918

464,920 205,467

(259.453)

219,918

464,920 205,467

(259,453)

18,163

$ 219,918

483,083

219,918

483,083 203,283

279,800

$ 219,918

483,083 203,283

279,800

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes 13,620
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ (11,984)

$ 2,184

$ (547)
(27,241)
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Tesuque Fire Station



NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
The following non-major debt service funds are maintained by the County.

GOB Debt Service — To establish and account for the pledged property taxes and payment of principal
and interest related to the County’s General Obligation Bonds.

Equipment Loan Debt Service — To establish a budget and account for the pledged revenues and
payments of principal, interest, and other costs related to the borrowings through the NMFA. This fund
was formerly called NMFA Debt Service.

Jail Revenue Bond Debt Service — To account for pledged property taxes and the payment of principal
and interest related to the County’s Jail Facility Bonds.

GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service — To account for funds and the interest earned on those funds that
have been set aside from the County’s Sheriff Facility Bond, Capital Outlay GRT Bond Series 2008
(Judicial), Series 2009 (Water Rights), and Series 2010A & 2010B (BDD) proceeds as a reserve fund.
These funds will be used to repay principal and interest relating to the bonds if inadequate pledged gross
receipts taxes are collected.

WTB Loan/Grant Debt Service — To establish and account for loan revenue and payments of principal,
interest and other debt service costs for the Water Trust Board Loan.
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Grantor agencies receivable
Mortgages receivable, net
Down Payment Assistance receivable
Prepaids & other
Due from other funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Deposits held for others
Other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Property taxes
Unavailable revenue
Total Deferred Inflows
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,
and Fund Balance

Page 140

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
June 30, 2014

Equipment Loan Jail Revenue Bond GRT Revenue Bond
GOB Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service

$ 9,918,702 125,500 6,530 136,339
- - 2,249,600 425,905
1,197,578 - - -
- - - 12,282
219,792 - - -
$ 11,336,072 125,500 2,256,130 574,526
$ - - - -
- - 859 -
- - 859 -
1,025,307 - - -
1,025,307 - - -
10,310,765 125,500 2,255,271 574,526
10,310,765 125,500 2,255,271 574,526
$ 11,336,072 125,500 2,256,130 574,526




WTB Loan/Grant
Debt Service

Total Nonmajor
Debt Service Funds

106,705

10,293,776
2,675,505
1,197,578

12,282

219,792

14,398,933

1,025,307

1,025,307

106,705

13,372,767

106,705

13,372,767

106,705

14,398,933
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Equipment Loan Jail Revenue Bond GRT Revenue Bond

GOB Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 11,325,637 - - -
Gross receipts taxes - - - -
Other taxes & assessments - - - -
Licenses, permits. & fees - - - -
Charges for services - - - -
Fines & forfeitures - - - -
Interest earnings - - - 26,960
Federal rants - - - -
State grants - - - -
Other 39,934 570 - -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Total Revenues 11,365,571 570 - 26,960
EXPENDITURES
Debt service-principal 6,445,000 - 1,040,000 2,100,000
Debt service-interest 4,645,844 - 1,204,850 3,123,050
Commitments & other fees - - 3,265 1,864
Total Expenditures 11,090,844 - 2,248,115 5224914
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 274,727 570 (2,248,115) (5,197,954)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds 45,145 - 2,248,116 5,223,050
Transfers to other funds - - - -
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 45,145 - 2248116 5,223,050
Net change in fund balance 319,872 570 1 25,096
Fund Balance, beginning of period 9,990,893 124,930 2,255,270 549,430
Fund Balance, end of period $ 10,310,765 125,500 2,255271 574,526
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WTB Loan/Grant Total Nonmajor
Debt Service Debt Service Funds
- 11,325,637
- 26,960
- 40,504
- 11,393,101
- 9,585,000
9,706 8,983,450
1,457 6,586
11,163 18,575,036
(11,163) (7,181,935)
61,894 7,578,205
61,894 7,578,205
50,731 396,270
55,974 12,976,497
106,705 13,372,767
Page 143

§1L02/79220Ad34QY023y M¥3I1D I4S



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non - Major Debt Service Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
GOB Debt Service
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
Revenues
Property Taxes $ 11,090,844 11,042,565 11,331,574 289,009
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - -
Interest & Other - - _ _
Total Revenues 11,090,844 11,042,565 11,331,574 289,009
Cash balance carryforward - -
Total $ 11,090,844 11,042,565

Expenditures
Debt service -

Administrative/Issuance Costs $ - - - -
Debt Service - Principal 6,445,000 6,445,000 6,445,000 -
Debt Service - Interest 4,645,844 4,645,844 4,645,844 -

Total Expenditures $ 11,090,844 11,090,844 11,090,844 -

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of refunding bonds $ - - - -
Principal - - - -
Transfers from other funds - 48,279 45,145 3,134
Transfers to other funds - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - 48,279 45,145 3,134
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 285,875

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ 33,997
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes -
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 319,872
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non - Major Debt Service Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Equipment Loan Debt Service

For th

¢ Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Non - GAAP
Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)
Final to Actual

Revenues

Property Taxes $
Gross Receipts Taxes

Interest & Other

570

570

Total Revenues
Cash balance carryforward

Total $

Expenditures

Debt service -
Administrative/Issuance Costs $
Debt Service - Principal
Debt Service - Interest

570

570

Total Expenditures $

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of refunding bonds $
Principal

Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non - Major Debt Service Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Jail Revenue Bond Debt Service

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
Revenues
Property Taxes $ - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - -
Interest & Other - - -
Total Revenues - - _
Cash balance carryforward - -
Total $ - -
Expenditures
Administrative/Issuance Costs $ 3,265 3,265 3,264
Debt Service - Principal 1,040,000 1,040,000 1,040,000
Debt Service - Interest 1,204,850 1,204,850 1,204,850
Total Expenditures $ 2,248,115 2,248,115 2,248,114
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of refunding bonds $ - - -
Transfers from other funds 2,248,115 2,248,115 2,248,115
Transfers to other funds - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 2,248,115 2,248,115 2,248,115
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 1
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals -
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes -
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 1
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non - Major Debt Service Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
GRT Revenue Bond Debt Service
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
Revenues
Property Taxes $ - - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - -
Interest & Other - - 26,960 26,960
Total Revenues - - 26,960 26,960
Cash balance carryforward - -
Total 3 - -
Expenditures
Administrative/Issuance Costs $ - - - -
Debt Service - Principal 2,100,000 2,100,000 2,100,000 -
Debt Service - Interest 3,123,050 3,123,050 3,123,050 -
Total Expenditures $ 5,223,050 5,223,050 5,223,050 -

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of refunding bonds $ - - - -
Transfers from other funds 5,223,050 5,223,050 5,223,050 -
Transfers to other funds - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 5,223,050 5,223,050 5,223,050 -
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ 26,960

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ -
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes -
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted (1,864)
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 25,096
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non - Major Debt Service Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
WTB Loan/Grant Debt Service
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
Revenues
Property Taxes $ - - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - -
Interest & Other - - - -
Total Revenues - - - -
Cash balance carryforward - 13,500
Total $ - 13,500
Expenditures
Administrative/Issuance Costs $ 996 996 - 996
Debt Service - Principal 60,898 74,398 49,300 25,098
Debt Service - Interest - - - -
Total Expenditures $ 61,894 75,394 49,300 26,094

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of refunding bonds $ - - - -
Transfers from other funds 61,894 61,894 61,894 -
Transfers to other funds - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 61,894 61,894 61,894 -
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis 3 12,594

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis

Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals 3 -
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes 39,595
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted (1,458)

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis $ 50,731
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NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The following non-major capital projects funds are maintained by the County.

Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) — To establish and account for CDBG Grants funded
by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) passed through and administered by
the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration and other projects funded by outside
donations.

Capital Projects-Federal — To account for the ARRA funds received for environmental remediation and
prevention issues at the site of the District Courthouse construction project.

Road Projects — To account for the revenue and expense for road projects conducted by the County.
Only those road projects with present agreements for funding are included in the fiscal year budget.
Established by the County to account for funding from the New Mexico Department of Transportation
and other sources for road improvements. The fund was created by the Board of County Commissioners.

Special Appropriations & Other Projects — To account for revenue and expense for state granted
facility construction projects. The fund contains only those projects which have signed grant agreements.
As other project agreements are made during the fiscal year they will be added to the budget.

General Obligation Bond (GOB) Series 2005 - Roads/Water — To account for the issuance of a

Public Works bond in the amount of $20.0 million to be used for various public works projects including
certain road projects within the scope of the bond. This capital project fund contains the proceeds of this
bond, and the debt on this bond is paid with property taxes through the General Obligation Bond Debt
Service Fund.

General Obligation Bond (GOB) Series 2007A - Judicial — To account for the issuance of a bond in the
amount of $25.0 million to be used for the District Courthouse project. This capital project fund contains
the proceeds of. this bond. The debt on this bond is paid with property taxes through the General
Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund.

General Obligation Bond (GOB) Series 2007B_- Roads/Water — To establish and account for the
issuance of a bond in the amount of $20.0 million to be used for water and road infrastructure.

This capital project fund contains the proceeds of this bond. The debt on this bond is paid with property
taxes through the General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund.

Capital Qutlay GRT Series 2008 - Judicial - This fund accounts for the issuance of a bond in the
amount of $30,000,000 to be used for the construction of the Judicial Complex. This capital project fund
bond is paid with gross receipts taxes.

General Obligation Bond (GOB) Series 2008 - BDD — To account for a $32.5 million bond issued for
the purpose of acquisition of real property for, and construction, design, equipping, rehabilitation and
improvement of water improvements within the County.

General Obligation Bond (GOB) Series 2009 - R,W.OS.SW.F - To account for a $17 million bond
issue for the purpose of improving open spaces; trails and parks, County roads; fire safety facilities, water
projects and solid waste transfer stations. The debt on this bond is paid with property taxes through the
General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund.
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NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (Continued)

Capital Outlay GRT Series 2009 - Water Rights— To account for the issuance of a bond in the amount
of $12,090,000 for the purpose of purchasing water rights for use in connection with County water
projects and paying all costs pertaining to the issuance of the bonds.

Capital GRT Bond Series 2010B - BDD — To account for the issuance of a bond in the amount of
$10,195,000 for the purpose of defraying a portion of the cost of constructing the Buckman Direct
Diversion Project and paying all costs pertaining to the issuance of the bonds.

General Obligation Bond (GOB) Series 2011 - R,W,0S.SW.F Imp. & Refunding Fund - To account
for a $17.5 million bond issue for the purpose of refunding GOB 2001A and improving open spaces;
trails and parks; County roads; fire safety facilities; water projects and waste transfer. The debt on this
bond is paid with property taxes through the General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund.

Equipment Loan Proceeds — To account for low-interest loans from the NMFA to purchase capital
equipment. Payments on equipment loans are made through the Equipment Loan Debt Service Fund
(403).

General Obligation Bond (GOB) Series 2013 - To account for a $19 million bond issue for the purpose
of improving open spaces; trails and parks, County roads, water projects and solid waste transfer stations.
The debt on this bond is paid with property taxes through the General Obligation Bond Debt Service
Fund.

General Obligation (GO) Bond Series 2001 - Roads/Fire — To account for an $8.5 million bond issue
of which $4.5 million is for the purpose of buying land, construction, remodeling, and making additions
to County buildings used for public safety purposes and for fire equipment and facilities. $4.0 million of
the bond is for buying land and constructing buildings for public works (road maintenance, solid waste).
The debt on this bond is paid through property taxes through the General Obligation Bond Debt Service
Fund.

Facility Bond 1997 - Public Safety — To establish and account for revenue from the $6.0 million

Gross Receipts Tax subordinate 1997-A bond, designated for the construction of the new Sheriff and Fire
Facility. This facility is essentially complete and the current fiscal year budget expends the remainder of
bond proceeds from construction and building fixtures. Debt is retired on this bond in the GRT Debt
Service Fund.

Fire Tax Revenue Bond Proceeds— To establish and account for revenue from the $2.2 million Fire
Protection Bond, designated for construction of fire facilities and the purchase of firefighting equipment.
Debt retirement of this bond is through payments from the 1/4 cent Fire

Excise Tax on Gross Receipts in the Fire Tax Debt Service Fund.

General Obligation (GO) Bonds Series 2001 - Open Space— To account for the proceeds from the 1999
Open Space Bonds and 2001 Open Space Bonds. Retirement of the debt is financed through property
taxes. The debt on this bond is paid through property taxes through the General Obligation Bond Debt
Service Fund.

Page 151

§$102/92/20Q034Q¥023y M¥g319 O4dS



ASSETS
Cash and investments

Cash and investments - restricted

Accounts receivable, net
Taxes receivable

Interest receivable

Grantor agencies receivable
Mortgages receivable, net

Down Payment Assistance receivable

Prepaids & other
Due from other funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Deposits held for others
Other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Property taxes
Unavailable revenue
Total Deferred Inflows
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,

and Fund Balance
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE COUNTY

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

June 30, 2014
Community Special
Development Block  Capital Projects- Appropriations & GOB Series 2005
Grants Federal Road Projects Other Projects Roads/Water
$ - - 290,741 - 2,362
4,545 - 50,236 - -
199,815 2,282 427,945 196,754 -
$ 204,360 2,282 768,922 196,754 2,362
$ 88,286 - 46,267 18,006 -
111,234 2,282 - 59,560 39
199,520 2,282 46,267 77,566 39
- - 50,236 - -
- - 50,236 - -
4,840 - 672,419 119,188 2,323
4,840 - 672,419 119,188 2,323
$ 204,360 2,282 768,922 196,754 2,362




Capital Outlay
GOB Series GOB Series GRT Series GOB Series GOB Series 2009-
2007A-Judicial 2007B-Roads/Water 2008-Judicial 2008-BDD R,W,08,SW,F
11,266 3,237 22,700 1,329,250
11,266 3237 22,700 1,329,250
- - - 24,179
144 28 185 319,169
144 28 185 343,348
11,122 3,209 22,515 985,902
11,122 3,209 22,515 985,902
11,266 3,237 22,700 1,329,250
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Accounts receivable, net
Taxes receivable
Interest receivable
Grantor agencies receivable
Mortgages receivable, net
Down Payment Assistance receivable
Prepaids & other
Due from other funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Deposits held for others
Other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS
Property taxes
Unavailable revenue
Total Deferred Inflows
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,

and Fund Balance
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

June 30, 2014
(Concluded)
Capital Outlay GOB Series 2011-
GRT Series 2009- Capital Outlay R,W,08,SW,F Equipment Loan
Water Rights GRT 2010B-BDD Imp & Ref. Proceeds
1 - 10,760,595 -
- - - 18,491
1 - 10,760,595 18,491
. - 146,412 -
- - 2,758 -
- - 544,954 17,893
- - 694,124 17,893
1 - 10,066,471 598
1 - 10,066,471 598
1 - 10,760,595 18,491




Total Nonmajor
GOB Series 2001- Facility Bond 1997- Fire Tax Revenue GOB Series 2001- Capital Project
GOB Series 2013 Roads/Fire Public Safety Bond Proceeds Open Space Funds
16,917,863 692 284 46 1,737 29,340,774
) B . . - 54,781
. . B} . - 845287
16,917,863 692 284 46 1,737 30,240,842
20,163 - - - - 343,313
3,454 - - - - 6,212
160,010 38 16 42 23 1,215,617
183,627 38 16 42 23 1,565,142
- - - - - 50,236
- - - - - 50,236
16,734,236 654 268 4 1,714 28,625,464
16,734,236 654 268 4 1,714 28,625,464
16,917,863 692 284 46 1,737 30,240,842
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Community Special GOB Series
Development Block  Capital Projects- Appropriations & 2005
Grants Federal Road Projects Other Projects Roads/Water

REVENUES

Property taxes $ - - - - -
Gross receipts taxes - - - - -
Other taxes & assessments - - - - -
Licenses, permits. & fees - - - - .
Charges for services - - - - -
Fines & forfeitures - - - - -
Interest earnings - - - - 71
Federal grants 199,815 2,282 189,433 - -
State grants - - 385,515 262,524 -
Other - - 75,192 - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -

Total Revenues 199,815 2,282 650,140 262,524 71

EXPENDITURES

General government - - - . -
Public safety - - - - -
Culture & recreation - - - - -
Public works - - - N 254279
Highways & streets - - 344,047 - -
Health & welfare - - - - -
Housing - - - - -
Capital improvements 199,815 2,282 168,009 280,773 412,768
Total Expenditures 199,815 2,282 512,056 280,773 667,047

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures - - 138,084 (18,249) (666,976)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond proceeds

Transfers from other funds - - - - -
Transfers to other funds - - - - (33,738)

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - - (33,738)
Net change in fund balance - - 138,084 (18,249) (700,714)

Fund Balance, beginning of period 4,840 - 534,335 137,437 703,037

Fund Balance, end of period $ 4,840 - 672,419 119,188 2,323
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Capital Outlay
GOB Series 2007A- GOB Series 2007B- GRT Series GOB Series 2008- GOB Series 2009-
Judicial Roads/Water 2008-Judicial BDD R,W,08,SW,F
388 29 558 - 10,235
388 29 558 - 10,235
- - - - 55,181
- 268,522 322,111 - 1,208,267
29,387 - 50,222 - 149,033
29,387 268,522 372,333 - 1,412,481
(28,999) (268,493) (371,775) - (1,402,246)
(966) - - (1,775) -
(966) - - (1,775) -
(29.,965) (268,493) (371,775) (1,775) (1,402,246)
41,087 271,702 394,290 1,775 2,388,148
11,122 3,209 22,515 - 985,902
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

SANTA FE COUNTY

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES

Property taxes

Gross receipts taxes
Other taxes & assessments
Licenses, permits. & fees
Charges for services
Fines & forfeitures
Interest earnings

Federal grants

State grants

Other

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

General government

Public safety

Culture & recreation

Public works

Highways & streets

Health & welfare

Housing

Capital improvements

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond proceeds

Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance, beginning of period

Fund Balance, end of period
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Capital Outlay GOB Series 2011-
GRT Series 2009- Capital OQutlay R,W,08,SW,F Equipment Loan
‘Water Rights GRT 2010B-BDD Imp & Ref. Proceeds
$ - . - ;
5 350 45,928 -
- - - 55,221
5 350 45,928 55,221
- - 197,684 -
- - 815,763 -
- - 401,302 54,623
- - 1,414,749 54,623
5 350 (1,368,821) 598
(58,966) (21,326) - -
(58,966) (21,326) - -
(58,961) (20,976) (1,368,821) 598
58,962 20,976 11,435,292 -
$ 1 - 10,066,471 598




Total Nonmajor
GOB Series 2001- Facility Bond 1997- Fire Tax Revenue GOB Series 2001- Capital Project
GOB Series -2013 Roads/Fire Public Safety Bond Proceeds Open Space Funds
7,933 6 17 4 2 65,526
- - - - - 391,530
- - - - - 703,260
- - - - - 75,192
7,933 6 17 4 2 1,235,508
998 - - - - 998
. - - - . 507,144
3,034,378 - - - - 5,993,088
65,571 13,008 52,707 - - 1,879,500
3,100,947 13,008 52,707 - - 8,380,730
(3,093,014) (13,002) (52,690) 4 2 (7,145,222)
- - (2,880) - (8,666) (128,317)
- - (2,880) - (8,666) (128,317)
(3,093,014) (13,002) (55.570) 4 (8,664) (7.273,539)
19,827,250 13,656 55,838 - 10,378 35,899,003
16,734,236 654 268 4 1,714 28,625,464
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Community Development Block Grant

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts

Original

Final

Non - GAAP

Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Final to Actual

Revenues
Grants $ 424,759
Gross Receipts Taxes -
Other -

424,759

(424,759)

Total Revenues 424,759
Cash balance carryforward -

424,759

Total $ 424,759

424,759

Expenditures
General Government $ -
Public Safety -
Public Works -
Highways & Streets ' -
Capital Improvements 424,759
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs -

424,759

(424,759)

199,815

224,944

Total Expenditures $ 424,759

424,759

199,815

224,944

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of general obligation bonds $ -
Premium on sale of bonds -
Transfers from other funds -
Transfers to other funds -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis
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$

$

$

(199,815)

199,815



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Capital Projects - Federal

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ 300,750 325,460 - (325,460)
300,750 325,460 - (325,460)
$ 300,750 325,460
$ - - - -
300,750 325,460 2,282 323,178
$ 300,750 325,460 2,282 323,178
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ (2,282)
$ 2,282
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  § -
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Grants

Gross Receipts Taxes

Other

Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Road Projects
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
To reflect fair market value adjustment not budgeted
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ 725,840 973,649 329,236 (644,413)
- - 75,192 75,192
725,840 973,649 404,428 (569,221)
92,900 860,793
$ 818,740 1,834,442
$ - - - -
818,740 1,321,103 342,397 978,706
- 513,339 168,009 345,330
$ 818,740 1,834,442 510,406 1,324,036
$ - - . -
$ - - - -
$ (105,978)
$ 245,712
(250,886)
(2,660)
251,896
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ 138,084



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Special Appropriations & Other Projects
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)

Original Final Actual Final to Actual

Revenues
Grants $ 570,923 1,070,415 108,440 (961,975)
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - -
Charges for Services - - - -

Other - - - -
Intergovernmental - - . R

Total Revenues 570,923 1,070,415 108,440 (961,975)

Cash balance carryforward - 188,008
Total $ 570,923 1,258,423

Expenditures
General Government $ - - - -
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Highways & Streets - - - -
Capital Improvements 570,923 1,258,423 262,766 995,657
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs - -

§102/792.20Q3Qqd023Yd Y4319 24S

Total Expenditures $ 570,923 1,258,423 262,766 995,657

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of general obligation bonds $ - - - -
Premium on sale of bonds - - - -
Transfers from other funds - - - -
Transfers to other funds - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ (154,326)
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ 154,084
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes (356,465)
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes 338,458

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (18,249)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

GOB Series 2005 - Roads/Water
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 72 72
- - 72 72
488,679 833,188
$ 488,679 833,188
$ 57,383 - - -
- 254,276 254,279 3)
431,296 542,040 508,311 33,729
$ 488,679 796,316 762,590 33,726
$ - - - -
- (36,872) (33,738 3,134
$ - (36,872) (33,738) 3,134
$ (796,256)
$ 4]
95,543
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (700,714)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

GOB Series 2007A - Judicial

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 388 388
- - 388 388
5,697 65,322
$ 5,697 65,322
$ 1,500 1,500 - 1,500
4,197 62,856 52,525 10,331
$ 5,697 64,356 52,525 11,831
$ - - - -
- (966) (966) -
$ - (966) (966) -
$ (53,103)
$ -
23,138
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (29.965)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

GOB Series 2007B - Roads/Water

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -
Bond issuance & other administrative costs
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 29 29
- - 29 29
255,535 271,935
$ 255,535 271,935
$ 250 250 - 250
255,285 271,685 268,523 3,162
$ 255,535 271,935 268,523 3,412
$ . - . -
$ - - - -
$ (268,494)
$ -
1
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (268,493)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -
Bond issuance & other administrative costs
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Capital Outlay GRT Series 2008 - Judicial
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 558 558
- - 558 558
- 394,355
$ - 394,355
$ - - - -
- 344,133 322,111 22,022
- 50,222 50,222 -
$ - 394,355 372,333 22,022
$ - - - -
$ - - - -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis

$ (371,775)

$ (371,775)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

GOB Series 2008 - BDD

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes

Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- 1,775
3 - 1,775
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
- (1,775) (1,775) -
$ - (1,775) (1,775) -
$ (1,775)
$ -
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (1,775)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -
Bond issuance & other administrative costs
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

GOB Series 2009 - R,W,0S,SW.,F
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 10,235 10,235
- - 10,235 10,235
1,443,970 2,404,038
$ 1,443,970 2,404,038
$ 24,495 24,495 - 24,495
- 313,836 55,181 258,655
1,137,979 1,314,551 1,208,268 106,283
281,496 751,156 138,419 612,737
3 1,443,970 2,404,038 1,401,868 1,002,170
$ - - - -
$ - - - -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis

$  (1,391,633)

$ -
(495,998)
485,385
$_ (1,402,246)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

Capital Outlay GRT Series 2009 - Water Rights
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 6 6
R - 6 6
- 58,966
3 - 58,966
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
- (58,966) (58,966) -
$ - (58,966) (58,966) -
$ (58,960)
$ 1)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (58,961)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues

Grants

Gross Receipts Taxes

Other

Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -
Bond issuance & other administrative costs
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Capital Outlay GRT 2010B - BDD
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes

Page 171

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfaverable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 349 349
- - 349 349
- 21,326
$ - 21,326
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
- (21,326) (21,326) -
$ - (21,326) (21,326) -
$ (20,977)
$ 1
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (20,976)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

GOB Series 2011 - R,W,0S,SW.F Imp. & Refunding
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 45,928 45,928
- - 45,928 45,928
8,793,867 11,241,662
$ 8,793,867 11,241,662
$ 1,367,828 1,235,133 - 1,235,133
5,439,189 6,100,390 197,683 5,902,707
- 1,118,618 870,670 247,948
1,986,850 2,787,520 994,538 1,792,982
$ 8,793,867 11,241,661 2,062,891 9,178,770
$ - - - .
$ - - - -

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis

$  (2,016,963)

$ -
(64,161)
712,303
$ (1,368,821



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Loan Proceeds
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -
Bond issuance & other administrative costs
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Equipment Loan Proceeds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ 443,700 443,700 36,730 (406,970)
49,300 49,300 - (49,300)
493,000 493,000 36,730 (456,270)
- 44,798
$ 493,000 537,798
$ - - - -
493,000 537,798 54,624 483,174
3 493,000 537,798 54,624 483,174
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ (17,894)
$ 18,492
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ 598
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

GOB Series 2013 -R, W & OS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable)
Non - GAAP
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ . - . .
- - 7,933 7,933
- - 7,933 7,933
8,411,748 9,411,748
$ 8,411,748 9,411,748
$ 100,000 200,000 111,912 88,088
2,500,000 2,500,000 - 2,500,000
4,415,565 5,415,565 3,024,187 2,391,378
1,396,183 1,296,183 55,741 1,240,442
$ 8,411,748 9,411,748 3,191,840 6,219,908

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Change in fund balance - GAAP basis

$  (3,183,907)

$ -
(374,278)
465,171
$_ (3,093,014



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

GOB Series 2001 - Roads/Fire

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -
Bond issuance & other administrative costs
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis

Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 6 6
- - 6 6
- 112,921
$ - 112,921
$ - - - -
- 112,921 13,007 99,914
$ - 112,921 13,007 99,914
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ (13,001)
$ -
0Y)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (13,002)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Facility Bond 1997 - Public Safety
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)

Original Final Actual Final to Actual

Revenues
Grants $ - - - -
Gross Receipts Taxes - - - -
Other - - 17 17

Total Revenues - - 17 17

Cash balance carryforward 57,684 240,297
Total $ 57,684 240,297

Expenditures
General Government $ 500 500 - 500
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Highways & Streets - - - -
Capital Improvements 57,184 236,917 52,708 184,209
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs - - - -

Total Expenditures $ 57,684 237,417 52,708 184,709

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of general obligation bonds $ - - - -
Premium on sale of bonds - - - .
Transfers from other funds - - - -
Transfers to other funds - (2,880) (2,880) -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ - (2,880) (2,880) -

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis $ (55,571)
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals $ -
Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes 1
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes -

Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (55,570)
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Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -
Bond issuance & other administrative costs
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds
Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual
Fire Tax Revenue Bond Proceeds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 3 3
- - 3 3
- 46,817
$ - 46,817
$ - - - -
- 46,817 - 46,817
$ - 46,817 - 46,817
$ - - - -
$ - - - -
$ 3
$ 1
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ 4
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SANTA FE COUNTY
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget to Actual

Revenues
Grants
Gross Receipts Taxes
Other
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Cash balance carryforward
Total

Expenditures
General Government
Public Works
Highways & Streets
Capital Improvements
Debt service -

Bond issuance & other administrative costs

Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Issuance of general obligation bonds

Premium on sale of bonds
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
Reconciliation to change in fund balance - GAAP Basis
Revenue accruals, net of prior year revenue reversals

GOB Series 2001 - Open Space
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Adjustments to expenditures for modified accrual purposes
Outstanding encumbrances recorded as budgetary expenditures - not for GAAP purposes
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Variance
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts Non - GAAP (Unfavorable)
Original Final Actual Final to Actual
$ - - - -
- - 1 1
- - 1
- 8,666
3 - 8,666
$ - - - -
$ - - R -
$ - - - -
- (8,666) - (8,666)
$ - (8,666) - (8,666)
$ 1
$ 1
(8,666)
Change in fund balance - GAAP basis  $ (8,664)



AGENCY FUNDS
The following agency funds are maintained by the County.

County Treasurer — To account for collections and payment to the County and other recipient entities of
property taxes, interest and penalties billed and collected by the County on their behalf.

Sheriff Forfeiture — To account for assets confiscated during arrests pursuant to Section 30-31-1-1,
NMSA, 1978 Compilation. Property is held until disposed of pursuant to court order.

Bail Bond — To account for bond monies held by the County until legal disposition of the appropriate
case.

Sheriff Writ — To account for court judgments issued to the Sheriff’s department to collect monies or
remove property in satisfaction of said judgments.

Adult Inmate Trust — To account for adult inmate monies held by the County until legal disposition of
the appropriate case.

Juvenile Inmate Trust — To account for juvenile inmate monies held by the County until legal
disposition of the appropriate case.

Region III Narcotic Task Force — To account for grant monies disbursed by Santa Fe County as fiscal
agent, held by the multi-jurisdictional Region III Narcotic Task Force to be used for its initiatives.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities-Agency Funds
All Agency Funds
June 30, 2014
County Sheriff
Treasurer Forfeiture Bail Bond Sheriff Writ

ASSETS
Cash and investments - held in trust $ 3,516,978 31,213 279,731 5,359
Property taxes receivable 9,306,969 - - -

Total Assets $ 12,823,947 31,213 279,731 5,359
LIABILITIES
Deposits held for others $ - 31,213 279,731 5,359
Taxes paid in advance 537,914 - - -
Due to other Governments 9,306,969 - - -
Undistributed taxes to other Governments 2,979,064 - - -

Total Liabilities $ 12,823,947 31,213 279,731 5,359
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Region I1I
Adult Juvenile Narcotic
Inmate Trust Inmate Trust Task Force Total
382,676 8,101 3,480 4,227,538
- - - 9,306,969
382,676 8,101 3,480 13,534,507
382,676 8,101 3,480 710,560
- - - 537,914
- - - 9,306,969
- - - 2,979,064
382,676 8,101 3,480 13,534,507
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities-Agency Funds

COUNTY TREASURER

Assets
Cash and investments
Property taxes receivable
Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other governments
Taxes paid in advance
Undistributed taxes to other governments
Total liabilities

SHERIFF FORFEITURE
Assets

Cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits held for others
Total liabilities
BAIL BOND
Assets

Cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits held for others
Total liabilities

SHERIFF WRIT

Assets
Cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits held for others
Total liabilities
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

$ 4,274,394 154,466,459 155,223,875 3,516,978
9,373,840 151,713,465 151,780,336 9,306,969

$ 13,648,234 306,179,924 307,004,211 12,823,947
$ 9,373,840 151,713,465 151,780,336 9,306,969
555,871 2,824,497 2,842,454 537,914

3,718,523 152,940,633 153,680,092 2,979,064

$ 13,648,234 307,478,595 308,302,882 12,823,947
$ 31,057 156 - 31,213
$ 31,057 156 - 31,213
$ 31,057 156 - 31,213
$ 31,057 156 - 31,213
$ 278,338 1,393 - 279,731
$ 278,338 1,393 - 279,731
$ 278,338 1,393 - 279,731
$ 278,338 1,393 - 279,731
$ 5,315 1,211 1,167 5,359
$ 5,315 1,211 1,167 5,359
$ 5,315 1,211 1,167 5,359
$ 5,315 1,211 1,167 5,359

(Continued)



ADULT INMATE TRUST

Assets
Cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits held for others
Total liabilities

JUVENILE INMATE TRUST
Assets
Cash and investments
Total assets
Liabilities

Deposits held for others
Total liabilities

REGION HI NARCOTIC TASK FORCE

Assets
Cash and investments
Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits held for others
Total liabilities

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS

Assets
Cash and investments
Property taxes receivable
Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other governments
Deposits held for others
Taxes paid in advance
Undistributed taxes to other governments
Total liabilities
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Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deletions Balance
432,133 850,290 899,747 382,676
432,133 850,290 899,747 382,676
432,133 850,290 899,747 382,676
432,133 850,290 899,747 382,676
7,232 4,153 3,284 8,101
7,232 4,153 3,284 8,101
7,232 4,153 3,284 8,101
7.232 4,153 3,284 8,101
6,161 116,780 119,461 3,480
6,161 116,780 119,461 3,480
6,161 116,780 119,461 3,480
6,161 116,780 119,461 3,480
5,034,630 155,440,442 156,247,534 4,227,538
9,373,840 151,713,465 151,780,336 9,306,969
14,408,470 307,153,907 308,027,870 13,534,507
9,373,840 151,713,465 151,780,336 9,306,969
760,236 973,983 1,023,659 710,560
555,871 2,824,497 2,842,454 537,914
3,718,523 152,940,633 153,680,092 2,979,064
14,408,470 308,452,578 309,326,541 13,534,507
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SFC CLERK RECORDED02/26./2015

Ken & Patty Adam Senior Center
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The statistical section presents financial statement trends as well as detailed financial and
operational information not available elsewhere in the report. The statistical section is intended
to enhance the reader's understanding of the information presented in the financial statements,
notes to the financial statements and other supplementary information presented in this report.
The statistical section is comprised of the five categories of statistical information presented
below.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain information on financial trends to help the reader understand how
the County's financial position and financial activities have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the
County's ability to generate revenue.

Debt Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader evaluate the County's current levels
of outstanding debt as well as assess the County's ability to make debt-payments and/or
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules present various demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment in which the County's financial activities take place and to
help make comparisons with other Counties.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the County's operations and various resources
to help the reader draw conclusions as to how the County’s financial information relates to
the services provided by the County.
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Nancy Rodriguez Community Center
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS

CURRENT TAX YEAR AND TEN YEARS PRIOR

(Unaudited)
Taxpayer Business Tax Year 2013 Tax Year 2004
Percentage of Percentage of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Value Rank Value Value Rank Value

Public Service Co. of NM Electric Utility $ 49,902,447 1 0.74% $ 24,552,131 1 0.57%
Wal-Mart Retail 15,384,752 2 0.23%
New Mexico Gas Company Gas Utility 15,274,570 3 0.23%
Qwest Corporation Telephone Utility 15,144,268 4 0.22% 24,117,611 2 0.56%
Truzaf Ltd. Partnership Retail 14,436,737 5 0.21% 11,302,329 3 0.26%
Guadalupe Hotel Investment LLC Hotel 11,823,485 6 0.18% 7,784,563 5 0.18%
Corporation de La Fonda Hotel 9,899,943 7 0.15% 6,333,333 6 0.15%
Rancho Encantado LLC Real Estate 9,334,530 8 0.14%
BNSF Railway Company Railroad 8,800,206 9 0.13% 3,895,149 10 0.09%
LSREF Summer Reo Trust 2009 Shopping Center 8,373,297 10 0.12% 9,424,590 4 0.22%
Travis, Randy & Elizabeth Trust Private 4,368,114 7 0.10%
New Mexico Hotels Ltd Partnership Hotel 4,356,046 8 0.10%
Segel, Alvin G Trustee of Santa Fe Private 3,977,787 9 0.09%
Total $ 158,374,235 2.34% $ 100,111,653 2.33%
Total Taxable Value 6,756,121,591 4,294,283,166
Source:

County Treasurer's Office
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Page 208

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF JUNE 30, 2014
(UNAUDITED)
Applicable to County
Debt Santa Fe Share of
Outstanding County Debt

DIRECT DEBT:
Santa Fe County $ 214,843,565 100.00% $ 214,843,565
OVERLAPPING DEBT:
State of New Mexico $ 1,071,350,000 12.46% $ 133,452,020
Municipalities:

City of Santa Fe 339,526,885 100.00% 339,526,885

Town of Edgewood 1,827,435 100.00% 1,827,435

City of Espanola 16,130,585 28.46% 4,591,366
School Districts:

Santa Fe Public Schools 159,375,000 100.00% 159,375,000

Pojoaque Valley Schools 4,790,000 100.00% 4,790,000

Moriarty Municipal Schools 20,765,000 48.11% 9,989,636

Espanola Public Schools 24,185,000 20.80% 5,030,128
Santa Fe Community College 33,055,000 100.00% 33,055,000
Total Overlapping Debt $ 691,637,470
Total Direct & Overlapping Debt $ 906,481,035
RATIOS:
Ratio of Total Direct & Overlapping

Debt to 2013 Assessed Valuation: 13.42%

Ratio of Santa Fe County's Outstanding General Obligation

Debt to 2013 Estimated Actual Valuation: 4.38%
Per Capita Direct & Overlapping Debt: $ 6,148.84
Net Taxable Valuation: $ 6,756,121,591.00
Total Estimated Actual Valuation: $20,694,007,113.00
Total Population - Estimated 147,423
Notes:

Percentage applicable to Santa Fe County is derived by taking the Valuation for the Entity
within Santa Fe County divided by the total valuation of the entity for all counties it is a portion of

Source:
Santa Fe County Financial Records
State of New Mexico, Dept. of Finance & Admin., Budget & Finance Bureau
State of New Mexico, Office of the State Auditor
Individual Financial Reports of Overlapping Entites for Debt Outstanding
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY COUNTY DEPARTMENT/DIVISION OR ELECTED OFFIC
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 7.0 9.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 10.0 9.0 10.0 100
COUNTY MANAGER'S OFFICE
Manager's Office 8.0 9.0 120 8.0 10.0 9.0 11.0 7.0 8.0
Human Resources 6.0 6.0 10.0 8.0 10.0 10.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Finance Division® 213 235 215 195 195 200 225 215 25
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Administration - - - 20 30 10 20 20 20
Information Technology (F1)® 16.0 16.0 170 100 13.0 13.0 120 12,0 120
Legal 7.0 9.0 110 11.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0
Procurement® - - - 5.0 50 5.0 6.0 50 6.0
Mail Room 10 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 10 1.0
Risk Management 1.0 10 20 3.0 3.0 3.0 30 4.0 3.0
Motor Pool @ - - - - 1.0 - - - -
GROWTH MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT
Administration 6.0 6.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 10 40 40 40
Planning 6.0 6.0 6.0 80 7.0 70 8.0 6.0 6.0
Building Developmens 170 170 180 19.0 19.0 175 170 15.0 16.0
Regional Planning Authority™ 20 2.0 1.0 2.0 20 10 10 - 1.0
Economic Developmem"“)
Affordable Housing® - - - 1.0 20 23 20 20 20
Geographic Information Systems (GIS)® © - - - 40 4.0 4.0 8.0 9.0 9.0
Rural Addressing (E-911)®© - - - 5.0 50 5.0 - - -
PUBLIC WORKS
Administration & Business Unit 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 7.0 7.0 9.0 143
TRANSPORTATION & SOLID WASTE
Fleet Maintenance 100 10.0 100 100 10.0 10.0 100 9.0 100
Traffic Engineering 80 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 80 8.0
Road Maintenance 23.0 24.0 250 250 25.0 25.0 25.0 330 380
Solid Waste 210 210 230 240 240 240 240 240 240
PROIECTS, FACILITIES & OPEN SPACE® 30.0 - -
Property Control® 140 140 140 140 140 15.0 - 14.0 210
Building Services (General Services)” 13.0 130 130 13.0 14.0 15.0 - 145 16.0
Facilitics Project Development™ 40 40 50 50 70 70 1.0 40 7.7
Road Project Development®™ 160 16.0 160 16.0 16.0 170 17.0 30 3.0
Project Development® - - - - - - - - -
Open Space & Trails 30 3.0 30 40 5.0 5.0 8.0 80 8.0
UTILITIES
Water/Wastewater Operations 9.0 9.0 120 125 125 135 145 200 205
COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT
C ity Services Administrati 30 3.0 30 3.0 40 50 110 6.0 35
Health & Human Services 200 315 358 44.1 423 406 187 16.8 160
Senior Services™ - - - - 3.0 4.0 50 176 215
Housing 177 19.0 190 180 19.0 142 15.0 140 150
Teen Court ® 0.5 28 17 1.0 18 32 3.0 26 30
PUBLIC SAFETY
Cormrections
Administration® 1.0 - 115 13.0 150 140 15.0 13.0 140
Inmate Medical Services” - - - 330 37.0 370 380 34.4 36.0
Adult Detention Facility™ - 201.4 190.9 169.0 169.0 166.0 165.0 160.0 186.0
Corrections Maintenance - - - - - - - - -
Electronic Monitoring® 8.0 70 70 7.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0
Youth Development Program™ 4.0 91.0 90.5 719 76.9 515 69.4 56.4 80.0
RECC®™ - - - 480 480 48,0 490 450 495
Fire 45.0 510 520 570 94,0 97.0 107.0 93.0 1125
Sheriff's Office 103.0 103.0 103.0 1050 109.0 109.0 1110 109.0 1170
OTHER ELECTED OFFICES
CLERK 275 275 270 290 335 335 335 335 335
TREASURER 9.5 95 10.5 105 105 100 125 125 125
ASSESSOR 365 36.5 36.5 375 375 425 2.5 4.5 445
PROBATE JUDGE 1.0 1.0 10 1.0 1.0 1.0 10 1.0 1.0
SURVEYOR® 1.0 1.0 10 1.0 1.0 10 10 10 1.0
TOTAL FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES 563.2 818.6 837.9 5120 5795 963.8 9776 9343 1.048.5
Source:
County Records
Notes:

The Hierarchy displayed is based on the Official Departmental Structure at the end of Fiscal Year 201

(a) Procurement was under Finance vatil FY 200¢

(b) Information Technology included GIS and Rural Addressing until FY 200

(c) Rural Addressing moved under GIS in FY 2011

(d) Motor Pool was only in existence for FY 200¢

(e) Affordable Housing started in FY 2008

(f) Facilities Division encompasses both Property Control & Building Services for FY 201

(g) Teen Court started in FY 2004

(h) Senior Services started in FY 2009

(i) Corrections Administration was one person in FY 2005 who oversaw the Comection's Contractors. In FY 2007 it became a divisic
(j) Corrections Medical Services were done by a contractor until FY 200

(k) The Adult Detention Facility was run by a Contractor until FY 200t

(1) The Electronic Monitoring Program started in FY 200!

(m) The Economic Development Position took the place of the Regional Planning Coordinator in FY 201

(n) The RECC (Regional Emergency Communications Center) was a Joint Agency governed by both the County and the City of Santa Fe until FY 20

(0) The Surveyor position was eliminated for all Counties in New Mexico starting January 2013. This position was in cffect from July 1-December 31, 20.

(p) The Facilities Project Development and Road Project Di Sections were ined to just Project Development in FY20
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
POPULATION BY AGE GROUP
FOR THE LAST YEAR AND ELEVEN YEARS PRIOR

§$102/92,2003Q4023d My3I1D O4dS

(UNAUDITED)
2013 2002 CHANGE
Numberin  Percentage Numberin  Percentage Number in  Percentage
Value __Age group of Total Age group of Total Age group Change
Under 5 Years Old 7,666 5.2% 8,079 6.01% (413) -5.11%
5-9 Years Old 9,288 6.3% 8,133 6.05% 1,155 14.20%
10 - 14 Years Old 7,961 5.4% 9,210 6.85% (1,249) -13.56%
15-19 Years Old 8,403 5.7% 9,378 6.97% 975) -10.40%
20 - 24 Years Old 7,666 5.2% 7,916 5.88% (250) -3.16%
25-29 Years Old 8,108 5.5% 7,618 5.66% 490 6.43%
30 - 34 Years Old 8,993 6.1% 9,166 6.81% 173) -1.89%
35-39 Years Old 9,288 6.3% 10,085 7.50% 797 -7.90%
40 - 44 Years Old 8,403 5.7% 11,102 8.25% (2,699) -2431%
45 - 49 Years Old 9,140 6.2% 11,491 8.54% (2,351) -20.46%
50 - 54 Years Old 11,057 7.5% 11,932 8.87% @®75) -7.33%
55-59 Years Old 11,941 8.1% 9,068 6.74% 2,873 31.68%
60 - 64 Years Old 12,384 8.4% 6,306 4.69% 6,078 96.38%
65 - 69 Years Old 9,877 6.7% 4,793 3.56% 5,084  106.07%
70 - 74 Years Old 7,519 5.1% 3,754 2.79% 3,765  100.29%
75-79 Years Old 5,160 3.5% 2,873 2.14% 2,287 79.60%
80 - 84 Years Old 2,359 1.6% 1,974 1.47% 385 19.50%
85 Years Old and Over 2,211 1.5% 1,647 1.22% 564 34.24%
Total 147,424  100.00% 134,525  100.00% 12,899 9.59%
Median Age 44.1 39.4 4.7 11.93%

Source:
US Dept. of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
American Community Survey

Note: Data from 2003 not available
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FIRE
Calls Received
Fire Responses
EMS Responses
Fire Inspections-Sprinkler/Fire Alarm
Fire Inspections-Developments

Fire Cy ial B
SHERIFF

Crime Reports ¥

Traffic Accidents

DUI Arrests ©

Total Sheriff Responses @
DWI

Offenders Being Tracked

Cases Closed Out Successfully

Offenders that leted Ti

Offenders referred to DWI School

Offenders referred to Victim Impact

Offenders referred to Community Service

Offenders referred to Ignition Interlock Term

Offenders Screened

CADDy Rides Provided

Alcohol Involved Crashes

Alcohol Involved Fatalitics

Schools Receiving Prevention Services

Students Receiving Prevention Services

DWI Checkpoints Conducted

Saturation Patrols Conducted
RECC

Number of Calls Answered

Total Calls for Service (Personell Dispatched)
MOBILE HEALTH SERVICES

Visits to the Mobile Health Van

Blood Pressure Checks

Blood Glucose Checks

Total Cholesterol Screenings

Immunizations

Referrerals to Primary Care Providers
SENIOR SERVICES

Congregate Meals Served

Home Delivered Meals Served

Number of Senior Transportation Rides
CORRECTIONS

Number of Adult Bookings

Number of Adult Mandays

Number of Juvenile Mandays
RISK MANAGEMENT

Worker's Compensation Claims Filed
FINANCE

Warrants (Checks) Issued

Manual Warrants/AP Wires Processed

Warrant/Check Runs

Invoices Paid

Payroll Warrants (Checks) Issued
PROCUREMENT

Purchase Orders Issued
TREASURER

Receipts Issued
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Technical Support Work Orders
LAND USE

Code Enforcement Cases

Building Permits Issucd

Active Business Licenses
FLEET MANAGEMENT

Total Miles Driven in County Vehicles
SOLID WASTE

Residential Refuse Permits Issued

Recycling Tons Collected

Source:

County Records from internal Departments/Divisions

Notes:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
NA NA NA 5,225 5973 6,731 7,676 7,170 6,686 6,672
NA NA NA 1438 1,664 1,733 2,431 1,977 1,878 1,650
NA NA NA 3,787 4,309 4,998 5,245 5,193 4,808 5,022
NA 34 91 112 34 26 37 @ 43 32 22
NA 79 98 144 219 175 200 @ 210 213 218
NA 32 80 69 98 80 100 © 115 124 60
NA NA NA NA 11,079 12,619 16,496 15,715 15,598 13,092
NA NA NA NA 913 834 795 746 895 697
NA NA NA NA 350 251 302 187 165 215
NA NA NA NA 52,682 53,399 53,678 62,583 69,826 74,151
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 739 736
NA NA NA NA NA NA Na 0@ NA 379 294
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 311 270
NA NA NA NA NA NA Na @ NA 331 356
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 380 421
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 416 432
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 442 448
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0@ NA 386 392
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 12,441 11,862
NA NA NA NA NA NA Na @ NA 7 116
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @@ NA 3 3
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 29 29
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 6,535 14,214
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 16 28
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 35 41

411,300 393,470 303,315 301,554 278,759 282,827 288,758 410,526 NA NA

165,541 175,861 163,143 177,326 187,448 191,386 184,496 183,588 NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA ® NA 1,578 2,648
NA NA NA NA NA NA Na 0@ NA 1,119 2,625
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 1,459 2354
NA NA NA NA NA NA Na @ NA - 1,472
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 46 185
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 237 459
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ NA 28,906 36,467
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA ® NA 27,115 41,784
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 0@ NA 7,692 9,230
NA NA ® NA 9,592 9,965 10,114 9,858 10,615 10,513 9,781
196,418 196,219 185,300 186,349 168,732 146,950 145,480 163,560 202,124 200917
25,344 24,906 20,815 17,074 7,108 9,484 8,355 8,244 6,577 5,739
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA © 92 71 58
14,490 15,324 16,154 16,042 16,846 15,713 14,685 14,575 14,901 15,633
117 128 144 173 204 189 167 173 166 169
375 382 383 391 410 403 437 442 429 435
40272 43,437 44,893 45,574 48,870 46,287 43,774 44,077 44,416 44,237
5,002 7,031 6,924 7,861 6,659 6,445 5,627 5,031 4,846 4,643
11,136 12,499 11,666 12,438 11,706 9,577 9,073 9,229 9,021 9,190
135,146 153,178 152,126 143,242 149,418 150,188 159,306 153,985 152,940 153,865
NA NA NA NA NA NA Na 0@ 2,342 2,220 3,032
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ 127 118 254
1,307 1,094 1,306 939 77 558 483 477 516 618
1,553 1,646 1,780 1,801 1834 1,885 3,854 3,583 3,571 3,158
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ 2467,894 1,934,214 5,816,564
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA @ 8,677 6,693 6,028
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA ® 2,930 2,036 2,112

(a) Santa Fe County implemented Performance Based Budgeting criteria in FY 2012; numbers prior to this time were not tracked and arc unavailable
(b) The Adult Facility was managed by an outside contractor with another computer system until October 2006; data not available prior to this time.

(¢) RECC changed ions from a dal.

entity to bel

under Santa Fe County in 2005; data not available prior to this time.

(d) Changed from Fiscal Year Counts to Calendar Year Counts; Current Year is Year-to-Date

NA = Information not available
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF TAX RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS,
AND PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Property taxes receivable, beginning of year $ 16,350,835
Changes to Tax Roll:

Net taxes charged to treasurer for fiscal year 151,211,541
Adjustments:

Increases in taxes receivable 2,675,338

Charge off of taxes receivable (2,436,766)

Total receivables prior to collections 167,800,948

Collections for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (151,713,466)
Property taxes receivable, end of year $ 16,087,482

Property taxes receivable as of year end,
Property taxes receivable by year:

2004 3 178,826
2005 251,088
2006 380,619
2007 538,657
2008 671,193
2009 953,780
2010 1,275,540
2011 1,728,177
2012 2,958,979
2013 7,150,623

Total taxes receivable $ 16,087,482

Distribution of collected property taxes:

Santa Fe County $ 58,042,210
State of New Mexico 9,410,342
Edgewood Soil and Water Conservation 149,400
City of Santa Fe 9,344,473
City of Espanola 176,576
School Districts 49,896,005
Santa Fe Community College 22,372,904
Santa Fe Charter Schools 1,389,359
Eldorado Water and Sanitation 915,809
Livestock Board 16,332
Rancho Viejo Improvement District 56

Total tax distribution $ 151,713,466

Property taxes receivable distribution:

Santa Fe County $ 6,781,337
State of New Mexico 939,059
Edgewood Soil and Water Conservation 24,155
City of Santa Fe 789,083
City of Espanola 38,598
School Districts 5,206,399
Santa Fe Community College 2,179,578
Santa Fe Charter Schools 84,288
Eldorado Water and Sanitation 31,495
Livestock Board 13,490

Rancho Viejo Improvement District -

3 1608748
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
PROPERTY TAX SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Property Collected in Distributed in Distributed Undistributed County Receivable
AGENCY Tax Levied Current Year Collected to Date Current Year To Date at Year End at Year End
State of New Mexico:
State Debt
2004-2012 3 69,849,245 498,047 69,328,383 458,311 69,288,647 39,736 520,862
2013 9,330,492 8,912,295 8,912,295 8,804,526 8,804,526 107,769 418,197
Total 79,179,737 9,410,342 78,240,678 9,262,837 78,093,173 147,505 939,059
Livestock Board
2004-2012 123,683 1,623 112,361 1,622 112,361 - 1n32:
2013 16877 14,709 14,709 14,668 14,668 41 2,167
Livestock Board 140,560 16,332 127,070 16,250 127,029 41 13,4%0
Total State of New Mexico _$ 79,320,297 9,426,674 78,367,748 9,279,127 78,220,202 147,546 952,549
Santa Fe County:
Operational
2004-2012 3 337,941,963 2,697,488 334,820,742 2,492,728 373,615,982 204,760 3,121,221
2013 46,411,871 43,952,268 43,952,268 43,321,611 4,321,611 630,657 2,459,603
Total 384,353,834 46,649,756 378,773,010 45,814,339 377,937,593 835,417 5,580,824
Debt Service
2004-2012 96,429,510 638,698 95,733,602 586,612 95,681,517 52,085 695,908
2013 11,258,361 10,753,756 10,753,756 10,623,720 10,623,720 130,036 504,605
Total 107,687,871 11,392,454 106,487,358 11,210,332 106,305,237 182,121 1,200,513
Total Santa Fe County _§ 492,041,705 58,042,210 485,260,368 57,024,671 484,242,830 1,017,538 6,781,337
Municipalities:
City of Santa Fe
2004-2012 3 48,701,708 415,981 48,326,860 378,386 48,289,266 37,594 374,847
2013 9,342,728 8,928,492 8,928,492 8,811,939 8,811,939 116,553 414,236
Total 58,044,436 9,344,473 57,255,352 9,190,325 57,101,205 154,147 789,083
City of Espanola
2004-2012 1,227,249 15,594 1,205,209 14,360 1,203,976 1,234 22,040
2013 177,540 160,982 160,982 156,850 156,850 4,132 16,558
Total 1,404,789 176,576 1,366,191 171,210 1,360,826 5,366 38,598
Total 3 59,449,225 9,521,049 58,621,543 9,361,535 58,462,031 159,513 827,681
School Districts:
Santa Fe Schools
2004-2012 $ 356,476,837 2,324,428 354,105,349 2,136,131 353,917,052 188,297 2,371,488
2013 43,674,717 41,788,891 41,788,891 41,281,781 41,281,781 507,110 1,885,826
Total 400,151,554 44,113,319 395,894,240 43417912 395,198,833 695,407 4,257,314
Espanola Schools
2004-2012 5,840,804 65917 5,724,714 61,942 5,720,738 3,975 116,091
2013 940,414 838,558 838,558 819,101 819,101 19,457 101,856
Total 6,781,218 904475 6,563,272 881,043 6,539,839 23,432 217,947
Pojoaque Schools
2004-2012 16,800,695 159,051 16,580,219 147,345 16,568,514 11,707 220,475
2013 2,121,850 1,968,144 1,968,144 1,944,339 1,944,339 23,804 153,707
Total 18,922,545 2,127,195 18,548,363 2,091,684 18,512,853 35,511 374,182
Moriarty Schools
2004-2012 19,833,331 138,865 19,608,389 129,920 19,599,444 8,945 224,941
2013 2,744,165 2,612,150 2,612,150 2,593,3% 2,593,396 18,754 132,015
Total 22,577,4% 2,751,015 22,220,539 2,723316 22,192,840 27,699 356,956
Santa Fe Community College
2004-2012 171,020,038 1,156,736 169,817,259 1,063,703 169,724,225 93,034 1,202,809
2013 22,192,937 21.216,168 21,216,168 20,956,856 20,956,856 259,312 976,769
Total 193,212,975 22,372,904 191,033,427 22,020,559 190,681,081 352,346 2,179,578
Santa Fe Charter Schools
2004-2012 1,377,002 39,041 1,353,010 37,328 1,351,297 Ln3 23,992
2013 1,410615 1,350,319 1,350,319 1,333,994 1,333,994 16,325 60,296
Total 2,787,617 1,389,360 2,703,329 1,371,322 2,685,291 18,038 84,288
Total School Districts _$ 644,433,405 73,658,268 636,963,170 72,505,836 635,810,737 1,152,433 7,470,265
Special Districts:
Edgewood Soil & Water Conservation
2004-2012 s 1,194,215 8,270 1,178,098 8,050 1,177,878 221 16,117
2013 149,168 141,130 141,130 139,907 139,907 1,222 8,038
Total 1,343,383 149,400 1,319,228 147,957 1,317,785 1,443 24,155
Eldorado Water & Sanitation
2004-2012 8,262,426 19,299 8,247,679 18,383 8,246,763 NG 14,746
2013 913,258 896,510 896,510 884,545 884,545 11,965 16,749
Total 9,175,684 915,809 9,144,189 902,928 9,131,308 12,881 31,495
Rancho Viejo Improvement District
2004-2012 2,514,864 56 2,514,864 56 2,514,864 - -
2013 - - - - - - -
Total 2,514,864 56 2,514,864 56 2,514,864 N N
Total Special Districts ~_§ 13,033,931 1,065,265 12,978,281 1,050,941 12,963,957 14,324 55,650
Grand Total 3 1,288,278,563 151,713,466 1,272,191,110 149,222,110 1,269,699,757 2,491,354 16,087,482
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Bank of Albuquerque

BNY Western Trust

Cantor Fitzgerald

Charles Schwab International
Charles Schwab International
Charles Schwab International
Charles Schwab International
Charles Schwab International
Charles Schwab International
Community Bank

Guadalupe Credit Union
First National Bank of Santa Fe
First National Bank of Santa Fe
Los Alamos National Bank
Los Alamos National Bank
Los Alamos National Bank
Los Alamos National Bank
Morgan Keegan

Morgan Keegan

Mutual Securities

Mutual Securities

Mutual Securities

Mutual Securities

New Mexico Bank and Trust
NM State Investment Pool
Piper Jaffray

Piper Jaffray

Shearson

Shearson

Shearson

Sterne Agee

Sterne Agee

Sterne Agee

Sterne Agee

Washington Federal

Wells Fargo

Portigon/West LB
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Total Deposits Reconciling Reconciled
Account Type with bank Items Balance

FHLMC 1,653,536 $ - 3 1,653,536
Money Market 14,444,684 - 14,444,684
FHLB 1,600,000 - 1,600,000
FFCB 929,545 - 929,545
FHLB 7,044,451 - 7,044,451
FHLMC 996,116 - 996,116
FNMA 10,481,800 - 10,481,800
FICO 4,893,000 - 4,893,000
Money Market 43,034,470 - 43,034,470
Certificate of Deposit 250,000 - 250,000
Certificate of Deposit 250,000 - 250,000
Money Market 3,014,032 - 3,014,032
Money Market 6,004,933 - 6,004,933
Certificate of Deposit 6,278,116 - 6,278,116
Checking 7,645,103 - 7,645,103
Premium NOW 38,607,279 (3,746,071) 34,861,208
Savings 3,181,873 - 3,181,873
FNMA 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
FHLMC 2,997,330 - 2,997,330
FHLB 15,365,150 - 15,365,150
FHLMC 6,498,506 - 6,498,506
FNMA 5,481,001 - 5,481,001
FFCB 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Certificate of Deposit 248,000 - 248,000
State Treasurer LGIP 53,509 - 53,509
FHLMC 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
US Treasuries 1,020,000 - 1,020,000
FHLB 9,112,903 - 9,112,903
FNMA 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
FFCB 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
FHLB 3,000,299 - 3,000,299
FHLMC 3,009,087 - 3,009,087
FNMA 3,975,118 - 3,975,118
Certificate of Deposit 250,000 - 250,000
Certificate of Deposit 250,000 - 250,000
FNMA 998,774 - 998,774
Repurchase Agreement 425,905 - 425,905
216,994,519 $ (3,746,071) $§ 213,248,448
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2014
Housing
FDS Line Low Rent Choice
Item No. Public Housing Voucher CFP Programs _ Home Sales Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
111 Cash - Unrestricted $ 690,234 288,519 - 4,354,322 5,333,075
113 Cash - Other restricted 38,781 464,409 - - 503,190
114 Cash - Tenant security deposits 57,628 - - - 57,628
100 Total Cash 786,643 752,928 - 4,354,322 5,893,893
125-050 Accounts receivables - Miscellaneous - Other - 24,843 - - 24,843
126 Accounts receivables - Tenants 57,836 - - - 57,836
126.1  Allowance for doubtful accounts - Tenants (40,459) - - - (40,459)
120.0  Total receivables, net of allowance for doubtful acccounts 17,377 24,843 - - 42,220
142 Prepaid expenses and other assets 11,352 - - - 11,352
145 Assets held for sale - - - 143,029 143,029
150 Total current assets 815,372 777,771 - 4,497,351 6,090,494
Non-current assets:
161 Land 725,205 - - - 725,205
162 Buildings 7,836,345 - - - 7,836,345
164 Furniture, equipment & machinery - administration 437,236 - - - 437,236
166 Accumulated depreciation (3,598,885) - - - (3,598,885)
160 Total capital assets, net of lated depr 5,399,901 - - - 5,399,901
180 Total non-current assets 5,399,901 - - - 5,399,901
190 Total assets $ 6,215273 777,771 - 4,497,351 11,490,395
LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS
Current liabilities:
312 Accounts payable, less than 90 days $ 15,883 4,165 - 3,670 23,718
321 Accrued wages/payroll taxes payable 26,364 11,812 - - 38,176
341 Tenant security deposits 129,251 - - - 129,251
345 Other current liabilities - 25,369 - - 25,369
310 Total current liabilities 171,498 41,346 - 3,670 216,514
353 Non-current liabilities - Other - 106,115 - - 106,115
300 Total liabilities 171,498 147,461 - 3,670 322,629
400 Deferred inflow of resources - 31,260 - - 31,260
FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION
5084  Investment of capital assets $ 5399901 - - - 5,399,901
511.4  Restricted net position - 332,924 - - 332,924
512.4  Unrestricted net position 643,874 266,126 - 4,493,681 5,403,681
513 Total fund balance/net position 6,043,775 599,050 - 4,493,681 11,136,506
600 Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balance/net positior $ 6,215,273 777,771 - 4,497,351 11,490,395
Page 227
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2014
Housing
FDS Line Low Rent Choice
Item No. Public Housing Voucher CFP Programs  Home Sales Total
OPERATING REVENUES
70300  Net tenant rental revenue $ 431,989 - - - 431,989
70500 Total tenant revenue 431,989 - - - 431,989
70600 HUD PHA operating grants 371,270 2,199,828 153,174 - 2,724,272
70700 Total fee revenue 371,270 2,199,828 153,174 - 2,724,272
71100  Investment income - unrestricted 17,869 1,244 - - 19,113
71400  Fraud recovery - 8,317 - - 8,317
71500  Other revenue - 158,554 - 31,038 189,592
70000 Total revenue 821,128 2,367,943 153,174 31,038 3,373,283
EXPENSES
91100  Administrative salaries 54,826 66,932 32,166 - 153,924
91200  Auditing fees 15,000 7,500 - - 22,500
91500 Employee benefit contributions - administrative 16,476 27,028 16,038 - 59,542
91600  Office expenses 8,875 5,194 - - 14,069
91800  Travel - - 2,125 - 2,125
91900  Other - 19,930 - - 19,930
91000 Total Operating - Administrative 95,177 126,584 50,329 - 272,090
92100  Tenant services salaries 100,616 117,130 - - 217,746
92300 Employee benefit contributions - tenant services 40,648 51,240 - - 91,888
92500  Total tenant services 141,264 168,370 - - 309,634
93100 Water 43,759 1,039 - 928 45,726
93200  Electricity 21,289 1,761 - 50 23,100
93300 Gas 8,045 1,016 - 455 9,516
93800  Other utilities expense 51,338 - - - 51,338
93000 Total utilities 124,431 3,816 - 1,433 129,680
94100  Ordinary maintenance and operations - labor 199,097 - - - 199,097
94200  Ordinary maintenance and operations - materials and other 27,855 - 46,062 650 74,567
94300  Ordinary maintenance and operations contracts - - 53,533 7,257 60,790
94500 Employee benefit contributions - ordinary 114,103 - -| - 114,103
94000 Total maintenance ~. 341,055 - 99,595 7,907 448,557
96110  Property insurance 16,738 - - - 16,738
96120  Liability insurance 6,602 - - - 6,602
96130  Workmen's compensation 20,573 - e - 20,573
96140  All other insurance 6,621 - - - 6,621
96100 Total insurance premiums 50,534 - - - 50,534
96200  Other general expenses 5,648 5,105 3,250 4,683 18,686
96900  Total operating expenses 758,109 303,875 153,174 14,023 1,229,181
97000 Excess operating revenues over operating expenses 63,019 2,064,068 - 17,015 2,144,102
97300  Housing assistance payments - 1,855,754 - - 1,855,754
97350  Housing assistance payments portability-in - 134,545 - . 134,545
97400  Depreciation expense 227,908 - - - 227,908
90000 Total expenses 227,908 1,990,299 - - 2,218,207
10000 Excess (deficiency) of total revenues over (under)
total expenses $  (164,889) 73,769 - 17,015 (74,105)
MEMO ACCOUNT INFORMATION
11030  Beginning equity $ 6416925 § 535223 $ - $ 4476666 $ 11428814
11040  Prior period adjustments, equity transfers and correction of (208,261) (9,942) - - (218,203)
11170  Administrative fee equity - 266,126 - - 266,126
11180  Housing assistance payments equity - 332,924 - - 332,924
11190 Unit months available 2,388 3384 . - 5,772
11210 Number of unit months leased 2,291 3,254 - - 5,545
11270 Excess cash 519,681 - - - 519,681
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and Business Advisors LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the County Commission
Santa Fe County

and Mr. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information,
the budgetary comparisons of the general fund and major special revenue funds of Santa Fe County,
New Mexico (“County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements, and the
combining and individual funds and related budgetary comparisons of the County, presented as
supplemental information, and have issued our report thereon dated November 14, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

S1L02/792720034Q40038 M¥31D O24dS

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an apinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that
were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs to be a material weakness. 2013-001.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
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governance. During our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to
be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-002 and 2014-002.

County’s Response to Findings

The County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County’s responses were not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 14, 2014

Page 232
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the County Commission
Santa Fe County

and Mr. Hector H. Balderas
New Mexico State Auditor

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Santa Fe County, New Mexico’s {(“County”) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The
County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

$5102/922003Q80234 MH¥3aA1D 248

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2014.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed one instance of noncompliance, which is required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-001. Our opinion on each major federal program is not
modified with respect to this matter.

The County’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The County’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the responses.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 14, 2014

l AnQM Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors LLC www.axiomnm.com
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/PassThrough
Grantor/Program Title

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Dircct Assislance

CFP - 2011

CFP-2012

CFP - 2013

Section 8 Houssing Choice Vouchers

Public and Indian Housing Low Rent Subsidy
Total U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Devel

U.S. Department of Justice
Joint Law Enforcement Operations Task Force
Joint Law Enforcement Operations Task Force
Total U.S. Department of Justice

Executive Office of the President
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA)

U.S. Department of Interior
Water Conscrvation Implementation & Inventory of Water Resowrces
El Camino Real de Ticrra Adentro National Historic Trail

Total U.S. Department of Interior

U.S Department of Homeland Security
FEMA-Homeland Security Grant
2013 State Homcland Sccurity Grant

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. Department of Agriculfure - Forest Service
Collaborative Forest Restorative Grant

Total Direct Assistance
PASS-THROUGH ASSISTANCE

U.S. Department of Transportation
pass through NM Department of Transportation
Operation DWI
Operation DWI
Operation Buckie Down
Operation Buckle Down
Selective Traffic Enforcement Program
100 Days and Nights of Summer
Statewide Expanded Oper. DWI-SEDWI
Vehicle Seizure Program
NE/SE Conncclor
TCSP Grant
Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Interior
pass through from NMAC:
Wildfire Risk Reduction
Wildfire Risk Reduction
Total U.S. Department of Interior

U.S. Department of Justice:
pass through from NM Department of Public Safety:
Region III Drug Enforcement
pass through from the City of Santa Fe as Fiscal Agent:
2013 Edward Byrne Memorial - JAG
Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
pass through from New Mexico Department of Public Safety
Assistance 1o Firefighters Grant Prog /SAFER Program
pass through State Fire Marshall - Hazardous Materials
HAZMAT
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. Department of Hi and Urban Develop t
pass through NM Dept. of Finance and Administration
Community Development Block

U.S. Department of Agriculture
pass through from NM Department of Education Student Nutrition
Nationat School Lunch Program
pass through NM Department of Finance and Administration
U.S. Forest Service
U.S. Forest Service
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S Department of Health and Human Services
Aging Cluster-Passed through New Mexico Central Economic Community
Nutrition Services
Nurition Services
Nutrition Services Incentive Program
Total U.S. Department of Heaith & Human Services

Total pass through assistance
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards
Page 236

Federal CFDA #

14.872
14.872
14872
14.871
14.850

16.111
16.111

95.001

153530
15.935

97.067
97.067

10.679

20.608
20.608
20.608
20.608
20.608
20.608
20.608
20.608
20.205
20.205

15.228
15228

16.738

16.738

97.044

97.093

14.218

10.555

10.666
10.666

93.045
93.045
93.053

See A ing Notes to Schedule of E:

Pass-Through Grantor's Number

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

M-13-D51-0-000332
M-14-D51-0-000161

G12SNOO11A

R11AP40026
P13AC00949

EMW-2011-8S-00094-S01-Santa Fe County
EMW-2013-58-00152-501

10-DG-11031000-030

13-AL-64-091
14-AL-64-091
13-OP-RF-091
14-OP-RF-091
14-RF-01-091
14-EE-DS-091
13-AL-64-P05 SFSO
14-AL-64-P10
SFC#2012-0149-PW/VO
D14079

2013 NMAC Granis
2013 NMAC Grants

13-JAG-Reglll-SFY 14

2013-DJ-BX-0843

#EMW-2009-FF-00453

N/A

12-C-NR-1-01-G-36

N/A

SRS Title 1
SRS Title IIT

Title HIC-1
Title IHIC-2
NSIP

ditures of Federal Awards

Federal
Expenditures

$ 13,396
127,958

75,373
2,295,514
524,444
3,036,685

5,966
1,542
7,508

255,753

11,224
2,282
13,506

26,265
22,405
48,670

82,876

3,444,998

14,299
20,841
4,862
950
1,251
4999
6,626
6,600
189,661
108,582
358,671

4,100
35,826
39,926

148,989

13,856
162,845

123,281

10,086

133,367

321,650

36,910

63,598
22,446
122,954

53,255
22,191
33,758

109,204

1,248,617
S 4@



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Santa Fe County,
New Mexico and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements.

NOTE 2 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the federal or pass-through grantor or the
2014 Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

Page 237
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? x  Yes No

o Significant deficiency identified that are

not considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X None Reported
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? Yes x _ No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes x  No

¢ Significant deficiency identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es) Yes X None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-133? X Yes No

Identification of Major Program

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
14.850 Public and Indian Housing Low Rent Subsidy

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A

and type B programs $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
2013-001 [13-01] Prior Period Adjustment (Material Weakness) - revised and repeated
CONDITION

During our testing of the current year capital asset balances for governmental activities, it was identified
that road projects, which aggregated to approximately $18.9 million, that occurred during the period July
1, 2003, to June 30, 2013, were not capitalized as a depreciable asset on the Statement of Net Position. It
was further identified that accumulated depreciation on government and enterprise capital assets was
understated by approximately $14.3 million. Correction of these identified items required a $4.6 million
prior period adjustment to restate the July 1, 2013, beginning net position as reported in the June 30,
2014, financial statements.

CRITERIA

GASB Codification Section 1400, Reporting Capital Assets, paragraph 131 requires that assets be
capitalized when outlays for the asset have been made and when activities that are necessary to get the
asset ready for its intended use are in progress. Furthermore, paragraph 104 of the same codification
requires that capital assets including infrastructure be depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
Finally, sound accounting policies require that a complete, balanced general ledger be maintained to
record transactions and report financial information.

EFFECT

The absence of true and accurately reported assets can mislead the users of the financial statements and/or
bonding agencies as they solely rely on the financial statements and do not have access to separately
tracked schedules of infrastructure.

CAUSE

The County has been tracking capital projects related to roads separately from the subsidiary ledger in
their AS400 accounting system. Furthermore, there was confusion on the implementation of GASBS 34,
Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments, as to whether the assets should have been capitalized. As such the FY2004 assets were not
capitalized and the absence of capitalization continued through FY2013 (However, were separately
tracked during that period of time). Accumulated depreciation was identified in subsequent audits to be
functioning correctly in calculating the balance for the current fiscal years depreciation (utilization of the
module was not until 2010); however, there was question in prior fiscal years as to whether the fixed
assets module should be used. As a result the related depreciation was not tracked within the system for a
period of time which caused accumulated depreciation to not reflect the accurate balance.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the County establish a reconcilement process which tracks road projects which are
subject to capitalization and reflected within the Statement of Net Position and those that are not subject
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
2013-001 {13-01] Prior Period Adjustment (Material Weakness) - revised and repeated (continued)

to capitalization, due to County Commission setting a $250,000 threshold as a capitalization floor, but
which are reported to the County Commission as having been structurally maintained by the public works
department. The mileage generated from these two schedules should subsequently be reconciled, on an
annual basis, to the road mileage certification that is presented and certified by the County Commission. It
is further recommended that the County consider capitalizing all roads into their AS400 system to assist
with tracking of the assets as to avoid risk for loss of the related data.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The certification presented by the public works road division is a physical inventory of all of the roads
owned and structurally maintained by Santa Fe County. The County finance division will work with the
public works road division to reconcile disbursements related to the roads listed on the annual public
works certification to determine a beginning point for a reconciliation process. The capital asset detail for
all capitalized road acquisitions, for all fiscal years, does exist and will be used as a point of comparison
to the road certification.

The County will continue to update existing accounting policies and procedures to ensure that all capital

costs, whether they are tracked within the capital assets software or outside of the capital assets software,
are accounted for in the Statement of Net Position.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

B. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

2013-002 [13-02] Payroll Disbursements Transaction Cycle (Other Matters) - revised and repeated
CONDITION

Through the course of the current year audit pertaining to the payroll disbursements transaction control
cycle we noted that in a sample of 40 tested, two employees gross pay did not calculate correctly. As a
result of the gross pay not calculating, one employee was found to be underpaid by $1.77 and the other by
$21.90.

CRITERIA

6-5-2C NMSA 1978 states that an entity shall implement internal accounting controls designed to prevent
accounting errors and violations of state and federal law and rules related to financial matters.

EFFECT

Inaccurate processing of payroll transactions and inadequately kept payroll records increases risk for
unauthorized or erroneous payroll transactions to occur during the fiscal year.

CAUSE

The cause of the gross pay calculation error was identified to be an error in the payroll system Code 16
used to calculate shift differentials for certain classifications of employees.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the County evaluate the extent of the Code 16 error, discuss with their system
support whether there is a fix to the issue or remove the Code from being an available code from which to
process payroll.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The payroll Code 16 was corrected in the payroll system to no longer allow for the blending of rates for
shift differentials. The system changes made to code 16 were verified by staff and manual calculations
were completed to ensure that the system would process an employees pay to their base rate rather than
“blending rates”. As an additional precautionary measure, staff has eliminated the use of the premium
hours (PH) classification to ensure that the blending of rates will not occur.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

C. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
2014-001 Special Tests (noncompliance - other matters)

Federal program information:

Funding agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Title: Public and Indian Housing
CFDA Number: 14.850
Award year: 2013
CONDITION

During our testing of the tenant participation funds it was noted that the County did not have a current
agreement in effect with the related residence councils for the fiscal year; therefore, we were unable to
test that the funding provided for tenant participation had been allocated to the residence councils in
accordance with the written agreement.

CRITERIA

24 CFR section 964.150 identifies that funding provided by a public housing authority to a duly elected
resident council may be made only under a written agreement between the public housing authority and
the resident council that includes a resident council budget.

QUESTIONED COSTS

None

EFFECT

The absence of an agreement can cause inaccurate allocation of tenant participation funds to the related
residence councils. As a result of the inaccurate allocation, the residence council may not be able to
function as intended to improve the quality of life and resident satisfaction and may not be able to
participate in self-help initiatives to enable its residents to create a positive living environment.

CAUSE

The prior fiscal year agreement was not renewed into the current fiscal year.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that the County implement a mechanism to track all agreements entered into and to

implement a procedure for flagging the responsible department when certain action is required under that
agreement.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2014

C. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
2014-001 Special Tests (noncompliance - other matters) - Continued
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

Current agreements have been established. The Housing staff has established a procedure to ensure that
the agreements are renewed timely. Annually, the Housing Manager/Director will ensure that an updated
agreement is in place before June 30%.

D. COMMENTS INCLUDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEW MEXICO STATE AUDITOR
RULE

2014-002 Procurement (noncompliance - other matters)
CONDITION

Through our procurement testing of a sample of 10 procurements, we identified four procurements in
which the County’s procurement was not in compliance with New Mexico statute as referenced in the
criteria section below.

CRITERIA

Section 13-1-154 NMSA 1978, Multiple Source Award; determination required, states that the office
(Procurement Department) shall make an official determination setting out the reasons for a multiple
source award (not completed in the procurements tested). Section 13-1-154C(1) further states that the
advertisement and request for proposals shall state that multiple contracts may or will be awarded, the
number of contracts that may or will be awarded and the description of the services or construction to be
performed under each contract. Evaluation of the advertisement and request for proposal did not identify
this required language.

EFFECT

Submitting a request for proposal without identifying to the potential vendors that the contract will be
awarded to multiple vendors could have caused potential vendors not to bid or cause potential vendors
who bid on the project to have to reject due to the multi-sourced nature of the request for proposal.
Furthermore, the absence for justification of executing a multi-sourced award may cause future question
as to the original intent of the request for proposal and whether it is appropriate given the circumstances at
the time of the proposal process.

CAUSE
The procurement department was unaware of the statutes requiring that the multi-source award be

justified or of the requirement that the request for proposal required disclosure of the above referenced
criteria under 13-1-154C(1) NMSA 1978.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30,2014

D. COMMENTS INCLUDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEW MEXICO STATE AUDITOR
RULE (CONTINUED)

2014-002 Procurement (noncompliance - other matters) - Continued
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the County procurement department review the referenced statute related to multi-
sourced awards and incorporate the criteria in future procurements.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
The Purchasing staff will update the policies to require that memos are maintained in the procurement
files to document the choice of a multiple source award for adequate delivery or service, if it is in the best

interest of the County. The memo will include information relative to the number of contracts that may
be awarded, and the description of services or construction to be performed under the contracts.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30,2014

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Description

13-01 Prior Period Adjustment and Material Adjustments
13-02 Payroll Disbursements Transaction Cycle Control Deficiencies
13-03 Information Technology - IT Security Risks and Backup
Retention Plan
13-04 Reporting (Public Housing Capital Fund CFDA #14.872)
13-05 Davis Bacon (Public Housing Capital Fund CFDA #14.872)
13-06 Suspension and Debarment (Public Housing Capital Fund
CFDA #14.872)
13-07 Reporting (Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
CFDA #14.871)
13-08 Reporting (High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area
CFDA #95.001)
13-09 Expenditures in Excess of Budget
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Revised and repeated
Revised and repeated

Resolved
Resolved
Resolved
Resolved

Resolved

Resolved
Resolved
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
SANTA FE COUNTY
EXIT CONFERENCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

An exit conference was conducted on November 10, 2014, in a closed meeting, in which the
contents of this report were discussed with the following:

Santa Fe County

Robert A. Anaya, County Commissioner

Katherine Miller, County Manager

Teresa C. Martinez, Finance Division Director
Gregory S. Shaffer, County Attorney

Domingo Martinez, County Assessor

Gus Martinez, County Assessor Elect

Adam Leigland, Public Works Department Director
Claudia Borchert, Utilities Division Director
Jeanette Duran, Accountant Senior

Stephen Shepherd, Business Finance Manager
Rachel O’Connor, Community Services Director
James Ron Pacheco, Executive Director of Housing Operations
William Taylor, Procurement Manger

Joyce Varela, Accountant

Vidella Montoya, Accountant

Samuel L. Montoya, Accounting Supervisor

Axiom Certified Public Accountants, LLC

Chris Garner, Partner

Jim Cox, Supervisor

The financial statements were prepared with assistance of Axiom Certified Public Accountants &
Business Advisors, LLC from the books and records of Santa Fe County. The County’s
management has reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes and they
believe that their records adequately support the financial statements.
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i ™ ol 102 GrantA_venue
‘Santa Fe, NM 87501
- (505) 986-6330

KEEPING YOU INFORMED =

The Office of the Santa Fe County Assessor staff recently conducted a ﬂewld
review of properties receiving agricultural status in Santa Fe County. In an effort
to keep you informed and to assist you with information, procedures and the
application process for applying the Special Method of Valuation for Agricultugal
Properties, my staff and | will be available at the following locations from 6:00 p.m.
to 7:30 p.m.

QUIREACH LOCATIONS

/;ﬂw«u(; -Be-n‘rfyﬂ. Chavez Center
' A 354 A Juan Medina Rd, Santa Cruz
January 28, 2015

S1L02/792/

el
180 A SR 503, Nambe
February 4, 2015

Ran

394 County Road 84, El Rancho
February 11. 2015

Galisteo Community Center W s s
34 Avenida Vieja, Galisteo ASSESSOR
February 16, 2015

If you qualify for this special

La Cienega Community Center method in valuation for property
50 A San Jose, La Cienega tax purposes, this will result in a
February 17, 2015 tower than market value
assessment.
Abedon Lopez Community Center

155 Camino de Quintana Espafiola
February 24, 2015

W

117 Qualil Trial Edgewood

www.santafecountynm.gov/assessor
February 26. 2015
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Jan 25,2015

To the County Commissioners:

[ have taken a number of quotes from the Global Warming Express kids, to explain why
they so vehemently support Commissioner Kathy Holian's resolution in support of the
Endangered Species Act.

“There are already 20,000 species near extinction on the planet. Because of human causes
and Climate Change, the rate of extinction is 100-200 times greater than ever. This is
already a problem. Why would you not want an endangered species rule to help the
animals as much as you possibly could? “Joanna Whysner, age 12, GWE

“The polar ice is very important and the polar bears are losing their world. This is a Big
Problem. We need to do everything we can to keep our animals and wildlife.” Gavin
Brennan, age 10, GWE

“Why should we protect our animals? Many species of animals are going extinct. Reindeer
and Caribou are dying out, because their habitats are getting warmer. That means that in
Asia, North America and Greenland they won't be alive and the people who hunt them will
not have food. Cold water fish are dying too. “ Skylar Bixby, age 11, GWE

“We are losing our animals’ habitats by cutting down the trees and taking their
environments. We cause climate change by burning fossil fuels. I am angry becauset
humans caused all of this and we are not doing a lot about it. Also, I am sad because the
animals are dying. We can help the animals by protecting where they live so that they can
live a long life. “ Marina Weber (written when she was11) GWE

“I am afraid because there will not be enough plants and animals for our future . It will get
to hot for them here (in NM) I am mad because it is almost never cool enough to play
outside. How do you think THEY feel? “ Jayden, age 8, GWE

To the GWEders, the first focus for all of us humans ought to be the wild species. For kids,
their concern for the animals is stronger than their concerns for the humans.

-Genie Stevens, Executive Director, The Global Warming Express
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EXHIBIT

Henry P. Roybal
Commissioner, District 1

Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, District 5

Miguel M. Chavez
Commissioner, District 2

Robert A. Anaya Katherine Miller

Commissioner, District 3 County Manager
MEMORANDUM
DATE: January 14, 2015
TO: Board of County Commissioners
FROM: Robert Griego, Planning Manager "o¢
VIA: Penny Ellis-Green, Growth Management Director‘PZQ .

Katherine Miller, County Manager

ITEM & ISSUE: RESOLUTION 2015- A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A

PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR EACH OF THE FOLLOWING AREAS: VILLAGE OF
AGUA FRIA ZONING DISTRICT, LA CIENEGA/LA CIENEGUILLA COMMUNITY
ZONING DISTRICT, LOS CERRILLOS COMMUNITY ZONING DISTRICT, MADRID
COMMUNITY PLANNING DISTRICT, POJOAQUE VALLEY COMMUNITY DISTRICT,
SAN MARCOS COMMUNITY PLANNING DISTRICT, US 285 SOUTH HIGHWAY
CORRIDOR ZONING DISTRICT, TESUQUE COMMUNITY ZONING DISTRICT,
GALISTEO COMMUNITY PLANNING DISTRICT, SAN PEDRO CONTEMPORARY
COMMUNITY ZONING DISTRICT, AND TRES ARROYOS DEL PONIENTE ZONING
DISTRICT

SUMMARY:
The purpose of this Resolution is to establish planning committees for communities with adopted
community district or corridor plans and/or community district ordinances.

BACKGROUND:

The Board approved the Sustainable Growth Management Plan (SGMP) by Resolution 2010-210 in
November 2010 as the County’s Comprehensive Plan. The SGMP recognizes adopted community
Plans and indicates that the County will honor existing community plans as amendments to the
SGMP:

Policy 3.1
Recognize and integrate community plans, zoning and land use criteria in the SGMP and
SLDC and ensure that the SDLC zoning map incorporates approved community plans and
ordinances. Adopted community plans will be an amendment and refinement to the SGMP.
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The Board adopted the Sustainable Land Development Code (SLDC) in December 2013 and is in
the process of establishing the Official Zoning Map for Santa Fe County. The zoning map adoption
process was initiated in March 2014 after which several public meetings on the zoning map were
held by the Board. At a Board of County Commissioners Special Meeting on October 14, 2014, the
Board voted to adopt Option 3 of a document presented to them for consideration that directed
“staff to work with communities to do consistency review between community plans and the SGMP
and prepare Overlay Community Districts (O-CD).”

Santa Fe County Ordinance 2002-3 outlines a community planning process to include establishment
of planning committees for the development of community plans which is supported through the
SGMP. Ordinance 2002-3 includes a provision for the Land Use Administrator to streamline the
community planning process which must include public notification and community meeting
requirements. Additionally, it provides for the formation of community planning committees with
membership to include residents, property owners, business owners and community groups which
should be representative of the community’s diversity.

Staff has engaged in the following community outreach to establish planning committees:

Email notification to contacts database,

County press release,

Notice on County website along with Planning Committee Membership form,

Flyers distributed to senior centers and satellite offices,

Newspaper advertisements in the following publications: Journal North, Santa Fe
New Mexican, Rio Grande Sun, Edgewood Independent and Mountain View
Telegraph, and

6. Staff outreach

Nnhwb =

The County has provided outreach to the 12 listed communities for their participation on
community planning committees to complete community plan updates for amendment of the
SGMP, to create community overlay districts for amendment to the SLDC, and for proposing
changes to the Zoning Map. Eighty-eight individuals have submitted an interest to serve on one of
these planning committees. Staff has reviewed the planning committee applications and has
determined that 11 of Community Planning Committees meet the requirements to establish an initial
planning committee. El Valle de Arroyo Seco community had only one member who submitted an
application which will require further coordination with the community to establish this planning
committee at a later time.

Membership on the planning committees shall be open throughout the planning process. The list of
members for each Community Planning Committee is identified in Exhibit 1 a-k.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has reviewed the planning committee membership list and recommends that the Board
approve the Resolution to establish a Planning Committee for each of the communities identified in
Exhibit 1.  Planning committee membership shall be open throughout the planning process in
accordance with Ordinance 2002-3.



EXHIBIT 1:

a
b
C.
d
c.
f
g
h
i
j.
k

Community Planning Committee Membership List

Village of Agua Fria Planning Committee

. La Cienega/La Cieneguilla Planning Committee

Los Cerrillos Planning Committee

. Madrid Planning Committee

Pojoaque Valley Planning Committee
San Marcos Community Planning Committee

. US 285 South Highway Corridor District Planning Committee
. Tesuque Community Planning Committee

Galisteo Community Planning Committee
San Pedro Planning Committee
Tres Arroyos Del Poniente Planning Committee
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a.

Village of Agua Fria Planning Committee

Owner
5 i

e

Business Name &
Address

Gilbert Tercero yes Yes no Yes
Ramon's Gas & Diesel

Ramon Romero Yes yes Yes #2111 Camino Polvoso Yes
Santa Fe, NM 87507

Zane Fischer Yes Yes No No

Henry Chavez, Jr No Yes No No

Loss Mee Yes Yes No Yes

William H. Mee Yes Yes Yes Acequia Agua Fria Yes

Tai Bixby Yes No No Yes

Gloria P. Narvaz Yes




b. La Cienega/La Cieneguilla Planning Committee

La Cienega - La Cieneguilla Planning Committee Membership

Property Business Community
Name Owner Resident Owner Business Name & Address Group
Rick Dumiak Yes Yes No No
David Camp Yes Yes
Alonzo Gallegos
Juan J. Gonzales Yes Yes Yes J.J. Gonzaks Plumbing Yes
Santa Fe Downs
27475 West Frontage Road
Robert Romero Yes No Yes Santa Fe, NM 87507 No
Gene Bostwick Yes Yes Yes
Tom Dixon Yes Yes Yes
Sylvia LeMaster Yes
Tino Gallegos Yes Yes Yes
Jose Varela Lopez |Yes Yes Yes
Stan Jones Yes
Ivan Tryjillo Yes Yes Yes
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C.

Los Cerrillos Community Planning Committee

Los Cerrillos Communi

Resident

’ Planning Committee

Business Owner
o
,‘-.ﬁs&lég;g:

Business Name & Community
Address

Todd Brown Yes Yes Yes Casa Grande Trading Post Yes
Cielito Lindo Designs, LLC
11 Little Hills Ct.
Cedeno Ruben Yes Yes Yes Los Cerrillos, NM 87010 No
Yes - El
Vadito de los
Cerrillos
Allen Fowler Yes Yes No Water Assoc.
Patricia Brown Yes Yes Yes Casa Grande Trading Post Yes
Ann M. Murray Yes Yes Yes #12 Waldo Street Yes
Ross Lockridge Yes Yes Yes 12 Waldo Street Yes
Bonnie Gibons Yes Yes Yes Kiva Concepts, LLC No
Yes - Las
Candelas
Kludgit Sound Recording  |Community
Busy McCarroll Yes Yes Yes Studio Association




d. Madrid Community Planning Committee

Madrid Community Planning Committee
Property Business Business Name & Community
Resident Address
Michael Austin Wright
Contractor
2785 St. Highway 14
Michael A. Wright | Yes Yes Yes Madrid, NM Yes
Java Junction
Nancy Duncan  [Yes Yes Yes 2855 Highway 14 Yes
Eirk Johnson Yes Yes Yes Johnsons of Madrid Gallery [Yes
Ampersand Sustainable
Amanda Bramble |No No No Learning Center Yes
Trevor Burrowes |Yes Yes Not marked Not Marked
Rebecca Nafey [Yes Yes No Yes
2851 State Hwy 14N
Cabrielle Cathasha|Yes Yes Yes Madrid, NM 87010 Yes
Heaven Boutique
2853 NM14
Linda Dunnill Yes Yes Yes Los Cerrillos, NM 87010 [Yes
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e. Pojoaque Valley Planning Committee

Pojoaque Valley Community Planning Committee
Business | Business Name | Community
L _Residen

; .,v ﬁﬁ%}@éﬂk i f’
Vicente Roybal Yes Yes No Yes
Devin Bent No No No Yes
Heather Nordquist Yes Yes No Yes

Joseph Ortiz Yes Yes
Martha Trujillo Yes Yes No No
David Dogruel Yes Yes No No
Jacob Mendez Yes Yes No No




[ San Marcos Community Planning Committee

San Marcos Community District Plannin% Commnittee Members

Na

Property
Owner

Residen

Business
Owner

Business Name &
Address

Are youa
member of a
Community
group?

(YN

William Scruggs Yes Yes No
Sigmund Siber Yes Yes No
Valerie Nye Yes Yes No Yes
Walter Wait Yes Yes No Yes
Marie Harding Yes Yes Yes Synergia Ranch LL.C Yes
William Dempster Yes Yes No No
Nurses With Heart Home
Carolyn Moore Yes Yes Yes Care No
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US 285 South Highway Corridor Planning Commiittee

US 285 South Highway Corridor District Community
Planning Committee Membership

Property Business |Business Name &
Owner Resident
Lois Lockwood |Yes Yes No Yes
Greg Colello Yes Yes No Yes
Kathryn Toll Yes Yes No Yes
Eldorado Gas
Joe Miller Yes Yes Yes Station No

10



g. Tesuque Valley Community Planning Committee

Tesuque Valley Community Planning Committee Membership

Business Business Name & Community
Name Property Owner Resident Owner Address group?
Margo Cutler Yes Yes No Yes
) No
Jeanne C. Boyles Yes Yes Yes
‘Cameron Duncan Yes Yes No Yes
Sue Barnum Yes Yes No Yes
William Dougherty Yes Yes No Yes

11
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h. Galisteo Community Planning Commiittee

Galisteo Community Planning Committee Membershsip

Business Name & |Community
esidnt siness Owner Adress Group?

o
g

Name Property Owner

Roger Taylor Yes Yes No Yes
E. Franklin Hirsch Yes Yes No Yes
Lucy Lippard Yes Yes Yes freelance writer Yes
Ana Cardenas Yes Yes Yes
Leslie Dilworth Yes Yes Yes

12



i. San Pedro Planning Committee

San Pedro Community Planning Committee Membership

Name

Property
Owner

Resident

Business
Owner

Business Name &
Address

Community
group?

Jilea Lee Yes Yes No Yes
William Baker  |Yes Yes No
Sally Douglas Yes Yes No Yes
Helen Crotty Yes Yes No Yes
Toni Olson Yes Yes No Yes
South Mt. Pages,
11 B Blue Crow
Sandia Park, NM
Robert Clancy  |Yes Yes Yes 87047 Yes
Anna Wilder Yes Yes No Yes
Robert Bewlky |Yes Yes No Yes
James Freymiller |Yes Yes No Yes
Smgng Hills
Bill Bell Yes Yes Yes Ministry Camp Oro [Yes
San Pedro Rock,
Paul Parker Yes Yes Yes LLC No
Yes - San Pedro
Elizabeth A. Neighborhood
Elizabeth Morgan|Yes Yes Yes Morgan, MD LLC ([Assoc.

13
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J- Tres Arroyos Del Poniente Planning Committee

Pro

Owner

Business Owner

Tres Arroyos del Poniente (TAP) Community Planning Committee Membership

Community

Business Name &

Thomas Terwilliger |Yes Yes Yes

Sara Ann Noble Yes Yes

Sandrine Gaillard  |Yes Yes

William H. Mee Yes

Arthur Fields Yes Yes member of Aldea LLC |Yes - TAP




SANTA FE COUNTY

RESOLUTION 2015-

EXHIBIT

S

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY
COMMITTEE; REPEALING RESOLUTION NOS. 2011-52 AND 2012-15
ESTABLISHING THE ROAD ADVISORY COMMITTEE; AND AMENDING
RESOLUTION NO. 2012-151 TO REPLACE THE ROAD ADVISORY COMMITTEE
WITH THE TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) of Santa Fe County (County)
adopted Resolution Nos. 2011-52 and 2012-15, establishing a Road Advisory Committee (RAC);

and

WHEREAS, the BCC adopted Resolution No. 2012-151, which adopted A Policy
Establishing Procedures for the Orderly and Uniform Administration of the Santa Fe County
Process for Road Acceptance, Designation or Re-Designation, and for the Vacation of County-
Maintained Roads (the “Policy”); and

WHEREAS, the Policy assigns certain roles and responsibilities to the RAC; and

WHEREAS, the BCC adopted the Sustainable Growth Management Plan (SGMP) in
2010, Chapter 10 of which lays out County transportation goals; and

WHEREAS, these transportation goals extend beyond roads and include such items as
bike lanes and paths and public transit; and

WHEREAS, the BCC desires to improve implementation of the SGMP; and

WHEREAS, the BCC desires to replace the RAC with a new Transportation Advisory
Committee, so as to reflect that the County’s transportation goals extend beyond Roads.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the BCC as follows:

1. Resolution Nos. 2011-52 and 2012-15 are hereby repealed and the RAC is hereby
disbanded. Resolution No. 2012-151 is hereby amended by replacing the “Road Advisory
Committee” with the “Transportation Advisory Committee” everywhere it appears in that
resolution.

2. The Transportation Advisory Committee (sometimes, “Committee”) is created.
3. The tasks of the Transportation Advisory Committee shall include:
A. Review the road maintenance list annually and make recommendations on
such to the BCC.
B. Review and make recommendations on road operation and maintenance

policies proposed by the Public Works Department and suggest such policies to the Public
Works Department.

Page 1 of 3
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C. Discharge of the duties and responsibilities set forth in Resolution No.
2012-151.

D. Review all elements of transportation funding affecting the County,
including but not limited to, funding for the following: roadways, trails, bikeways, transit
improvements/facilities/services, pedestrian improvements, and bicycle improvements.

E. Review investment recommendations and provide input on transportation
planning, to include updating the 5-Year Road Improvement Plan and the Capital Improvement
Pian.

F. Perform other tasks and duties as assigned or communicated by the BCC
in the Committee’s annual work plan or otherwise.

4. The Committee shall be made up of elesen-thirteen (1113) members, two (2) from
each of Commission District Nos. 2. 4, and 3. three (3) from each of Commission District Nos. |
and 3. and one (1) at-large. Of the initial appointments, the at-large member and the members
from District 2-| and District 4 shall serve for a two-year term, and the remaining members shall
serve for a three-year term. All subsequent terms shall be for three years to maintain staggering
of terms. Members shall serve for no more than two (2) consecutive terms. For purposes of this
term limit, a term served on the RAC shall not be considered a term served on the Committee.

5. Members will be appointed by the BCC based on letters of interest, qualifications,
and County-wide representation. Members may be removed by the BCC with or without cause.
In addition, a member shall be deemed to have resigned their position if they fail to attend two
consecutive meetings of the Committee; provided, however, the member may request that the
BCC excuse their absences for good cause and allow them to continue serving on the Committee.
Vacancies shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term.

6. One Committee member from each Commission District s-may re+reside within
an incorporated municipality; provided. however. that no more than three (3} Committee
members mav reside within an incorporated municipalitv.  Committee members shall reside
within the Commission District they are representing. The at-large member may live in any
Commission District. Notwithstanding the geographic distribution of the members, all members
shall be charged with representing the best interests of the County as a whole.

7. The Committee shall select a chairperson and vice chairperson to serve for one-
year terms. The chairperson and vice chairperson shall be selected at the first Committee
meeting and annually thereafter.

8. The Committee shall meet no less frequentlv than quarterlv at resular dates and
times established by the Committee—fewer-thantwe-tHnesper—vear and no more frequently than
once per month, if needed. The meetings of the Committee shall be held at the Santa Fe County
Public Works Building, located at 424 Veterans Memorial Highway, Santa Fe, NM, and such
other locations as may be conducive to visible and publicly accessible meetings. Meetings shall
be held in accordance Resolution Nos. 2009-2 and Resolution No. 2014-137, as such may be
amended or replaced.

9. The terms of this Resolution are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and
authorizations being made for the operation of the Committee. If sufficient appropriations and
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authorizations are not made or given by the County, the Committee shall cease operation until
such time as adequate funding exists.

10. A quorum, as defined in Resolution No. 2009-2, Section II(A), is necessary for
the Committee to conduct business. All matters coming before the Committee shall be resolved
by majority vote.

11.  The County Manager shall appoint two staff members, one from Public Works
Department/Road Maintenance and one from Growth Management Department/Planning
Division, to provide administrative support to the Committee, including the preparation of
meeting minutes, the preparation of packets for Committee members prior to each meeting, and
the preparation and posting of meeting notices and agendas.

12.  The Committee shall adopt and present to the BCC for approval an annual work
plan. The first work plan shall be presented to the BCC for consideration within six months of
the adoption of this Resolution. Thereafter, work plans shall be presented during a regular
meeting of the BCC in January. The work plan shall include a list of tasks or topics to be
addressed by the Committee over the year along with a delivery schedule of updates, reports, and
other deliverables. The Committee may from time to time amend its work plan with approval
from the BCC. The BCC may amend the Committee’s work plan at any time. The Committee
shall update the BCC in accordance with its approved work plan.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 27" DAY OF JANUARY, 2015.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
SANTA FE COUNTY

Robert A. Anaya, Chairperson

Attest:

Geraldine Salazar, County Clerk

Approved as to form:

Gregory S. Shaffer, County Attorney
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House of Representatives Standing Committees

AGRICULTURTE, WATER & WILDLIFE

Tide

Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative

APPROPRIATIONS & FINANCE

Title

Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative
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Name

Candy Spence Ezzell
Andy Nunez

Paul C. Bandy
Randal 8. Crowder
George Dodge, Jr.
Bealguin Bill Gomez
Roberto "Bobby" J. Gonzales
Dona G. Trwin

Bill McCamley

Bob Wooley

Name

Larry A. Larrafiaga

Paul €. Bandy

Jimmie C. Hall

Sharon Clahchischilliage
Doreen Y. Gallegos
Stephanie Garcia Richard
Conrad James

Patricia A, Lundstrom
Sarah Maestas Bames
Dennis |. Roch

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role

Chair

Vice Chair
Deputy Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member



Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative

BUSINESS & EMPLOYMENT

Title

Representanive
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative

EDUCATION

Tide

xﬂm.:.ﬂmﬁ._.:...:f....

w__..,mmml'

Nick L. Salazar

Tomas E. Salazar

Jeff Steinborn

Chrstine Trupillo
Luciano "Lucky" Varela
Monica Youngblood

John L. Zimmerman

Name

Jane E. Powdrell-Culbert
Conrad James

David E. Adkins
George Dodge, Jr.
Candy Spence Ezzell
Miguel P. Garcia
Yvette Herrell

Dona G. Irwin

Tim D. Lewis

Rick Little

Debbie A. Rodella
Carl Trujillo

Jim R. Trujillo

Name

Nora Espinoza

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair
Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair



Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Represenmative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

_..L_r.1 resentatve
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ENROLLING & ENGROSSING - A

Titde

Representatve
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative

ENROLLING & ENGROSSING - B

Title

Representative
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Montea Youngblood
Dennis J. Roch

Alonzo Baldonado

Jim Dines

Stephante Garcia Richard
Jimmie C. Hall

D. Wonda Johnson
William "Bill" R. Rehm
G Andres Romero
Tomas E. Salazar

Sheryl Williams Stapleton

Christine Trujillo

Name

Sarah Maestas Bamnes
Jim Dines

David E. Adkins
Deborah A. Armstrong
D. Wonda Johnson
Stephanie Maez
Matthew McQueen

John L. Zimmerman

Name

Bealquin Bill Gomez

Vice Chair
Deputy Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair

Vice Chatr
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Role
Chair



Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative

Randal 8. Crowder

Javier Martinez

Rod Montoya

G. Andres Romero
Yatricio Ruiloba

Larry R. Scott

James G. Townsend

GOVERNMENT, ELECTIONS & INDIAN AFFAIRS

Title

Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative
HEALTH

Title
Representanve

Representative
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Name

James I Smith

Sharon Clahchischilhage
Eliseo Lee Alcon
Zachary |. Cook

Kelly K. Fajardo
Doreen Y. Gallegos
Dianne Miller Hamilton
James Roger Madalena
Antonio Maestas

W. Ken Martinez

Jane E. Powdrell-Culbert
Debbie A Rodella

Name
Terry H. McMillan
Kelly K. Fajardo

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chaar
Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair

Vice Chair



Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative

JUDICIARY

Title

Representatve
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative
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Deborah A. Armstrong
Giail Chasey

Georgene Louis

James Roger Madalena
Andy Nunez

Nick L. Salazar

Don L. Tripp

John L. Zimmerman

Name

Zachary J. Cook
Paul A. Pacheco
David E. Adkins
Eliseo Lee Alcon
Cathrynn N. Brown
Gail Chasey

Jim Dines

Brian [\, Bgolf, Jr.
Nate Gentry
Georgene Lows
Antonio Maestas
W. Ken Martinez
Terry H. McMillan

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chatr
Vice Chaur
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member



REGULATORY & PUBLIC AFFAIRS

Title

Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative

RULES & ORDER OF BUSINIESS

Title

Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative
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Name

Yvette Herrell

Bob Wooley

Deborah A. Armstrong
Nara Espinoza

D. Wonda Johnson
Patricia Roybal Caballero

James E. Smith

Name

Paul C. Bandy
Cathrynn N. Brown
Alonzo Baldonado
Gail Chasey

Zachary J. Cook
George Dodge, Jr.
Brian F. Egolf, Jr.
Kelly K. Fajardo
Larry A. Larrafiaga
Antonio Maestas
Sarah Maestas Barnes
W. Kén Martinez
Dennis J. Roch
Patricia Roybal Caballero

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair
Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member



Representative
Representative

Representanve

SFC CLERK RECORDEDO02./26/2015

SAFETY & CIVIL AFFAIRS

Title

Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

R n.._..:.‘....t. entanve

TRANSPORT

ATION & PUBLIC WORKS

Title

Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative
Representative

Representative
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Nick L. Salazar
Sheryl Williams Stapleton
Don L. Tripp

Name

William "Bill" R. Rehm
Rick Little

Alonzo Baldonado

G. Andres Romero
Patricia Roybal Caballero
Patricio Rutloba

Sheryl Williams Stapleton
James G, Townsend

Don L. Trpp

Name

Cathrynn N. Brown

Dianne Miller Hamilton
Bealquin Bill Gomez

Roberto "Bobby" |. Gonzales
Jason C. Harper

Larry A, Larraniaga

Patricia A. Lundstrom
Matthew McQueen

Rod Montoya

Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member



Representative Paul A. Pacheco
Representative Patricio Ruiloba
Representative Luciano "Lucky" Varela

WAYS & MEANS

Title Name
Representanve Jason C. Harper
Representative Tim D). Lewis
Representative Randal S. Crowder
Representative David M. Gallegos
Representative Miguel P. Garcia
Representative Stephanie Maez
Representative Javier Martinez
Representative Bill McCamley
Representative Rod Montoya
Representanve Larry R. Scott
Representative James R.J. Strickler
Representative Carl Trujillo
Representative Jim R. Trujillo
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Member
Member

Member

Role
Chair
Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member
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Senate Standing Committees

COMMITTEES' COMMITTEL

Title Name

Senator Mary Kay Papen
Senator Michael 8. Sanchez
Senator Pete Campos
Senator Carlos R, Cisneros
Senator Stuart Ingle
Senator George K. Munoz
Senator Michael Padilla
Senator William FL Payne
Senator Clemente Sanchez
Senator William I£, Sharer.
Senator John Arthur Smith

CONSERVATION

Title Name

Senator Peter Wirth
Senator Benny Shendo, |r.
Senator Joseph Cervantes
Senator Phal AL Griego
Senator Richard C. Martinez
Senator William L. Payne
Senator William E. Sharer
Senator William P. Soules
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Role
Chair

Vice Char
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Role
Chair
Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Member



Senator

Senator

Pat Woods
John C. Ryan

CORPORATIONS & TRANSPORTATION

Title

Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senaror
Senator
Senator

Senator

EDUCATION

Title

Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator

Senator
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Name

I’hil A Giriego
Clemente Sanchez
Lee S. Cotter
Mark Moores
Michael Padilla
Mary Kay Papen
Sander Rue

John M. Sapien
Mimi Stewart

William [E, Sharer

Name

John M. Sapien
William P. Soules
Craig W. Brandt
Lee S, Cotter
Bill B. O'Neill
Michael Padilla
John Pinto

Pat Woods

Gay G. Keman

Member

Ranking Member

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Ranking Member

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Ranking Member



FINANCE

Title

Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator

Senator

SFC CLERK RECORDED02.26.2015

Name

John Arthur Smith
Carlos R. Cisneros
William F. Burt
Pete Campos
Carroll H. Leavell
Howie C. Morales
George K. Munoz
Steven P Newville

Nancy Rodriguez

Sue Wilson Beffort

INDIAN & CULTURAL AFFAIRS

Title

Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator

Senator
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Name

John Pinto

Cisco McSorley
Stuart Ingle

Mary Kay Papen
Benny Shendo, Jr.
Lisa A. Torraco

Cliff R. Pirtle

Role
Chair
Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Ranking Member

Role

Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member

Member

Member
Ranking Member



JUDICIARY

Tide

Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator

Senator
PUBLIC AFFAIRS

Title

Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator
Senator

Senator

m_vwmm

Name

Richard C. Martinez
Joseph Cervantes
Ron Griggs

Linda M. Lopez
Cisco McSorley
John €, Ryan
Michael S. Sanchez
Lisa A. Torraco
Peter Wirth
William H. Payne

Name

Gerald Ortiz y Pino
Bill B. O'Neill
Jacob R. Candelaria

Ron Griggs
Daniel A. Ivey-Soto

Gay G. Keman
Mimi Stewart
Craig W, Brandt

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Ranking Member

Role
Chair

Vice Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Ranking Member
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RULIS

Title Name Role
Senator Linda M, Lopez Chair
Senator Daniel A. Tvey-Soto Vice Chair
Senator Jacob R. Candelaria Member
Senator Stuart Ingle Member
Senator Mark Moores Member
Senator Gerald Ortiz y Pino Member
Senator Chff R. Pirtle Member
Senator Clemente Sanchez Member
Senator Michael 5. Sanchez Member
Senator Sander Rue Ranking Member
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SFC CLERK RECORDEDO NQDQN@EHT\Q Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

Bill # Sponsor Short Title Description | Action
PREGNANT WORKER (For the Legislative Health and Human Services Committee) HHC/HB
ACCOMMODATION ACT creates the “Pregnant Worker Accommodation Act” relating to EC/HRP
HB 37 Gail Chasey employment rights of a pregnant woman. AC-HHC
(For the Water and Natural Resources Committee) Proposes the
Forest and Watershed Restoration Act to provide for long-term
FOREST & WATERSHED funding for forest and i.ﬁoaroa restoration, and creates the Forest
RESTORATION ACT and Watershed Restoration Board and the Forest and Watershed |HAWC/
. ‘Restoration Fund. (Monthly distribution of $1,250,000 from HEENC/
Paul C. Bandy; Peter Insurance Department Suspense Fund to Forest and Watershed HAFC-
HB38 |Wirth Restoration Fund.) HAWC
Starting with the 2015 taxable year, allows income taxpayers who
TAX REFUNDS FOR SENIOR are owed a refund to designate all or part of the refund amount to
SERVICES be paid to the North Central New Mexico Economic Development HTPWC/
District. That district is the non-metro Agency on Aging for HWMC-
HB 39 JimR. Trujillo providing supplemental senior services throughout the state. HTPWC
Appropriates $1,000,000 (GF) to HSD for expenditure in FY 2016
by the New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority, to assist
homeless people with services, including supportive housing,
rapid rehousing, case management, life skills training, rental
assistance and other services to help them obtain and maintain HHC/HA
SUPPORTIVE & RAPID stable and permanent housing. No more than five percent of the |FC-
HB 47 |TomasE. Salazar  |REHOUSING FOR HOMELESS appropriation shall be used for administrative expenses. HGEIC
(Identical to 2013 HB526) Authorizes a county assessor or
treasurer, if requested to do so by a property owner, to transmit HGEIC/
COUNTY NOTICES BY EMAIL notices pursuant to the Property Tax Code by electronic means HAFC-
HB 49 |Bob Wooley rather than by first-class mail. HGEIC

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM




2015 Legislative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT WAGE Eliminates collective @mammEEm m.m.ﬁ.ooaoam for wages and Esmo HBEC/H
CALCULATIONS benefits from the calculation of minimum wage rates on public TPWC-
HB 55 |Nora Espinoza works contracts. HBEC

VOTING VERIFICATION Q:Smmm.:u requirements ».,Oa voting in person or by mail;

PROCEDURES standardizes voter ID requirements statewide; and changes
HB 61 James E. Smith procedures for the issuance of temporary licenses. Prefiled
: Grants authority to the Secretary of State to cooperate with local,

VOTER REGISTRATION INFO . . : .
VERIFICATION state and federal agencies on verification of voter registration
HB 62 |JamesE.Smith | o information. Prefiled
(Endorsed by the New Mexico Finance Authority Oversight
NMFA PUBLIC PROJECT Committee) ?Eon.wNom the New Mexico E.Smsoo. Authority ﬁ.o
REVOLVING FUND PROJECTS make 90 public project loans from the Public Project Revolving

Fund (loans less than $1 million do not require specific
HB 63  |Patricia A. Lunstrom | authorization and need not be identified in this act) Prefiled

@m or the Revenue Stabilization and Tax Policy Committee)
Expands and clarifies what types of errors the county treasurer

PROPERTY TAX SCHEDULE may correct once the annual property tax schedule is transmitted to
CHANGE REQUESTS the treasurer by the county assessor. Also, allows property tax
owners additional grounds for challenging property tax schedule
HB 67 JimR. Trujillo errors through actions brought in district court. Prefiled

(Similar to SB 103) (Related to SB 92 and SB 93) A right-to-work
measure, cited as the Employee Preference Act, which provides
that, as a condition of employment, no person may be required to
become or to remain a member of, nor pay any dues, fees or
Wowmqmow of any kind to, a labor organization. Provides that an
employer may not require a person to be recommended, approved
or cleared by a labor organization as a condition of hiring,

HB 75 |Dennis J. Roch promotion or continued employment. Prefiled

EMPLOYEE PREFERENCE ACT

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM



SFC CLERK RECORDEDO 2 205 8diflative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

'Creates the Economic Growth and Energy Development
Transportation Fund and appropriates proceeds in the fund to the
Transportation Department. The fund will consist of proceeds
SEVERANCE BONDS FOR from the sale of severance tax bonds for projects specified in the
HB 92 |Larry Larrafiaga TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS  |bill. Prefiled
Appropriates $1,000,000 (GF, nonreverting) to Public Education
Department for expenditure in FY 2016 and subsequent fiscal
'years for the purchase and distribution of fresh fruits and
vegetables to school districts, charter schools and juvenile
NM GROWN PRODUCE FOR detention centers, and for a FTE position to administer and
SCHOOL MEALS promote this initiative. Prefiled
Appropriates $900,000 (GF) to Department of Health for
! expenditure in FY 2016 to fund county and tribal health councils’
| identification of local communities’ health needs and development
‘Sharon ID & ADDRESS LOCAL & TRIBAL |of strategies to address those needs pursuant to the Maternal and
HB 99  Clahchischilliage =~ |HEALTH NEEDS Child Health Plan Act. ) Prefiled

HB 96 Jimmie O\w@w:z

| (Duplicates SB112) Expands the definition of “agricultural use”

| for property valuation purposes and prohibits sole consideration of

| acreage in a determination of whether land is primarily used for

| agriculture. Expands the definition of “agricultural use” to

| include: « The use of land to raise or keep horses (does not include

the use of land to train, show or race horses); * The resting of land

to maintain it agricultural capacity; and ¢ The resting of land due

to drought conditions. Also specifies that the acreage of a parcel

: shall not be used as the sole determinant of whether it is used
mWo_uono "Bobby" J. |DEFINE AGRICULTURAL USE primarily for agricultural purposes. The bill’s provisions are

HB 112 |Gonzales meW PROPERTY TAX applicable to the 2016 and subsequent property tax years. Prefiled

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM



2015 Legislative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

'Proposes a new section of the Public Utility Act to provide for a
‘public utility or a generation and transmission cooperative to have
W the first right to construct, own and maintain an electric
transmission facility that is eligible for regional cost allocation and
'has been approved for construction by a regional transmission

'REGIONAL UTILITY organization. The public utility or cooperative must give notice to |
CONSTRUCTION OF the PRC in writing within 60 days of informing the regional !
HB 116 |Cathrynn N. Brown TRANSMISSION transmission organization that it exercises its right. Prefiled

(Substantially similar to 2011 HB 328 and SB 422, both of which
were vetoed by the Governor) (For the Science, Technology and
Telecommunications Committee) Amends the Enhanced 911
Bond Act, which was initially established in order to provide 911
service to (and authorize a related surcharge upon) commercial
radio operators, to apply to users of modern telecommunication
devices in addition to users of commercial radios. The bill
Roberto "Bobby" J. contemplates existing communications technology as well as

HB 126 |Gonzales E911 SURCHARGES possible future advances. Prefiled

Expands the definition of “local authority” within the Wastewater
Facility Construction Loan Act to include mutual domestic water
MUTUAL DOMESTICS AS LOCAL |consumers associations, thereby making those organizations
HB 128 |Kelly K. Fajardo AUTHORITIES eligible to apply for loans under the act. Prefiled

HB 135

ﬁ Raises over three years the New Mexico base minimum wage to
| $10.10 per hour. Starting January 1, 2016, indexes the minimum
| wage annually for inflation. Sets the minimum wage for tipped

HB 138 Miguel P. Garcia INCREASE MINIMUM WAGE employees at 40 percent of the general minimum wage. Prefiled
‘ Proposes a new special method for valuing recreational property
for property tax purposes. Requires Taxation and Revenue
Department to issue rules determining whether land is used
PUBLIC RECREATION LAND primarily for recreational purposes and determining the value of
HB 141 Patricia A. Lunstrom |SPECIAL VALUATION recreational property. Prefiled
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SFC CLERK RECORDEDO2/2A5 !@didlative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

Requests of members of the Legislature a moratorium until
December 31, 2020 on the consideration of legislation affecting
benefits under the Public Employees Retirement Act, unless there
is a significant downturn in the economy or a significant increase
in retirement plan funding ratio to 100 percent. Cites as rationale
for the delay the need for recently enacted reform measures to be
in place for several years to allow sufficient actuarial experience,
volatility in the investment market, uncertainty of the effect of
new accounting standards and size of the remaining unfunded
liability of retirement plans. Refers to the fact that the recently

| improved retirement plan funding ratio could prompt legislation
'DEFER RETIREMENT BENEFITS |that would adversely affect the present goal of 100 percent %
HIM2 [JimR.Truyjillo ~ LEGISLATION |retirement fund solvency by 2043. Prefiled

(For the Criminal Justice Reform Subcommittee and the Courts,
Corrections and Justice Committee) Requires law enforcement
agencies to adopt by January 1, 2016 and biennially review written
policies in consideration of enumerated practices to enhance
EYEWITNESS ID ACCURACY accuracy in live and photo lineups and showups by regulating the
PROCEDURES eyewitness identification environment, participants and process
and by preserving a reliable record of the process. Authorizes the
Secretary of Public Safety to develop, administer and conduct
eyewitness identification training programs for law enforcement |SPAC/S]

SB 16 Cisco McSorley officers and recruits. C-SPAC
PAID LEAVE FOR PARENT- Requires that employers meﬂ provide two hours of paid leave per | SEC/SC
TEACHER CONFERENCES semester per school-age child to employees to attend parent- ORC-
SB 20 Michael Padilla teacher conferences. SEC
SPAC/S
LOCAL ECONOMIC Includes Retail Businesses as Local Economic Development Act |CORC-

SB 32 Michael Padilla DEVELOPMENT ACT ENTITIES Qualified Entities SPAC
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2015 Legislative Session

Bill Tracking

County-Related Legislation

/Creates the Broadband Infrastructure Fund and appropriates to it
BROADBAND INFRASTRUCTURE {$10,000,000 (GF, nonreverting) for expenditure in FY 2015 and |SCORC/
,W FUND subsequent fiscal years to match federal money for broadband SFC-
SB 34 Michael Padilla infrastructure investments in rural New Mexico. SCORC
(Endorsed by the Mortgage Finance Authority Oversight
Committee) Provides rules to be adopted for housing assistance
AFFORDABLE HOUSING ACT grants by the Mortgage Finance Authority and other agencies; and
CHANGES for the timely sale of certain housing projects. Provides for
enforcement, and penalties for violations, of the Affordable SPAC/S]
SB61  Sander Rue Housing Act. C-SPAC
(Endorsed by the Mortgage Finance Authority Act Oversight
Committee) Removes “county” and “municipality” from the
AFFORDABLE HOUSING ACT >m,oam.zo Tax On.oa: Act definition of “person.” The act does .:oﬂ
DEFINITIONS apply directly to city or county governments, but only to a housing |
M authority that might be established by local government; and the SCORC/
term housing authority is included within the definition of SJC-
SB 62 Sander Rue “person.” SCORC
| (Endorsed by the New Mexico Finance Authority Oversight
”ZZm A WATER PROJECT FUND Committee) Authorizes the New Zoﬁoo.mmzmﬂoo Authority to
PROJECTS B&.S loans or grants from a.:.w Water T.G ect Fund for 127 water |SCONC/
projects on terms and conditions established by the Water Trust | SFC-
SB63  Joseph Cervantes Board and NMFA. SCONC
Provides for elections in local option districts that would authorize
restaurant licensees (beer and wine only) to also serve distilled
LOCAL ELECTIONS FOR NM- sprits produced in New Mexico. After July 1, 2015 elections could
PRODUCED LIQUOR SALES be held under existing law to allow the service of beer and wine |SRC/SC
only, or to serve both beer and wine and New Mexico-produced |ORC-
SB 71 William Soules distilled spirits. SRC

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM




SFC CLERK RECORDEDO2/3f£3difative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

SB 87

Nancy Rodriguez

NEW MEXICO HOUSING TRUST
FUND

(Endorsed by the Mortgage Finance Authority Act Oversight
Committee) Appropriates $5 million from GF (FY16) to the
Mortgage Finance Authority to carry out provisions of the New
Mexico Housing Trust Fund Act.

SCORC/
SFC-
SCORC

SB 88

' Nancy Rodriguez

SUPPORTIVE & RAPID
REHOUSING FOR HOMELESS

(Duplicate of HB47) Appropriates $1,000,000 (GF) to HSD for
expenditure in FY 2016 by the New Mexico Mortgage Finance
Authority, to assist homeless people with services, including
supportive housing, rapid rehousing, case management, life skills
training, rental assistance and other services to help them obtain
and maintain stable and permanent housing. No more than five
percent of the appropriation shall be used for administrative
expenses.

SPAC/SF
C-SPAC |

SB 92

Sander Rue

EMPLOYEE PREFERENCE ACT

provides that, as a condition of employment, no person may be
required to become or remain a member of, nor pay any dues, fees
or charges of any kind to, a labor organization. Provides that an
employer may not require a person to be recommended, approved
or cleared by a labor organization as a condition of hiring,
promotion or continued employment.

SPAC/S]
C-SPAC

SB 93

SB 99

Sander Rue

NO PUBLIC EMPLOYEE UNION
DUES FROM PAYROLL

Carlos R. Cisneros

CYBERSECURITY DEVICE
GROSS RECEIPTS

Under the Public Employee Bargaining Act the payroll deduction
of a public employee’s union membership dues is mandatory. This
bill stops that practice by requiring that such deductions shall not
be the subject of a bargaining agreement between a labor union
and a public employer. Unions are left to find some other way to
collect their membership dues.

SPAC/SJ
C-SPAC

B (For the Revenue Stabilization and Tax Policy Oo?mzomv

Provides a deduction from gross receipts for receipts from the sale
of a port locking or monitoring cybersecurity device, or related
software, from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2025.

SCORC/
SFC-
SCORC

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM




2015 Legislative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

(Related to 2014 SB 87) Decreases the state gross receipts tax;
GROSS RECEIPTS & HOLD reduces the amount of municipal or county hold harmless gross SCORC/
v HARMLESS TAX CHANGES receipts tax that may be imposed; repeals the hold harmless SFC-
SB 101  'Steven P. Neville ) distributions to municipalities and counties. SCORC
(Related to SB 92 and SB 93) A right-to-work measure, cited as
the Employee Preference Act, which provides that, as a condition |
of employment, no person may be required to become or remain a |
EMPLOYEE PREFERENCE member owu.sa. pay any .azmmv fees or charges of any kind 8.v a
labor organization. Provides that an employer may not require a
;person to be recommended, approved or cleared by a labor
organization as a condition of hiring, promotion or continued SPAC/S]
SB 103 | William E. Sharer ) employment. - C-SPAC
(For the Revenue Stabilization and Tax Policy Committee)
INSTALLMENTS FOR gt s o et s s sent i sceptng. | SCORC
Q delinquent tax payments extends to and includes the acceptance of [SPAC-
SB 104 'William E. Sharer installment payments from the property owner. SCORC
(For the Revenue Stabilization and Tax Policy Committee) Present
law provides that a business within a county, or within five miles
REPEAL COUNTY IRB of a county, may delay E.o mmmc.mboo of County Emcmﬁm_ Revenue
Bonds by filing a complaint with the County Commission that the
COMPLAINT PROCESS . oy - ;
bond project competes with its business. The bonds may not be
issued until after the state Board of Finance determines that the SCORC/
bond project does not compete. This bill abolishes the existing SJC-
SB 111 |Carroll H. Leavell complaint process by repealing Sec. 4-59-15. - SCORC
Expands the definition of “agricultural use” for property valuation |SCONC/
, DEFINE AGRICULTURAL USE purposes and prohibits sole consideration of acreage in a SCORC-
SB 112 'Carlos R. Cisneros FOR PROPERTY TAX determination of whether land is primarily used for agriculture. SCONC

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM
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CLERK RECORDEDO22pP5Edpishative Session

Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

(For the Transportation Infrastructure Revenue Committee)
Amends and re-names the County and Municipal Gasoline and

LOCAL GOV'T SPECIAL FUELS Special Fuel Tax Act to allow municipalities and counties to SCORC/
TAXES . .
impose by ordinance a tax of one or two cents per gallon sold at  |SFC-
SB 114 |Ron Griggs retail within the jurisdiction. SCORC
STOP COUNTY GROSS RECEIPTS (For the Revenue Stabilization and me.woy.wo% OoBEx.ﬁoov
TO SAFETY NET POOL Sunsets on December 31, 2018, the obligation of counties to pay
the state’s Safety Net Care Pool Fund annually an amount equal to |[SPAC/SF
SB 117 |Nancy Rodriguez that raised by a gross receipts tax rate of one-twelfth percent. C-SPAC
SCORC/
MWMHMMQ E COUNTY ROAD SPEED Amends the Motor Vehicle Code to limit the maximum speed on a| SJC-
SB125 |Pat Woods county road, without a posted speed limit, to 55 miles per hour. SCORC
Requires local government issuers of industrial revenue bonds to
provide timely notice of bond issuance to all local public bodies
whose property tax base is affected by the issuance; allows local
‘public bodies to comment on the impact of the bonds; requires
negotiation of payments in lieu of taxes for certain school districts
LOCAL GOV’T IRB NOTICES & |whose property tax base is impacted by the proposed issuance of |SEC/SFC;
SB 131 |Mimi Stewart IMPACTS industrial revenue bonds. SEC
(Similar to SB128 in 2013 that was vetoed by the Governor)
Embodies the Prospective Employee Credit Information Privacy
Act to prohibit a prospective employer from failing or refusing to |SCORC/
USE OF CREDIT INFO FOR recruit or interview a prospective employee based on that person’s |SJC-
SB 145 | Bill O'Neill EMPLOYEE RECRUITMENT credit information. Contains exceptions. SCORC

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM




2015 Legislative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

Authorizes the issuance of severance tax bonds and fund balances
to support funding for 172 capital outlay projects by state
agencies, colleges and universities, court projects, scenic railroad,
and for building renovations, land acquisition, state parks, forest
thinning, water rights settlement, river and stream restoration, and
'SEVERANCE TAX BOND 'to purchase various types of equipment, school busses and

SB 159 |Carlos R. Cisneros 'PROJECTS -vehicles. SFC
Provides $2 million (GF) to the Economic Development
Department for use in FY 2016 for cooperative marketing program

that provides matching funds to local economic development

organizations to increase business recruitment in those regions. SCORC/
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CO- |The department is required to report to the appropriate interim SFC-
SB 163 'Mary Kay Papen OP MARKETING legislative committee "on the program.” ~_|SCORC
W " Provides $300,000 (GF) to the Department of Information ]
| | Technology to support the implementation of a statewide SCORC/
” STATEWIDE BROADBAND broadband system through technical assistance, outreach, SFC-
SB 165 Mary Kay Papen SYSTEM IMPLEMENTATION education and training. SCORC

Provides $4.5 million (GF) to the Economic Development Grant
Fund for use in FY's 2016 through 2018 to implement provisions

of the Economic Development Grant Act. The Economic SCORC/
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Development Department shall report to the appropriate interim | SFC-
SB 167 Mary Kay Papen GRANT FUND & REPORTING legislative committee on the program. SCORC

ﬁ Clarifies that county and municipal treasurers may invest %E&sm
funds and money remaining unexpended from any bond or
security issue, as long as the money is not needed for public use,

in brokered certificates of deposit offered on the primary or SCORC/
LOCAL GOV'T INVESTMENT IN  |secondary market. This is in addition to the other permissible SFC-
SB 175 |Nancy Rodriguez CERTAIN CD'S investment categories already specified in the existing statute. SCORC
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Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

(Identical to HB 75; similar to SB 103; related to SB 92 and SB
93) A right-to-work measure, cited as the Employee Preference
Act, which provides that, as a condition of employment, no person
may be required to become or to remain a member of, nor pay any
dues, fees or charges of any kind to, a labor organization. Provides
that an employer may not require a person to be recommended,

, approved or cleared by a labor organization as a condition of SPAC/SJ
SB 183 | William E. Sharer | EMPLOYEE PREFERENCE ACT  hiring, promotion or continued employment. C-SPAC
(Related to 2014 HB 55 — Chapter 66 of 2014 — and related to
2015 HB 28, HB 66, SB 26 and SB 159) Prohibits issuance of SCONC/
NO STB PROJECTS IN CERTAIN |STB bonds to communities that increase the costs of mining SFC-

SB 184 |William E. Sharer  COUNTIES extraction by 25 percent or more. SCONC

Amends the Indigent Hospital and County Health Care Act to
require Human Services Department, HSD, to make quarterly
payments for indigent care from the Safety Net Care Pool Fund to
qualifying county hospitals. These payments are equal to, or may
be in excess of, the county’s contribution to the fund for the
SAFETY NET FUND PAYMENTS corresponding quarter—depending on the amount of indigent care| SPAC/SF
SB 191 |Steven P. Neville TO LOCAL HOSPITALS provided by a county hospital. C-SPAC
Requires district attorneys to appoint a practicing member of the
state bar to act as a special assistant district attorney within 30
days upon receiving a referral from the Secretary of State or a
SPECIAL PROSECUTOR FOR county clerk alleging Election Code or Municipal Election Code |SRC/SJC
SB 192 |Daniel A. Ivey-Soto | ELECTION VIOLATIONS violations. SRC

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM



2015 Legislative Session
Bill Tracking
County-Related Legislation

As a means of promoting uniformity of the law with respect to
absentee voting by military personnel or their dependents, as well
as U.S. citizens residing outside the U.S. who are unable to vote in
person, and for emergency responders, the Uniform Military and
Overseas Voters Act (Sections 6 through 22 of the bill) is offered.
It establishes procedures to preserve and ensure voting rights for a
“federal qualified elector,” meaning a uniformed service voter on
lactive status and a voter-eligible spouse and dependents who are
displaced from New Mexico due to the activated status.
Procedures apply to elections conducted under the Election Code
by a county clerk or under the Municipal Election Code by a
municipal clerk. The Secretary of State is responsible for
developing and distributing ballots and other materials to the
appropriate clerks for transmission to the federal qualified

: UNIFORM MILITARY & electors. Reconciling changes have been made to pertinent SRC/SJC
SB 195 |Daniel A. Ivey-Soto | OVERSEAS VOTERS ACT sections of the Election Code and the Municipal Code. ___|SRC
, (For the Courts, Corrections and Justice Committee) Requests the

New Mexico Association of Counties to convene stakeholders to
study and make recommendations for clinically appropriate
housing options for persons with serious mental illness who are in

SERVICES FOR MENTALLY ILL &

AWAITING TRIAL custody in county detention facilities. Asks that findings be
! reported to the appropriate interim legislative committees by SRC/SJC+
SIM4  [Sander Rue December 1, 2015. SRC

Updated: 1/27/2015 10:25 AM
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1/12/15

SENATE MEMORIAL

B2ND LEGISLATURE - STATE OF NEW MEXICO - FIRST SESSION, 2015

INTRODUCED BY

>

DISCUSSION DRAFT

A MEMORIAL
REQUESTING THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION TO CONVENE STAKEHOLDERS TO STUDY AND
MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS ON FEDERAL LAND MANAGEMENT AND OWNERSHIP
AND EVALUATE FEDERAL REVENUE STREAMS' IMPACTS ON THE STATE,

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND COMMUNITY ECONOMIES.

WHEREAS, New Mexico encompasses approximately seventy-
seven and one-half million acres of land; and

WHEREAS, approximately thirty-five percent of New Mexico's
land is federal land administered by agencies such as the
bureau of land management, the United States forest service,
the bureau of reclamation, the United States national park
service, the United States army corps of engineers, national
wildlife reserve areas, federal water resource development

projects and military installations; and

.198800.4
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WHEREAS, New Mexico and its counties depend on federal
revenues to support vital state, county and local budgets,
programs, services and operations; and

WHEREAS, New Mexico counties received thirty-seven million
six hundred seventy-seven thousand nine hundred five dollars
($37,677,905) in payments in lieu of taxes (PILT) in 2014 to
provide general fund revenue; and

WHEREAS, New Mexico received nine million five hundred
twelve thousand six hundred ninety-two dollars ($9,512,692) in
federal forest reserve payments in 2014 from the Secure Rural
Schools and Community Self-Determination Act of 2000 (SRS); and

WHEREAS, counties rely on federal funding through PILT and
SRS to provide essential support for schools, road
infrastructure, search and rescue operations, wildfire
preparedness, county operations and other community services
that protect the health, safety and welfare of New Mexico
residents; and

WHEREAS, federal funds are also distributed to county
governments as a pass-through from state agencies for county
infrastructure, economic development, wildfire prevention and
response, energy and natural resource investments, emergency
management, E911, health care and social programs; and

WHEREAS, there is increasing uncertainty regarding the
federal commitment to funding these vital county and state

programs, which makes it difficult to budget for necessary

.198800.4
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services; and

WHEREAS, there have been proposals for the state and
counties to take a more active role in federal land management;
and

WHEREAS, New Mexico and its counties have a vested
interest in decisions on federal land management and natural
resource exploration and development; and

WHEREAS, New Mexico and its counties need an evaluation of
the legal, economic and practical framework surrounding federal
land management;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SENATE OF THE STATE
OF NEW MEXICO that the local government division of the
department of finance and administration be requested to
convene stakeholders to:

A. study and make recommendations on the legal,
economic and practical framework surrounding federal land
management ;

B. conduct an inventory of federal land ownership
within the state;

C. evaluate state and county dependence on federal
revenue streams; and

D. consider not only state interests, but also the
interests of local governments and community economies in any
economic analysis; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that stakeholders include but not

.198800.4
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be limited to representatives from the New Mexico association
of counties; the New Mexico municipal league; Native American
pueblos, tribes, and nations; soil and water conservation
districts; land grant entities; acequia associations; the New
Mexico department of agriculture; and state and federal land
management agencies; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this memorial be
transmitted to the secretary of finance and administration.

-4 -
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THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF SANTA FE COUNTY

RESOLUTION No. 2014-

A RESOLUTION TO SUPPORT THE CREATION OF
A PUBLIC LAND TASK FORCE

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico encompasses approximately 77.6 million acres of
land;

WHEREAS, approximately 35% of New Mexico’s land is federal lands administered by
agencies such as the Bureau of Land Management, U.S. Forest Service, Bureau of Reclamation,
National Park Service, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, National Wildlife Reserve Areas, federal
water resource development projects and military installations;

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico and its counties depend on federal revenues to
support vital state, county and local budgets, programs, services and operations;

WHEREAS, New Mexico counties received $37,677,905 in Payments in Lieu of Taxes
(PILT) in 2014 to provide general fund revenue;

WHEREAS, New Mexico counties received $5,054,742 in Federal Forest Reserve
payments in 2014 from the Secure Rural Schools & Community Self Determination Act (SRS);

WHEREAS, counties rely on federal funding through PILT and SRS to provide essential
support for schools, road infrastructure, search and rescue operation, wildfire preparedness,
county operations and other community services that protect the health, safety, and welfare of
New Mexico citizens;

WHEREAS, federal funds are also distributed to county governments as a pass-through
from state agencies for county infrastructure, economic development, wildfire prevention and
response, energy and natural resource investments, emergency management, E911, health care,
and social programs;

WHEREAS, there is increasing uncertainty regarding the federal commitment to funding
these vital county and state programs, which makes it difficult to budget for necessary services;

§102,/92,20434Qy023y4 XMY31D O4dS



WHEREAS, there have been proposals for the State and counties to take a more active
role in federal land management, including the potential for transfer of certain federal lands to
the state;

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico and its counties have a vested interest in decisions
on federal land management, natural resource exploration and development;

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico and its counties need an evaluation of the legal,
economic and practical implications of any potential transfer of federal lands; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Santa Fe Board of County
Commissioners does hereby support legislation requesting the State of New Mexico to create a
task force to: 1) study the legal, economic and practical framework surrounding the potential
transfer of certain public lands from the federal government; 2) conduct an inventory of federal
land ownership within the state; and 3) evaluate state and county dependence on federal revenue

streams, and report and make recommendations to the appropriate legislative committee no later
than November 1, 2015.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 30" Day of September 2014.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF SANTA FE COUNTY

By:

Daniel W. Mayfield, Chair

Attest:

Geraldine Salazar, Santa Fe County Clerk

Approved as to form:

~ -

é r- Gregory S. Shaffer, County Attorney



BILL 3
52ND LEGISLATURE - STATE OF NEW MEXICO - FIRST SESSION, 2015

INTRODUCED BY

AN ACT
RELATING TO COUNTY GOVERNMENT; AMENDING SECTION 4-38-8 NMSA 1978 TO
REMOVE THE LIMITATION ON THE TYPES OF BUILDINGS{IN WHICH THE BOARD

OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS MAY HOLD MEETINGS.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO:
SECTION 1. Section 4-38-8 NMSA 1978 (being Laws 1876, Chapter 1, Section 11, as
amended) is amended to read: ;
“4-38-8. Meetings.--The board of county commissioners shall meet, after notice as
required by law for meetings of public bodies, at the county seat of each county at quarterly
meetings in January, April, July and Qctober in each year and at such other times within the
prescribed county as in the opinion of the board the public interests may require. Meetings other

than quarterly meetings may be held in the municipality with the largest population

concentration in the county, and meetings concerning matters of local interest only may be held

in the community affected. [2

senrty-epublicsehosls:]”
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Henry P. Roybal
Commissioner, District 1

Kathy Holian
Commissioner, District 4

Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, District 5

Katherine Miller
County Manager

Miguel M. Chavez
Commissioner, District 2

Robert A. Anaya
Commissioner, District 3

DATE: January 23, 2014

TO: New Mexico Congressional Delegation

FROM: Miguel Chavez, County Commissioner District 2 777 ..
RE: Interchange at NM 599/Via Veteranos (CR70 Connector)

The attached documentation references the interchange at NM 599/Via Veteranos (CR70
Connector) and the issues and possible resolution to the problems that have occurred in the area. I
fully support the effort to make this area safer and would like to do so in the most permanent and
effective manner.

Although, NM 599 must continue to function as a relief route for the City of Santa Fe and as an
alternative for hazardous waste transport from Los Alamos, improved access is needed for the all
modes of travel as the area continues to develop. This requires input and cooperation from all
stakeholders.

Given the fact that the WIPP site in Southern New Mexico is on hiatus, it is an appropriate time to
fix the roadway through which the radioactive waste is transported in anticipation of the reopening
of the WIPP site. Given the recent events at the WIPP site, it is most apparent that proper planning
needs to'take place in order to ensure the safety of residents and the environment.

As a member of the Metropolitan Planning Organization, I have requested that this subject be
placed on the agenda for the January 29, 2014 meeting so that it can be made a top priority. The
Metropolitan Planning Organization Final Project Prioritization Plan for the NM 599 Corridor
(attached) suggests that the safest solution would be an interchange rather than a traffic signal.
Although this may be the more costly option, I believe that given the incidents that have occurred, it
is very important to complete the project correctly.

Although improvement to this corridor does not fall under Santa Fe County jurisdiction, our office
has requested that the three (3) law enforcement agencies coordinate and increase police patrols in
the area until there can be a permanent resolution. It appears as though this problem continues to
get more severe and is placing the residents and the region at a great amount of risk.

102 Grant Avenue - P.O. Box 276 - Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 - 505-986-6200 - FAX:
505-995-2740 www.santafecountynm.gov
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Purpose and Need - Page 2 (http://santafempo.org/wp-content/uploads/2010/04/Sections-I-VI_NM-
599-Phase-B.pdf)

The crash rates on NM 599 for the period from 2003 through 2007 were below the statewide average;
however, the crashes have a high severity at the unsignalized intersections with most of the crashes
having injuries. Fatal crashes within the five year period were all single car crashes mostly occurring at
horizontal curves. The fatality rate in 2006 was much higher than the statewide rate because there were
four fatalities in one crash. The lack of gaps in NM 599 traffic during the peak hours causes drivers to
take risks to cross or access NM 599 which leads to a public concern about safety at the existing
intersections.

NM 599 is used for local circulation in the area; however, the unsignalized intersections have failing
levels of service during the peak hours. The NM 599 frontage roads are discontinuous along the corridor
causing traffic to back track in order to reach their destinations. In addition, the local area roadway
network is lacking in links between NM 599 and central Santa Fe which is a problem that must be
addressed by local government.

This area of Santa Fe has many approved and proposed plans for the development of both housing and
business. This economic development is important to Santa Fe to provide the opportunity for Santa Fe’s
population to live and work in the community. Improved access to NM 599 would support this
development by improving the flow of traffic onto and across NM599 from the local area.

Access at the unsignalized intersections, CR 62, CR 70 Connection (Via Veteranos) and Camino de los
Montoyas, is very poor with the level of service on the cross streets failing during the peak hours.
Improved access to or across NM 599 is needed for local multimodal transportation on the north side of
Santa Fe including vehicles, future transit, pedestrians and bicycles.

NM 599 must continue to function as a relief route for the City of Santa Fe and as an alternative for
hazardous waste transport from Los Alamos around the populated areas of Santa Fe. Improved access to
or across NM 599 is needed for the all modes of travel as the area continues to develop. There is public
perception that improvements are needed to address safety concerns, particularly at existing at-grade
intersections.

The purpose of the study is to develop a prioritization plan for public funding that addresses the access
issues and supports economic development, regional transportation and long range planning goals.

Project Pricrity Plan - Page 5 (http://santafempo.org/wp-content/uploads/2010/04/Sections-1-VI NM-
599-Phase-B.pdf)

The NM 599 projects in order of priority for public funding are shown in Table 1. Projects were
prioritized based on their ability to satisfy the purpose and need, public input, and cost. The total cost of
all projects is $85,625,000.

§5102/792200d3Q40923d M¥31D D248



Table 1 - NI 698 Priority for Public Funding

Location Priority Total Cost
CR 62 Interchange 1 6,500,000
CR 70 Connection Interchange 2 $8,000,600
Airport Road Interchange 3 $14,000,000
-25 Frontage Road Overpass 4 $6,000,000
Extend NM 599 Frontage Road
across SF River ° 34,300,000
Caja del Rio Infezchange € $12,650,000
Ephriam Rd Interchange 1 $8,000,000
Camino de los Monfoyas Inerchange -
of Fl Rd = & $11,050,000
Jaguar Rd Inferchange B $8,000,000
NM 539 E Fri Rdio 125 i $10,125,000

Tota! Cost $85625.000

If private funding becomes available then any of these projects could be constructed. The projects with
the least priority do not require an interchange or frontage road unless necessitated by development in
which case they should be privately funded.

Recommendations - Page 118 (http://santafempo.org/wp-content/uploads/2010/04/Sections-Vill-
IX_NM-599-Phase-B.pdf)

11. CR 70 Connection - The preferred alternative for the CR 70 Connection (Via Veteranos) Intersection
is to construct an interchange. An interchange meets the purpose and need of eventually making
NM599 and access controlled facility. It would improve the safety at the existing intersection which has
a high injury rate. it would also improve the existing level of service which is failing. In the interim before
funding is available for an interchange the NMDOT is considering other options such as a signal or
flashers.

Recommendations related to NM599/CR70 in the MPO Metropolitan Transportation Plan 2010-2035
(http://santafempo.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/06/Final-MTP-Document-12-16-10-Amended-09-
08-11 02-09-12.pdf)

S1L02/792/20Qd3Ay¥023yY M¥31d 24S



M TP Roadway System Policies:

Projects should be cost-effective

and multimodal

Project sponsors should implement
Complete Streets principles  in
roadway project design.

Roadway projects should maintain
or enhance connectivity of the
overall network,

1

Projects shall be safe and acce

for all us

No new at-grade intersections shall

be added to NM599 and all existing

at-grade Intersections will be

converted to interchanges as

funding becomes available.

Roundabouts should be considered
option for all new or

ucted fntersections.

2021-2025
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State Police have been asked to take over the investigation from the Santa Fe County Sheriff's Office
f Facenoox 0 of a fatal traffic accident early Saturday that killed a Santa Fe woman
B Unkedin 0 According to a State Police news release, the crash occurred on SR 539 at CR 70 when a vehicle

driven by Mary Catanach, 45, “was attempting to cross NM 599, from at the intersection of County
& submit Road 70, when she pulled out in front of Manuel Pena °
& Email this article Pena, 51, of Santa Fe was unable to avoid Catanach's vehicle and they collided, police said Catanach

died later at University of New Mexico Hospital Pena was treated at Christus St Vincent's Regional NORTH CALENDAR
& Print this erticle Medical Center.

This accident is still under investigation
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Blue Gorilla reigns over Santa Fe's Railye
Park

Classic truck says "northern New Mexico'
Santa Fe man gets six-figure lottery jackp

Long-time Santa Fe favorite, Tecolote Ca
announces new location

Young, married and operatic

http://www.abgjournal.com/516974/abgnewsseeker/investigation-continues-on-fatal-santa-... 1/22/2015
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_’/ “Promoting Interconnected Transportation Options”
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Santa Fe MPO Technical Coordinating Committee

Monday January 26, 2015, 1:30 P.M.
City of Santa Fe Offices @ Market Station

500 Market Street, Suite 200, Santa Fe, NM
(Map: http://tinyurl.com/I6kejeq)

AGENDA

¢ Call to Order

¢ Roll Call

¢  Approval of Agenda

¢  Approval of Meeting Minutes from November 17, 2014
1. Communications from the Public

2. Items for Discussion and Possible Action:

Election of Officers

b. Review and Release for Public Review of a Proposed Amendment to the FFY2014-
2017 Transportation Improvement Program — MPO Staff

R

c. Presentation and Ranking of Section 5310 Funding Application — Ken Smithson, Santa
Fe Trails

d. NM 599 Corridor Issues - MPO Staff and NMDOT District 5

e. Metropolitan Transportation Plan 2015-2040 — MPO Staff

f.  Public Transit Plan Status Report — MPO Staff

g. Pedestrian Plan Status Report — MPO Staff

h. Update on TAP and RTP Applications

i.  Transportation Improvement Program: Project Updates — MPO Staff
Matters from the MPO Staff

4. Matters from TCC Members
5. Adjourn - Next TCC Meeting: Monday February 23, 2014

Persons with disabilities in need of accommodations, contact the City Clerk’s
office at 955-6520, five (5) working days prior to the meeting date.

P.O. Box 909, Santa Fe, NM 87504-0909
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m Fe Santa Fe Metropolitan Planning Organization
s MPO

“Promoting Interconnected Transportation Options”

Santa Fe MPO Transportation Policy Board

Thursday January 29, 2015, 4:30 P.M.
City of Santa Fe Offices (@ Market Station

500 Market Street, Suite 200, Santa Fe, NM
(Map: http://tinyurl.com/I6kejeq)

AGENDA

CALL to ORDER

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL of AGENDA

APPROVAL of MINUTES: November 20, 2014

A. MATTERS FROM THE PUBLIC
B. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:
1. Election of Officers

2. Update on NM599 Corridor Issues — Miguel Gabaldon, NMDOT D5 District
Engineer

3. Joint Powers Agreement: Annual Review— MPO Staff

4. Development of Metropolitan Transportation Plan 2015-2040 — MPO Staff
C. MATTERS FROM THE MPO STAFF
Public Transit Master Plan Update

—

2. Pedestrian Master Plan Update

3. Status Report on the Zia Station Traffic Impact Study

4. Report on Applications for TAP and RTP funding
D. MATTERS FROM THE SFMPO TRANSPORTATION POLICY BOARD
E. MATTERS FROM THE NMDOT AND FHWA
F. ADJOURNMENT - Next Scheduled Meeting February 26, 2015

Persons with disabilities in need of accommodations, contact the City Clerk’s
office at 955-6520, five (5) working days prior to the meeting date.

P.0. Box 909 Santa Fe, NM 87504-0909
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Deadly crash prompts calls for more safety measures

at N.M. 599 intersections
By Chris Quintana

The New Mexican | Posted: Saturday, January 10, 2015 7:00 pm

By most accounts, Mary Catanach was a cautious
driver. She had completed a defensive driving
course in February 2014, according to her brother.
There was a rosary hanging from her rearview
mirror. And she kept a laminated card in her car
with the image of St. Christopher, the patron saint
of travelers, and the Motorist’s Prayer.

But none of that helped her Dec. 20, when she was
crossing the southbound lanes of traffic on N.M.

599 at Via Veteranos on her way to a quilting class.

Catanach, a counselor for disabled adults at Easter
Seals El Mirador, died after she was T-boned by a
white van that was traveling south on the highway.
New Mexico State Police concluded Catanach was
at fault.

Her death elicited a swift, vehement demand from
the already frustrated Aldea community west of
N.M. 599, where she had lived, to the New Mexico
Department of Transportation: Make the N.M. 599
intersections safer.

“T just think N.M. 599 is a mess of a roadway,”
said Aldea resident Nancy Deutsch. “I think the

Deadly crash prompts calls for
more safety measures at N.M.
599 intersections

Mary Catanach, a counselor for disabled
adults at Easter Seals El Mirador, died Dec.
20 after she was T-boned by a white van on
N.M. 599 at a tricky intersection with Via
Veteranos as she was attempting to merge
onto the highway. New Mexico State Police
concluded Catanach was at fault, but the
crash has spurred more calls for safety
measures at N.M. 599 intersections.
Courtesy photo

development was short-sighted. How many people have to lose their lives?”

Since the relief route was completed in 2000, the Department of Transportation has completed
some upgrades to make it safer. In 2011, flashing beacons were installed on N.M. 599 at the Via
Veteranos intersection. And in 2013, an overpass and two roundabouts were constructed at South

Meadows Road to slow traffic merging onto N.M. 599.

http://www.santafenewmexican.com/news/local_news/deadly-crash-prompts-calls-for-mor... 1/12/2015
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But area residents have long called for more safety measures. They say there have been 25 crashes
in the last year at the site where Catanach was injured, despite the flashing lights.

Brian Adams, Catanach’s younger brother, said his sister was particularly careful when behind the
wheel because her older brother had died in a motor vehicle accident. But this intersection is hard
to navigate. When drivers approach from the west, as Catanach did, they have to gauge the
zipping traffic and punch the pedal with precise timing to make it across the southbound lanes and
turn north when the lane is clear.

It’s tricky, and more than a bit stressful. Many people, Adams included, prefer to drive farther
down the frontage road and avoid it all together. He said his sister usually did the same, but not
that Saturday.

Catanach apparently slowed down in the middle southbound lane. It’s unclear why, though she
might have been waiting for a gap in the northbound traffic. The driver of the van told police he
watched as Catanach’s white sedan rolled into the road at “a very slow speed” as he tried to
“avoid striking the vehicle by veering,” a police report said.

His efforts proved useless. The van’s front end slammed into Catanach’s driver’s side, and the
momentum pushed the vehicles onto the median. The force of the crash cracked Catanach’s ribs,
smashed her leg and injured a large artery. Catanach died at Christus St. Vincent Regional
Medical Center.

Adams said he felt this type of collision was inevitable, despite his sister’s record of safe driving.
“It could have happened to anyone,” he said. “In my opinion, it’s a bad stretch of road.”

The driver of the white van declined to be interviewed. He did offer his condolences to the family,
and his employer, Lisa Lopez, said she never had any issues or concerns with his driving.

Data from the National Highway Traftic Safety Administration showed 360 New Mexico drivers
and passengers died in a fatal traffic accidents in 2012, including 18 in Santa Fe County.
Bernalillo County reported 67, McKinley County, 29, and San Juan County, 28.

It’s harder to pin down how many crashes have occurred at the Via Veteranos intersection. A
petition circling through town to add a traffic light to the intersection said 25 crashes had occurred

at the crossing in the past year.

There have been other deaths along N.M. 599. Two occurred at the South Meadows/County Road
62 intersection. In 2011, Elizabeth Gonzales, a 24-year-old secretary at the District Attorney’s
Office in Santa Fe, was killed after turning in front of a northbound vehicle. In another crash at

that site, a man lost an arm.

http://www.santafenewmexican.com/news/local_news/deadly-crash-prompts-calls-for-mor... 1/12/2015
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Tony Brown a resident of the Aldea de Santa Fe community, has started a petition calling for
traffic lights at the Via Veteranos intersection. The petition, which is available to sign at
change.org, has already received more than 500 signatures.

“I have lived here for 6 years and use that cross way 4 to 6 times a day and have seen more
accidents and close calls than I can remember,” Brown wrote. “Please sign this petition and help
stop any more needless deaths resulting from this poorly designed interchange.”

There is a similar intersection at N.M. 599 and Camino de los Montoyas.

Melissa Dosher, a spokeswoman with the New Mexico Department of Transportation, said the
agency has received complaints from the community and is doing what it can to address them. She
said the state agency would perform a traffic signal study at the intersection soon.

Dosher said a new Jaguar Drive interchange is being built, and after that is completed, the agency
will “determine what safety enhancements/changes’™ might be nceded elsewhere.

Contact Chris Quintana aE 986-3093 or cquintanai@sfnewmexican.com.

http://www.santafenewmexican.com/news/local_news/deadly-crash-prompts-calls-for-mor... 1/12/2015
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